Document Pack

Mark James LLM, DPA, DCA
Prif Weithredwr,

P N
omor Sir Gar B

7 o Chief Executive,
Carmarthenshlrg Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin. SA31 1JP
el County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP
Yty Con™

FRIDAY, 4 SEPTEMBER 2015

TO: ALL MEMBERS OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE

| HEREBY SUMMON YOU TO ATTEND A MEETING OF THE STANDARDS
COMMITTEE WHICH WILL BE HELD IN THE CHAMBER, COUNTY HALL,
CARMARTHEN AT 10.00 AM. ON FRIDAY, 11TH SEPTEMBER, 2015 FOR
THE TRANSACTION OF THE BUSINESS OUTLINED ON THE ATTACHED
AGENDA

Mark James

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

@ PLEASE RECYCLE

Democratic Officer: Michelle Evans Thomas

Telephone (direct line): (01267) 224470

Fax: (01267) 224911

E-Mail: MEEvansThomas@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
Ref: AD016-001

o Siv Ga A EICHCYNGORarleinamdani
o Sir Gar wwwisirgar.lyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . .
A Your counciL doitonline
ity o www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP
9 MEMBERS

Independent Members (5)

Mrs Mary Dodd

Mr Christopher A. Downward (Vice-Chair)
Mr M. Andre Morgan

Mr Paul W.L. Stait (Chair)

Mr Alun Williams

Community Committee Member (1)

Councillor Jeanette Gilasbey

Elected Members of the County Council (3)

Councillor Susan M. Allen
Councillor B.A. Louvain Roberts
Councillor Gareth B. Thomas

o Siv Ga A EICHCYNGORarleinamdani
orer Sir Gar www.sirgarlyw.cymru
Carmarthenshire . .

¢ =%  YoURcounciLdoitonline

ity Co www.carmarthenshire. gov.wales




AGENDA

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.
2. DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL INTEREST.

3. TO SIGN AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE 1-4
MEETING OF THE COMMITTEE HELD ON THE 29TH JULY, 2015.

4. STANDARDS COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015. 5-16

5. REVIEW OF CORPORATE WHISTLE BLOWING POLICY. 17-78

6. CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLIANCE BY TOWN AND COMMUNITY  79-90
COUNCILLORS.

7. PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES REPORT 91 - 164
2014/15.

8. REVISED OMBUDSMAN'S GUIDANCE. 165 - 216

9. ADJUDICATION PANEL FOR WALES - DECISION NOTICE 217 - 222

COMMUNITY COUNCILLOR HAULWEN LEWIS.

10. APPLICATION FOR DISPENSATION BY FIFTEEN COUNCILLORS 223 - 230
FROM GORSLAS COMMUNITY COUNCIL.

11. APPLICATION FOR DISPENSATION BY COUNCILLOR SHAHID 231-238
HUSSAIN.

12. ANY OTHER ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT BY REASON OF
SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES THE CHAIR DECIDES SHOULD BE
CONSIDERED AS A MATTER OF URGENCY PURSUANT TO
SECTION 100B(4)(B) OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972.

o Siv Ga A EICHCYNGORarleinamdani
aorer Sir Gar www.sirgarllyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire e
S Your counciL doitonline
Uy cout® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 3
STANDARDS COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON
29™ JULY 2015

PRESENT: Mr P. Stait (Chair)
Independent Members:-

M. Dodd, M.A. Morgan and A. Williams

County Council Members:-

Councillors S.M. Allen, B.A.L. Roberts and G.B. Thomas
The following officers were also in attendance:-
Mr R. Edgecombe — Legal Services Manager

Mrs M. Evans Thomas — Democratic Services Officer

(Chamber, County Hall, Carmarthen: 10.00 a.m. — 10.50 a.m.)

1. APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Mr C. Downward and Community
Councillor J. Gilasbey.

2. DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL INTERESTS

Name of Member Minute No Nature of Interest
Councillor G.B. 6 — Application for He is one of the
Thomas Dispensation by Councillors applicants
Gareth Thomas and Jean
Lewis
3. MINUTES

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on the 12t
June, 2015 be signed as a correct record.

4, APPLICATION FOR DISPENSATION BY COMMUNITY COUNCILLOR G.E.
WRIGHT

The Committee considered an application submitted by the Clerk to Llandovery
Town Council on behalf of Councillor G.E. Wright, a member of Llandovery Town
Council, for the grant of a dispensation under the provisions of the Standards
Committees (Grant of Dispensations) (Wales) Regulations 2001 to speak at
meetings of Llandovery Town Council on issues relating to the future of the
Pantycelyn School site in Llandovery.

It was reported that a dispensation was sought as Councillor Wright is a member
and former Director of the Calon Cymru project which aims to revitalise
communities on the Heart of Wales line through the purchase of land for use by the

-1- Page 1



STANDARDS COMMITTEE
MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON

29™ JULY 2015

community via Community Land Trusts. The Pantycelyn School site was a site
which would potentially be of interest to the project.

Councillor Wright would have a personal interest in relation to any discussions
regarding the school site by virtue of paragraph 10(2)(ix)(ee) of the Code as the
matter under discussion would be likely to affect a society or association operating
in the county in which she is a member. Councillor Wright's interest would be
prejudicial as, by her own admission, she wished to promote the views of the
project in those discussions.

Following a detailed discussion, it was

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that dispensation be granted under Regulation
2(f) of the Standards Committees (Grant of Dispensations) (Wales)
Regulations 2001 to Councillor G.E. Wright to SPEAK BUT NOT VOTE at
meetings of Llandovery Town Council on any issues relating to the future of
the Pantycelyn School site in Llandovery, until 4™ December, 2015.

APPLICATION FOR DISPENSATION BY COMMUNITY COUNCILLORS LYN
DAVIES, JOHN REES, N. THOMAS, S. THOMAS, J. GIBBIN, H. PHILLIPS, D.
PHILLIPS, R. WILLIAMS AND R. DAVIES

The Committee considered an application submitted by the Clerk to Llanboidy
Community Council on behalf of Councillors Lyn Davies, John Rees, N. Thomas, S.
Thomas, J. Gibbin, H. Phillips, D. Phillips, R. Williams and R. Davies, members of
Llanboidy Community Council, for the grant of a dispensation under the provisions
of the Standards Committees (Grant of Dispensations) (Wales) Regulations 2001 to
speak and vote at meetings of Llanboidy Community Council in respect of their
involvement with the Market Hall, Llanboidy. The Council receives requests for
financial assistance from the Hall.

It was reported that a dispensation was sought as all nine councillors were
members of the Hall Committee. One is also the Treasurer and another Chairman.
Their role as Committee Members gives rise to a personal interest under
10(2)(a)(ix)(ee) of the Code i.e. membership of a private club, society or association
operating within the Authority’s area. This interest was also prejudicial as a member
of the public with knowledge of the facts would reasonably regard it as so significant
that it was likely to prejudice the Councillor’'s judgement of the public interest.

There was no suggestion that the Councillors would themselves gain financially as
a result of their involvement with the hall. The application was silent as to whether
any of the Councillors were appointed to the Committee by the Council.

Although the application made specific reference to a meeting on the 1% July, 2015,
the interest was a continuing one.

Following a detailed discussion, it was

Page 2



STANDARDS COMMITTEE
MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON

29™ JULY 2015

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that dispensation be granted under Regulation
2(a) of the Standards Committees (Grant of Dispensation) (Wales)
Regulations 2001, to Councillors Lyn Davies, John Rees, N. Thomas, S.
Thomas, J. Gibbin, H. Phillips, D. Phillips, R. Williams and R. Davies to SPEAK
AND VOTE at meetings of the Llanboidy Community Council in relation to any
discussions regarding the Market Hall, LIanboidy until 4™ December, 2015.

APPLICATION FOR DISPENSATION BY COUNTY COUNCILLORS GARETH
THOMAS AND JEAN LEWIS

[NOTE: Councillor G.B. Thomas, having earlier declared a personal interest in this
item, left the meeting prior to the consideration and determination thereof.]

The Committee considered an application submitted by County Councillors Gareth
Thomas and Jean Lewis for the grant of a dispensation under the provisions of the
Standards Committees (Grant of Dispensations) (Wales) Regulations 2001 to
speak and make written representations at meetings of Carmarthenshire County
Council and its Committees on any matters relating to dairy farming. Both
Councillors are actively engaged in the dairy farming industry.

It was reported that a dispensation was sought as their role in the dairy farming
industry gives rise to a personal interest under paragraph 10(2)(a)(i) of the Code i.e.
any employment or business carried on by them. This interest was also prejudicial
as a member of the public with knowledge of the facts would reasonably regard it
was so significant that it was likely to prejudice the Councillor's judgement of the
wider public interest.

Matters relating to dairy farming are regularly discussed at meetings of the Council
and its Committees. The application gave an example of where the Councillors
were forced to declare an interest and absent themselves from a meeting in which
they could have otherwise made a valuable contribution due to their expertise.

Following a detailed discussion, it was

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that dispensation be granted under Regulation
2(f) of the Standards Committees (Grant of Dispensations) (Wales)
Regulations 2001 to County Councillors Gareth Thomas and Jean Lewis to
SPEAK BUT NOT VOTE AND TO MAKE WRITTEN REPRESENTATIONS at
meetings of Carmarthenshire County Council and its Committees in relation
to any discussions regarding dairy farming until 4™ December, 2015.

CODE OF CONDUCT TRAINING FOR TOWN AND COMMUNITY COUNCILLORS

Further to minute no. 8 of the meeting held on 121" June, 2015 the Committee
received a further update report on the Code of Conduct training sessions held in
early June for representatives of local Town and Community Councils.

A consultation questionnaire was provided for all delegates seeking feedback on
the training sessions and members considered a schedule of the feedback

-3- Page 3



STANDARDS COMMITTEE
MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON

29™ JULY 2015

responses together with a summary of the main points. Out of the 106 delegates
who attended, 98 returned their questionnaires and the Committee noted that the
response to the training was overwhelmingly positive.

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that the report be noted.

SIGNED: ... DATE: ..o

Page 4



Agenda Item 4

STANDARDS COMMITTEE
11™ SEPTEMBER 2015

STANDARDS COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

Recommendations / key decisions required:
To consider the report

Reasons:
The subject matter of the report falls within the remit of the Committee

Scrutiny Committee recommendations / comments:

Not applicable

Exec Board Decision Required NO

Council Decision Required NO

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER PORTFOLIO HOLDER:- Clir E Dole (Leader)
Directorate

Chief Executives

Name of Head of Service: Designations:

Linda Rees-Jones Head of Administration & Law | Tel Nos.

Report Author: 01267 224018
Robert Edgecombe Acting Legal Services Manager | E Mail Addresses:

RJEdgeco@carmarthenshire.gov.
uk.

wor Sip Gar EICH CYNGOrRarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire ) ]
PS¢ YOUR counciLdoitonline
“ty Cos™® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Page 5



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
STANDARDS COMMITTEE
11"" SEPTEMBER 2015

STANDARDS COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

The Standards Committee is required to produce an annual report of its activities for
presentation to Full Council, usually in November or December of each year.

Following discussions between officers and the Chair of the Committee, the attached draft report
has been prepared for consideration and comment.

The report focuses on the following issues;

Committee Membership

Code of Conduct and Dispensation Applications

Whistle-Blowing Policy

Complaints and Compliments

Public Services Ombudsman for Wales - 2014/2015 Annual Report
Annual Standards Conference

Adjudication Panel Report 2013/2014

Code of Conduct compliance by Town and Community Councillors

The section on the Annual Standards Conference has been left intentionally blank. It is suggested
that it be completed once members have attended the conference

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? YES

wor Sip Gar EICH CYNGOrRarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire ) ]
A Your counciLdoitonline
“ty Cos™® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Page 6



IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this
report :

Signed: Linda Rees Jones Head of Administration and Law

Policy, Crime | Legal Finance ICT Risk Staffing Physical
& Disorder Management | Implications Assets
and Issues

Equalities

NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE

wor Sip Gar EICH CYNGOrRarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire ) ]
A Your counciLdoitonline
“ty Cos™® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Page 7



CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed: Linda Rees Jones Head of Administration and Law

( Please specify the outcomes of consultations undertaken where they arise against the following headings)
1. Scrutiny Committee
Not applicable

2. Local Member(s)
Not applicable

3. Community / Town Council
Not applicable

4. Relevant Partners
Not applicable

5. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations
Not applicable

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW

Title of Document File Ref No. | Locations that the papers are available for public inspection

Legal file DPSC-136 | Legal Services, County Hall

wor Sip Gar EICH CYNGOrRarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire ) ]
o <2 YOUR counciLdoitonline
“ty Cos™® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Page 8



STANDARDS COMMITTEE

ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

Item Subject
1. Introduction
2. Period covered by the report
3. Committee Membership
4, Code of Conduct complaints
5. Applications for Dispensation
6. Code of Conduct Training
7. Whistle-Blowing Policy
8. Complaints and Compliments
9. Ombudsman’s Report 2014/2015
10. Annual Standards Committee Conference
11. Adjudication Panel Report for 2013/14
12. Code Compliance by Town and Community Councillors

Page 9



1. INTRODUCTION

The law requires each and every County and County Borough Council in Wales to establish
and maintain a Standards Committee. Such committees are responsible for overseeing
standards of conduct for elected members of both the principal council and the constituent
community and town councils within the principal council’s area.

The Committee receives and determines applications for dispensation from elected
members in relation to the Code of Conduct, and adjudicates upon code complaints referred
to the Council by the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales. However it should be noted
that only rarely has the Committee been requested to undertake this latter function.

The Committee also receives reports in relation to complaints and compliments, and the
operation of the Council’s whistle-blowing policy.

2. PERIOD COVERED BY THIS REPORT

This report covers the period 1* April 2014 to 31* March 2014

3. COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

The Committee has nine members, made up of five independent co-opted members, an
elected member of a community council in the County and three elected members of the
County Council. The Chair and Vice-Chair are both independent co-opted members.

The vacancy caused by the resignation of independent member Mrs Gillian Whitehead and
referred to in my report for 2013/2014 has been filled with the appointment of Mrs Mary

Dodd to the Committee.

The names of the committee members, together with the Committee’s terms of reference,
are shown on the Council’s website.

Page 10



4. CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS

The Committee has not been required to adjudicate upon any Code of Conduct complaints
during the period of this report.

Formal complaints about councillors who are suspected of breaching the Code of Conduct
are referred directly to the Public Service Ombudsman for Wales without involving the
Standards Committee. Most complaints are resolved by the Ombudsman but, occasionally
the Ombudsman may require the Committee to investigate and adjudicate on a complaint.
In 2014-15, however, the Ombudsman did not refer any complaints to the Committee.

During the year a total of 24 Code complaints were made against Councillors from
Carmarthenshire. Of these 15 were against County Councillors and 9 against Town and
Community Councillors. This represents a significant increase over recent years; however
the following points should be noted;

(i) 8 of the complaints relating to County Councillors arose out of the same incident
and were in regard to the same Councillor. The Ombudsman found that no action
was required as the Councillor had followed the Code in his conduct at a meeting of
the Planning Committee.

(ii) The Ombudsman found that the Code had been breached on only 1 occasion (by a
Town Councillor), and even then concluded that no further action should be taken.

(iii) 8 of the complaints were by councillors against a fellow councillor. All these
complaints related to Town and Community Councils.

No particular trends can be identified from the cases that have been notified.
Highlights of the Public Service Ombudsman’s report for the whole of Wales are given in

section 9.

5. APPLICATIONS FOR DISPENSATION

The Committee has considered 17 applications for dispensation from County and
Community and Town Councillors during the year.

The grounds upon which the Committee may grant a dispensation are set out in the
Standards Committees (Grant of Dispensations)(Wales) Regulations 2001.

The Committee continues to approach each application with a presumption in favour of

granting a dispensation, wherever it can. The Committee may also delegate authority to the
Monitoring Officer to grant similar dispensations in relation to that business.

Page 11



Details of the applications that have been dealt with can be viewed as part of the minutes of
the meetings of the Committee which are accessible on Carmarthenshire County Council’s
website www.carmarthenshire.gov.uk.

A comparison between the numbers of dispensation applications received since 2009 shows
the following;

YEAR TOTAL CCC T/CC GRANTED  REFUSED OTHER
2009/10 9 1 8 6* 0 N/A
2010/11 6 4 2 6* 0 N/A
2011/12 7 6 1 7* 0 N/A
2012/13 23 18 5 8 15 N/A
2013/14 27 7 20 26* 1 N/A
2014/15 17 1 16 17 0 N/A

*includes cases where the application was partially granted

As can be seen the overall number of applications received was lower than in 2013/20134
and 2012/2013. An analysis of the applications reveals that of the 16 applications received
from Town and Community Councils (T/CC), 10 were from one particular council.

A review of all the T/CC applications received shows that they all related to instances where
a councillor’'s membership of another organisation created a personal and prejudicial
interest. In the vast majority of cases these organisations were voluntary or community
based and, in those instances, the committee granted dispensations to speak but not vote.

It continues to be of some concern that the majority of applications for dispensation
originate from one Council although this year the Council in question is different to the one

that supplied 16 out of 20 applications in 2013/2014.

6. CODE OF CONDUCT TRAINING

Following a review of the code of conduct training provided to Town and Community
Councillors in May and June 2014 a decision was taken to again invite each Town and
Community Council to send representatives to two training sessions that were held on
separate evenings during June this year. Although technically falling outside the period of
this report, | am pleased to confirm that the sessions were well attended, with over 100
delegates present on behalf of 40 different Councils, making the sessions the most
successful that we have provided.

Page 12



7. WHISTLE —-BLOWING POLICY

The Committee has oversight of the authority’s whistle-blowing policy. The process is
regulated by the Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998, which protects against dismissal and
other detriment for workers who disclose information in the public interest in prescribed
circumstances to prescribed persons.

Details of the complaints dealt with during the period 2014/2015 are set out below;

New Complaints carried Cases Cases
Complaints over from 2013/14 Concluded Continuing
3 0 3 0

The Committee has taken a particular interest in the steps being taken by the Council to
raise awareness amongst staff of the policy and to train managers in its implementation and
has closely monitored progress throughout the year.

When considering the number of complaints made under the policy, it is necessary to keep
in mind that the policy is only intended to cover concerns that fall outside the scope of other
procedures. For example there is often some overlap with matters relating to safeguarding,
grievance, disciplinary matters and dignity at work. The number of whistle blowing
complaints received appears to be consistent with those received by other local authorities.

8. COMPLAINTS AND COMPLIMENTS FROM THE GENERAL PUBLIC

In June 2015 the Committee was presented with a report on complaints and compliments
received by the Council for 2014/2015. The report provided comparative data with the
previous year and an analysis by department. It also summarised the targets and initiatives
pursued to date and planned for the following year.

There has been a decrease overall in the number of complaints received compared with
2013/2014 (from 676 to 573), but there are again variations between departments.

The number of cases dealt with within the required time period fell from 71% to 66%
reversing the improvement that that had been made the previous year.

Page 13



The overall decrease in complaints, following on from a similar decrease in 2013/2014 is
pleasing to note and a very encouraging trend.

9. PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES - ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2013/2014

In September 2015 the Committee received the 2014/2015 annual report of the Public
Services Ombudsman for Wales. The Ombudsman investigates complaints of
maladministration and service failure and also deals with complaints against councillors in
respect of alleged breaches of the member’s Code of Conduct.

Maladministration

Maladministration complaints against public bodies in general have risen again by 8%.
However complaints against local authorities rose by 5% during this period. However once
again, the majority of complaints were closed after initial consideration as they did not merit
investigation.

In relation to Carmarthenshire County Council, a total of 58 matters were determined by the
Ombudsman. Unfortunately one of these matters did result in a Public Interest report being
issued and which was reported to Full Council on the 24" February 2015. The Committee
noted however that this report related to events that occurred in 2012.

Members Code of Conduct

The Ombudsman reported a 1% increase in Code of Conduct complaints overall compared to
the previous year. Although there was a decrease in the number of Code complaints against
Town and Community Councillors, there was a surprising 13% increase in complaints against
County Councillors.

This increase reverses the general downward trend since 2011/12.

10. ANNUAL STANDARDS CONFERENCE

(Detail to be inserted following attendance at the conference)

Page 14



11. ADJUDICATION PANEL REPORT 2013/2014

The Committee has also considered the Adjudication Panel’s Annual Report for 2013/2014.

The panel deals with the most serious allegations of misconduct under the Code of Conduct
and is a venue for appeals against decisions made by Standards Committees.

Throughout Wales, 1 case was referred to the Panel by the Ombudsman during the year and
a further 2 were carried over from the previous year.

None of these cases related to Carmarthenshire.

12. CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLIANCE BY TOWN AND COMMUNITY COUNCILLORS

In September 2015 the Committee received a report upon the general level of Code
compliance by Town and Community Councillors since the 1°* April 2012. The report
considered in detail the number of code complaints, dispensation applications and
declarations of interest recorded in respect of each of the 72 Councils, and also the level
of Code training given to members. This information will be used to help formulate and
target training and guidance in the future.

Paul Stait
Chairman - Standards Committee

Page 15



Page 16



Agenda Iltem 5

STANDARDS COMMITTEE
11™ SEPTEMBER 2015

REVIEW OF CORPORATE WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

Recommendations / key decisions required:
To consider the report

Reasons:
The subject matter of the report falls within the remit of the Committee

Scrutiny Committee recommendations / comments:

Not applicable

Exec Board Decision Required NO

Council Decision Required NO

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER PORTFOLIO HOLDER:- Clir E Dole (Leader)
Directorate

Chief Executives

Name of Head of Service: Designations:

Linda Rees-Jones Head of Administration & Law | Tel Nos.

Report Author: 01267 224018
Robert Edgecombe Acting Legal Services Manager | E Mail Addresses:

RJEdgeco@carmarthenshire.gov.
uk.

wor Sip Gar EICH CYNGOrRarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire ) ]
o <2 YOUR counciLdoitonline
“ty Cos™® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Page 17



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
STANDARDS COMMITTEE
11"" SEPTEMBER 2015

REVIEW OF CORPORATE WHISTLE BLOWING POLICY

The remit of the Standards Committee includes the receipt of an annual report
upon the operation of the Council’s Whistle Blowing Policy, with a view to the
inclusion of relevant information within the Chairman’s Annual Report to Full
Council.

Between the 1st April 2014 and 31st March 2015 three new whistle blowing
complaints were received by the Council. This compares with 1 new complaint in
2013/2014.

These complaints were concluded as follows;

1. One was concluded following contact with the alleged complainant

2. One was investigated but no evidence was found to substantiate the
complaint

3. One was investigated and resulted in a formal disciplinary investigation
being undertaken.

No complaints were carried over from 2013 /2014 and no complaints have been
carried over into 2015/2016.

The Council has continued to take steps to raise staff awareness of the policy and
ensure managers are fully trained to recognise whistle blowing complaints and deal
with them properly.

Full details of these measures and a copy of the current policy, are set out in the
attached report

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? YES

wor Sip Gar EICH CYNGOrRarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire ) ]
PS¢ YOUR counciLdoitonline
“ty Cos™® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Page 18



IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this
report :

Signed: Linda Rees Jones Head of Administration and Law

Policy, Crime | Legal Finance ICT Risk Staffing Physical
& Disorder Management | Implications Assets
and Issues

Equalities

NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE

wor Sip Gar EICH CYNGOrRarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire ) ]
A Your counciLdoitonline
“ty Cos™® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Page 19



CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed: Linda Rees Jones Head of Administration and Law

( Please specify the outcomes of consultations undertaken where they arise against the following headings)
1. Scrutiny Committee
Not applicable

2. Local Member(s)
Not applicable

3. Community / Town Council
Not applicable

4. Relevant Partners
Not applicable

5. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations
Not applicable

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW

Title of Document File Ref No. | Locations that the papers are available for public inspection
Legal file DPSC-136 | Legal Services, County Hall
Legal file CCCN-061 | Legal Services, County Hall

wor Sip Gar EICH CYNGOrRarleinamdani
orsor Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire ) ]
A YOUR counciLdoitonline
“ty Cos™® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Page 20



ANNUAL REVIEW
OF

WHISTLE BLOWING POLICY
2014-2015

Authors:

Ann L Clarke and Robert Edgecombe

Dated: 11" September 2015

Page 21



INDEX

Executive Summary

introduction

Annual Review of Whistle Blowing Policy

Whistle Blowing Complaints Received during 2014/2015
Awareness Raising and Training

Wales Audit Office Review

. Future Action

G mm Qg 0w I

Page 22



A. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

. The Council has adopted a formal Whistle-blowing policy in accordance
with statutory requirements and which is reviewed annually by the
Standards Committee.

. The number of complaints received during the year has increased
compared to 2013/2014 but is still at a low {evel. This is consistent with
the levels of complaint recorded by other authorities.

. The Council has distributed a guidance booklet regarding the Pelicy to all
staff.

. All staff with access te email {including all managers) have been
provided with a copy of the policy and confirmed that they have read
and understood it.

. 84% of managers have completed the additional e-learning module as at
the 7™ August 2015 and efforts are continuing to increase the
completion rate further.

. The Wales Audit Office are satisfied with the Council’s approach on the

Issue, and will be considering the operation of the Policy further during
their Corporate Assessment of the Authority later this year.

Page 23



Page 24

B. INTRODUCTION

. The Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998 {"the Act’) gives legal protection

to workers against dismissal or other detriment where they disclose
certain types of information in the public interast to the Council or
others who are defined in the Act as prescribed person.

. The protection applies not just to employees, but also casual workers,

agency waorkers, contractors and sub-contractors.

. The protection applies to disclosure of a ‘relevant failure’ i.e. a crime,

breach of legal obligation, a miscarriage of justice, danger to health and
safety, damage to the environment or deliberate concealment of
information relating to any of these categories,

. The Policy aims to provide clear and practical guidance to workers as to

their rights under the Act and the process by which they can disclose the
existence of a ‘relevant failure’,

. The Policy does not exist in isolation and its operation should be

considered in the context of other policies and procedures which are

designed to enable workers (and others from the wider pubiic) to raise

concerns about the way the Council performs its functions. These

policies and procedures include;

(a} Corporate Complaints Palicy

(b} Corporate Grievance Procedure

(¢) 'Working Together to Safeguard Children’ Guidance issued by Welsh
Government

{d} All-Wales Child Protection Procedures

(e) Wales Interim Policy and Proceduras for the Protection of Vulnerable
Adults from Abuse.



C. ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE POLICY

. Officers have reviewed the Policy since it was last approved by the
Standards Committee on the 12" September 2014,

. Save for updating certain contact information on pages 8 and 9 officers
are satisfied that the Policy continues to be legally correct as at the date
of this meeting.

. Officers therefore recommend that the policy be approved subject to
the changes to contact details highlighted.

. A copy of the Policy is attached at Appendix A.

D. COMPLAINTS RECEIVED DURING 2014-2015

. During the period covered by this report three new complaints have
been received that fall within the scope of this Palicy.

. All three complaints related to allegations of fraudulent conduct. One
complaint was concluded when the person alleged to have made the
complaint denied doing so. The others proceeded to investigation.

. Of the complaints that proceeded to investigation one resulted in no
evidence being discovered to substantiate the complaint, but the second
resulted in a formal disciplinary investigation being undertaken,

. No complaints were carried over from 2013-2014.

5. Throughout the period of the report the dedicated whistle Blowing email

address has been monitored weekly. No emails have been received. A

test email has been sent to the address once a month to check it is still
working.

Page 25



Page 26

E. AWARENESS RAISING AND TRAINING

. The Council has taken the following steps to raise awareness amongst its

staff of the existence of the Policy and train Managars in its operation:

(a} A short guide explaining the Policy has been prepared and circuiated
to all members of staff, including Managers. Those who have access
to email received the guide electronically and hard copies were made
available to ali others. Approximately 6135 copies of the guide were
distributed in total, including approximately 3500 hard copies. The
total number of staff employed by the authority (excluding locally
employed school staff) is 5170. A sample of the guide is attached at
Appendix B.

(b} All members of staff with access to email were required to read the
Whistle Blowing Policy and confirm they understood it. This
requirement was enforced by Meta-compliance and applied to 2635
staff in total, including all Managers. 100% compliance was achieved.

(c) All Managers were reguired to complete an e-learning module aimed
at improving their ability to identify a whistle blowing complaint and
deal with it appropriately. Since lune 2015 this requirement has also
been enforced by Meta-compliance, A table showing the up to date
completion rates for the modyle per department is attached at
Appendix C.

(d} Other members of staff with access to email were also given an
opportunity to improve their understanding of the operation of the
policy by compieting the same module. However this was not made a
mandatory requirement as not all members of staff have access to
email. A table showing the up to date completion rates for the
module per department is attached at Appendix D.

(e} Following the annual review of the Poiicy by Standards Committee
every September an articie is placed in the Staff newslettar Y Gair')
regarding the policy and sent to all staff. A copy of the Article is

sftarhamM AF A awdn. -



{f} 2635 staff received the newsletter electronically and approximately
3500 hard copies were made available to staff, casual workers,
contractors and agency staff not on email.

(g} The same article is also placed in the departmental newsletters for
the Environment, Communities and Education and Children’s
Departments and circulated to all staff in those departments,

(h) An email was sent to all 2635 staff with access to email enclosing a
link to the revised policy. A copy of the email is attached at Appendix
F.

(i} Whistle Blowing Officers received a refresher briefing session on the
4" December 2015,

{i} Hugh James Solicitors delivered specialist training to HR Officers,
Legal Officers and Whistle Blowing Officers an the 16™ June 2015

(k} Posters have been developed and are placed at various locations
around Council buildings. A Copy of the poster is attached at
Appendix G

(I} The internal staff website (‘BRIAN') has a section dedicated to whistle
blowing where staff and managers can access the policy, short guide,

posters, the Public Sector Good Practice Guide and a link to the e-
learning module.

2. In addition to the above the Social Care and Housing Department (now
Department for Communities) provided bespoke training to 360 of its
own Team Managers/Supervisors in 2012/2013.

3. Although legal responsibility for developing and implementing whistle
blowing policies in relation to schools rests with individual governing
bodies, the Council has circulated the Welsh Government Guidance and
Model Policy to all schools in the County.

Page 27



Page 28

[=d

F. WALES AUDIT OFFICE REVIEW

Buring 2015 the Wales Audit Office conducted a review of the operation
of the Council’s Whistle blowing Policy as part of a national exercise. A
representative of the Wales Audit Office attended a meeting of the
Standards Committee in September 2014 to present their findings, a
copy of which are attached at Appendix H.

The findings of the Review were largely positive. All recommendations
contained within the report have been followed up and largely
impiemented

G. Future Action

Efforts to further improve completion rates in respect of the e-learning
module are continuing,

Consideration is being given to developing a training presentation for
elected members to improve their awareness of the policy and its
operation.

The Policy will continue to be reviewed annually and updated as and
when required to reflect changes in the law and guidance.

All staff will continue to receive an annual reminder of the policy via the
staff newsletter and an email to staff with access to that facility.

The Wales Audit Office will be conducting a Corporate Assessment of the
authority during the autumn which will include an examination of the

operation of the Policy. Any findings will be reported to the Standards
Committee.



1|'r1i:l -

QPFe,f::lr:c "a"

oo Sir Gar
Carmarthenshire
o

Uty Cos

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

Legal Protection for Workers with
Concerns at Work:

Empioyee; Casual Worker; Volunteer; Contractor; Agency Worker:
Consultant; County Councillor and Co-Opted Members

Page 29



Z|Page

Contents

WHat I8 tHIB ABOUET oot nsissiiassssiosssitsomsins tsstaseseosersssesseeoessseeeseesesssees e cseesesees s 3
What legal protection do | RAVET . ... eeeeeeesssss oo 3
Will | be protected if | make a public discloSUra? oo 3
What SUDPOME CAN | 8XPREIT ...ooo oo rasic e ceeceemsmasims oo seaseeeseerssmst s s teeseeoeeee st 4
What is the Council’s attitude to malpractice in the WOTkP ISR i s 4
W i DO T NOIIRMED o comoantinvssssisinssshins s T S s s st enc s 5
What can | blow the Whistle about?.....c........cuummmsuemssnsnreer e eereesseeeosesosss e eseoeese oo 5
How does the policy fit in with other Council 2L o e e &
What if | am already involved in another HR PrOCEUUre? ... ..ot crersst e et 7
How does this policy fit with the Member's Code of CONAUEE? ..oooovvevvmnoeoeeoeoooooooeo 7
What if | want to make anonymous Allegations? ... ... rn et T
I8 My identity kept CONfIdENtAl? ..........ocuieeeeeecesrumsinmsesrssereseeeresssessemesssssmsess e eeeeseseeeoeeoeeoee . T
b AR DL L L ———————————— 7
What happens after | have raised MY CONCBITIE? oot mirine et e s s e e et s 9
How will we deal with YOUr CONCEIMSE? .......ovcpureveeeeeeeessssesessessens oo eeeeeeeoeoeoees 10
What happens if my concerns ars not confirmed after an investigation? .........oo.coveen, i1
What happens if | am not happy with the Council's FEBRONSE T it i i 11
WO s responsible for this POIGYT ... wuwmerirecrmesioemeeeicommstssossssessoeeeeoeeeeseeees 12
Appendices:

WIS TLEBLOWING L OWOHRAIRT coussmssssasminiosmsissinsiss s bttt 13
WHISTLEBLOWING PROGEDURE FEEDBACK FORM wvc.e..ooeooeeeeoeeeeesoosoooooooo 14

Page 30



J|Paras
What is this about?

1. We (the ‘Council’) want to ensure a waerking environment where you {the ‘worker')
feel confident to raise any concerns about malpractice within the Council. Howsver
some people are reluctant to voice their concerns because of fears about possible
repercussions, or a feeling of disloyalty to colleagues. Some might consider it

easier to ignore the concern rather than report what may just be a suspicion of
malpractice.

2. Malpractice can include fraud, corruption, bribery, dishonesty, financial
irregularities, serious maladministration because of deliberate and improper
conduct, unethical activities (which may be of a criminal nature} and dangerous acts
or omissions which create a risk to health, safety or the environment, criminal
offences, or failure to comply with a legal or regulatory obligation.

= H Whistleblowing does not include mismanagement as this may arise from wealk
management, for example, rather than malpractice. Mismanagement may be deait
with under the Council's Capability Policy or Disciplinary Procedure, as appropriate.

4, This policy is intended to encourage and support you {o raise serious concerns
within the Council safely and with confidence and view this as 3 duty, rather than
overlooking the problem:, Whistle-blowing' refers to the disclosure, by workers, of
malpractice as well as illegal acts or omissions at work.

5. This policy will be applied consistently to everyone irrespective of race, colour,
nationality, ethnic or national origins, language, disability, religion. belief or non
belief, age, sex, gender reassignment, sexual orientation, parental, marital or civil
partnership status.

6. If you have any equality and diversity concerns in relation to the application of this
policy and procedure, please contact a member of the HR Team who will, if
necessary, ensure the policy/procedure is reviewed accordingly

What legal protection do | have?

Will | be protected if | make a public disclosure?

8. You are encouraged 1o raise your concerns via your line marﬁg@a\c&ﬂ}, the

Counrils dadiraterd Whictaohlswinm O Femee fnmes 3931, o o« o g o



4|Pape

(para.35). You can also seek advice from prescribed organisations independent of
the Councit regarding your concerns {para.49;. If you raise concems to someane
else other than those detailed within this procedure, e g. to the local paper,
depending on your disclosure and to whom it is made, you may not receive the legal
protection as a ‘whistleblower', You are therefore strongly advised to seek advice
before taking this action,

If you do take the matter outside the Council you shouild ensure that you do not
disclose any confidential information, e g. client case notes, given to you in

confidence, unless you have consent in writing from the person to whom the
information relates.

What support can | expect?

What is the Council's attitude to malpractice in the workplace?

11.

12,

13.
Page 32

We take any malpractice within the Council very seriously, as we are committed to

maintaining the highest standards of openness, probity and accountability. If you
have serious concerns about any aspect of the Council's work then vou are
encouraged and expected to come forward and voice those concerns.,

We understand that the decision to report a concern can be a difficult one to make,
not least because of the fear of reprisal from those responsible for the malpractice.
However, if you raise your concerns you will have nothing to fear as you will be daing

your duty to your employer, your colleagues and those to whom you provide a
service.

Harassment or victimisation of individuals, who have raised concerns, including
informal nrassiree will naf ho dnlarmead cea o L L .



S|Psge

14,

186.

16.

17.

We will not tolerate any attempt on the part of any worker, councillor, councit
contractor or supplier to apply any sanction or detriment to anyhody who has

reperted to the Council any serious and genuine concern that they may have about
apparent wrongdoing.

We will treat such conduct by an employee of the Courncil as a serious disciplinary

matter, and any such conduct by a Councillor s fiable to be reported as a breach of
the Members Code of Conduct,

Where any such conduct is undertaken by any contractor or supplier of the Council
we will regard that as a serious breach of contract.

Any such behaviour by any recipient of a Ceuncil service will be regarded as a
breach of the condition under which that service is provided.

Who can blow the whistle?

18.

18,

This policy applies to:

»  Workers for Carmarthenshire County Council including all emplovees,
centrally employed teachers and casual workers

» Employees of contractors warking for the Council on Council premises, for
example, agency staff, builders, drivers

» Those providing services under a contract or other agreement with the
Council in their own premises, for example care homes

» Voluntary workers working with the Council
o Consultants engaged by the Council
« County Councillors and Co-Opted Members

However, this palicy does not cover staff on the complement of locally managed
schools for which local arrangements exist. In the absence of local arrangements

school governing bodies are recommended to adopt the principles contained withir
this policy.

What can | blow the Whistle about?

20. You are encouraged to ‘blow the whistie’ where you reasonably believe malpractice

has taken place or is likely to take place, in one or more of the following six areas:

Criminal offences

Breach of legal obligation

Miscarriages of justice

Danger to the health and safety of an individual

Darmage to the environment Page 33



6|7ag

21.

22,

23,

You can raise serious concerns about any aspect of service provision or conduct of
officers or Members of the Council or others acting on behalf of the Council. The
event may already have occumred or it may be lkely to be committed in the future.

For exampie, your concerns might fall into one or more of the six areas of
malpractice describe above that:

= is patentially unlawful, fraudulent or corrupt

e might contraveng our Standing Orders, our Financial Procedure Rules, our
policies, codes of conduct or other legal obligations

could amount to improper conduct by an officer or a member
might fall belew established standards of practice

constitutes sexual, physical or emotional abuse

potentially endangers the health and safety of an individual
is causing, oris likely to cause, damage to the environment
might involve a miscarriage of justice

I8 an attempt to cover up any of the above examples

Whistle blowing is where a worker has a concern about danger or |llegality that has a
public interest aspect to it, and usually this is because it threatens others {e.g.
customers or the public). In contrast, a grievance is a dispute about your cwn
employment position and has no additional public interest dimension. A whistle
blowing issue could be entangled within a grievance or dignity at work allegation, in
which case the Council will need to consider the facts, assess the risks and decide
how to best deal with the issue (See Appendix A Whistleblowing Flowchart).

If your concerns fall outside the six areas illustrated above you will be advised of the
correct procedure to follow as described below.

How does the policy fit in with ather Council policies?

24,

25.

26,

Page 34"

The Whistle-blowing Policy is intended to cover major concerns that fall outside the
scope of other procedures and are in the public interest, i.e any serious
concerns that you have about any aspect of service provision or the conduct of

officers or Members of the Council or others acting on behalf of the Council can be
reported under this policy.

Congerns you may have about your own employment with the autharity, such as,
terms and conditions of employment, health & safety, work relations, new working

practices, working environment or organisational change should be raised through
the Grisvance procedure.

Congerns you may have about allegations of bullying, harassment, victimisation or
discrimination in work should be raised through the Dignity at Wark procedure.

This policy should be read in conjunction with the Council's Officer Coda nf Candiint



TIPage

may be developed from time to time and which will be drawn to the notice o
employees and others to whom this policy applies.

What if | am already involved in another HR procedure?

28. Any investigation into allegations of malpractice will not influence or be influenced by
any disciplinary, grievance, sickness, capabitiity, redundancy or any other procedures
that already affect you or may affect you in the future. On the other hand, any
disciplinary grievance, sickness, capability, redundancy or any other procedures tg
which you are already subject will not be halted as a result of raising concerns.

How does this policy fit with the Member's Code of Conduct?

29. The Council has no power to deal with Code of Conduct complaints against an
elected member. If you raise concerns about an alected member under this policy
you will be given the appropriate legal protection against any acts of detriment and
advised to make your concerns to the Public Services Ombudaman for Wales.
Alternatively the Monitoring Officer may decide to refer the matter to the
Ombudsman if it is considered appropriate to do so. Details of the Ombudsman’s
complaints process can be found at www.ombudsman-wales org.uk

What if | want to make anonymous allegations?

30. You can raise concerns anonymously but they are much less powerful and will be
considered under this policy at the discretion of the Mo itoring Officer. Remember,
the purpose of this policy is to protect and support you, and ensure that you can
raise your concerns with confidence, if you do not tell us who you are, it will be

much more difficult for us to look into the matter, to support and protect you, or to
give you feedback,

Is my identity kept confidential?

31, All disclosures will be treated in confidence and every effort will be made not to
reveal your identity if you so wish. It must be appreciated however that the
investigation process may reveal the source of the information and a formal
statement may be required from you as part of the evidence. If you are reguired to
give evidence in criminal or disciplinary proceedings we will arrange for you to
receive advice about the procedure. If disclosure of your identity becomes
unavoidable then the Council will support you through the process,

How do | raise a concern?

Page 35



8Page

32. You should not approach or accuse individuals directly or attempt to investigate the
matter yourself. Instead you should normally raise your concerns with your line

manager or if you prefer, one of the Council's dedicated Whistleblowing Officers, as
shown below:

Whistleblowing | Job Titlele-mail address Phore number

Officer =

Noelwyn Daniel | Performarnce & Information Manager 01267 224478

S NDaniel@carmarthenshire.gov.uk (extension 4476)

' Nigel J Evans Practice Support Manager 01267 2246094

nisvans@carmarthenshire.gov uk (exiension 4694)

Tracey Thomas | Principal Development Gfficer 01267 226202 ]
TrThomas@ecarmarthenshire.gov uk (extension 6202}

Stefan Smith Head of Children’s Services 01267 246530
SJSmith@carmarthenshire.aov.uk {extension 6530)

Nicola Wiliams | Business Support Manager 01269 580232 (extension
NiJWiliams@carmarthenshire gov.uk 32323

Alan Howells Business and Development Manager 01267 228140
aehowells@carmarthenshire.gov. uk (extension 5140)

Barbara E Safeguarding and Complaints Manager | 01267 228995

Williams BEVWilliams@carmarthenshire.aov. uk {extension 2995)

¥ You are welcome to contact me in Welsh or English

33. I you do not wish to raise your concerns with your line manager or one of the
Council's dedicated Whistleblowing Officers you can raise your concerns through the
Council's confidential Whistleblowing mailbox by emailing
CEWhistleBlowing@carmarthenshire.aov.uk. This mailbox is only viewed by the
Monitoring Officer and Deputy Monitering Officer in the Legal Depariment.

34. Alternatively, vou could contact one of the people listed below:

Mame Job Title/e-mail address Phone
number
Mark James | Chief Executive 01267 224111

mjames@carmarthenshire. gov.uk

Linda Rees- | Head of Administration and Law/Monitering Officer | 01267 224012

-

— rjon ar ire.gov.
larias @ Iriones@carmarthenshire_ gov. uk

Page 3 )Rcbert I ﬂ'ﬁﬂl Rﬁr'ﬂir‘:ﬂﬂ ManamarTMiom vhe Aomibaelon e, FLA A Mmoo oa



N Pare

Chris Moore | Head of Financial Services (including responsibility | 01267 224160
for proper administration of financial aifairs)
cmogie@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

Paul Assistant Chief Executive (People Management 01267 226123

[ and Performance)
Thomas ™ prthemas@carmarthenshire gov uk
Paul Stait Chair of Standards Committes 01550 777728
paul.stait@btinternet com
Phil Sexton Head of Audit, Risk and Procurement 267 226217

psexton@cammarthenshire. gov uk

Y Vou are welcome to contact me in Weish or English

35. You may seek the support of a companion, ie. a recegnised trade union official or
representative or a work colleague, to assist you in raising your goncerns andg
accompany you at any meeting through this procedure.

Contact names | Trades E-mail address Phone number
Union:
Mark Evans UNISON unisoncarms1@btconnect.com 01267 224042
Simon Dunn 01792 483915
Mark Preace Unite MAPreece@carmarthenshire gov.uk | 07718925787
Allan Card- Allan. Card@unitetheunion org 01646 680618
Caroline Green | GMB CGreen@carmarthenshire.gov uk 07772 579231
Althea Phillips Althea phillips@gmb.org.uk 07980 753125

36 If you would prefer to contact an outside organisation instead then a lisi of useful

contacts is given at paragraph 49 beiow. It is better to contact one of the external
organisations listed than to overlook your concerns,

What happens after | have raised my concerns?

37. The person you speak to and raise your concems will offer you some initial advice
and guidance and will normally become your "Contact Officer”. This will depend on
the nature of your concerns and could be someone else with your agreement. Your
Contact Officer will be the person with whom you will have all future contact in
respect of your coneern, and if an investigation takes place (see below) s/he will be
your be your primary contact for feedback,

38, We will need to get the details sat niit in wiritina ac enan an nﬂE’.ag.eu3z il



M[Pase

this for you instead and support you in expressing the background and history of
your concern, giving names, dates and places where possible and the reason why

you are particularly concerned about the situation. The earlier Your concerns are
expressed the easier it is to take action.

39. Although you are not expected to prove the truth of an allegation, you will need to

demonstrate to your Contact Officer that there are reasonable and sufficient grounds
for your concern.

How will we deal with your concerns?

40. Action taken by the Council will depend on the nature of the concem. The matiers

41.

42.

43.

44,

Page 38"

raised may be:

* investigated internally by an appropriate person in line with the Council’s
investigation Policy

« referred to the Police
+ referred to the Wales Audit Office
* the subject of an independent inquiry.

In order to protect individuals and the Council, initial enquiries will be made to decide
whether an investigation is appropriate and, if so, what form it should take.
Concerns or allegations which fall within the scope of specific procedures (for
example, child protection) will normally be referred for consideration under those

pracedures. Some concerns may be resclved by agreed action without the need for
investigation.

The Contact Officer will acknowledge your concern as soon as possible and contact
you within 14 calendar days of you raising your concemn to:

indicate how it is proposed to deal with the matter

give you an estimate of how long it may take to provide a finai response
tell you whether any initial enguiries have been made: and

inform you whether a full investigation will take place, and if not, why not.

The Contact Officer will give you as much feedback as possible, but sometimes
precise action will not be set out where this would infringe upon a duty of confidence

owed to the Council by someone else. Time estimates and limits may be amended
by agreement between you and the Contact Officer.

The frequency of contact between you and the Gontact Officer will depend upcn the
nature of the matters raised, the potential difficulties involved and the clarity of the

information provided. If necessary, the Contact Officer or the officer investigating the
matter will seek further information from you.

Wr}e_n__any meeting is arranged between you and the Contact Officer, vou have the



11|Page

46.

work to which the concern relates), Steps will be taken to minimise any difficulties
that you may experience as a result of raising a coneern. For instance, if you are

required to give evidence in criminal or disciplinary proceedings, we will arrange for
you to receive advice about the procedure.

We understand that you will need to be assured that the matter has been dealt with
properly and therefore, subject to legal constraints, your Contact Officer will inform
you of the outcome and confirm in writing within 14 calendar days of the conclusion
of the matter, i.e. whether your concerns have been upheld, what actions the Council
proposes to take (subject to confidentiality constraints) and timescales for
implementing, At that point you will be asked to complete a short questionnaire about
your experience of the whistle blowing procedure (See Appendix B). Your feedback
Is important to us, as it will help us to monitor the effectiveness of this policy.

What happens if my concerns are not confirmed after an investigation?

47.

48.

If, you raise a concern using through this policy but it is not confirmed by the
investigation, no action will be taken against you. If, however, an allegation is made
fivolously, maliciously or for personal gain. disciplinary action may be taken against
you in accordance with the Council's Disciplinary Procedure.

Remember, if you want to take independent advice at any stage, you may contact the
Independent charity Public Concern at Work (see paragraph 49 for details} Their

lawyers can give you free confidential advice at any stage about how to raise
concerns about serious malpractice at work,

What happens if | am not happy with the Council's response?

49.

This policy is intended to provide vou with a way fo raise your concerns within the
Council and we hope that you will be satisfied with the way that we deal with ihe
matter. However, in the event that the issue is not resclved to your satisfaction then
you are welcome to contact {(assuming that they have not previously been involved in
your case) Mr Mark James, the Council's Chief Executive or Mr Paul Stait, the
independent chair of our Standards Committee. Their contact details are given at
paragraph 34. As an alternative, we suggest the following possible contact points:

« The charitable organisation Public Concem at Work {See Appendix C).
Telephone 020 7404 6609 or e-malt info@pcaw.co.uk or
whistle@pcaw co.uk

e  Wales Audit Office, Public Interest Disclosure Helpline 01244 525980 or e-
mail whistleblowing@wan.gov.uk

The Public Services Ombudsman for Wales. Telephone 0300 790 0203

Dyfed-Powys Police. Telephone non-emergency 101 or e-mail
ContactCentre@Dyfed-Powys.prin_police. uk

* Health and Safety Executive. Telephone 0845 300 9R&ige 39




Care Standards Inspectorate for Wales. Telephone 01267 245160 or e-mail
cssiw. southwest@wales.gsi.gov. uk

Environment Agency Wales. Telephone 0800 807060

Equality & Human Rights Commission via the Equality and Advisory Support
Service. Telephone 0808 800 0082

Citizens Advice Bureau. Telephone 08444 77 20 20 or go to

www . cilizensadvice org uk

Relevant professional bodies or regulatory organisations

Your trade union

A tull list of prescribed persons can be found at:
htms:fﬁmwv.qcv.ukfgouernmentfgublicationsfhFowinq—the—whistle—Iist—nf—nrescribed—people-

and-bodies

Who is responsible for this policy?

50. Linda Rees-Jones, the Council's Monitoring Officer and Paul Thomas, Assistant
Chief Executive share overall responsibility for the maintenance and operation of this

policy, Linda Rees-Jones will keep a record of concerns raised and
a format that does not endanger

the outcomes (in
confidentiality} and will report to the Standards

Committee annually.

=1, This edition of the policy was adopted by the Council’s Standards Committee on 12"
September 2014. The policy is reviewed annually.

If you require this publication in an alternative format, such as
large print, Braille or on audiotape please telephone 01267

224651.

Page 40



| Pagu

Appendix A

WHISTLEBLOWING FLOWCHART

Warker raises
a mere senior

someone else

Whistleblowing Officer, This individual normally
becomes the 'Contact Officer'. but it can be

a concern with his/her line manager,
rmanager or a dedicated

with the worker's consent

individual and

The Contact Officer explores concerns with

or more of the & categories of protected disclosure
(see right hand box) and in the public interest

considers whether they fall within 1

if ves

fno

Protected disclosure:

= Criminal offences

+ Breach of legal
obligation

s Miscarriages of justic

= Danger of Health ang
safety of an individua

o Damage to the
srvironment

¢ Deliberately concealir
informatian about the
above

Notify the Monitoring Officer
in Administration and Law
that a whistleblowing
complaint has been made
and sesk advice on how to

If the concerns relate to a
worker's own employment
with the authority and is a
‘protected disclosure' the
principles of the
whistleblowing procedure is
be followed alongside the

proceed,

The concerns may be:

« Investigated internally in line with
the Council's Investigation Poligy

relevant HR Palicy and
procedure,

If the concarns relate to a
worker's own employment with
the authority and is not a
protected disclosure. the
individual should be advised tc
speak ta their line manager ir
line with the Council's Grievan
or Dignity at Work Policy, as
appropriate.

s Referred to the police E .
Referred to the Wales Audit Office M
Subject of n independent enquiry, ; .

e — ®

not, why not.

-

The Contact Officer will acknowledge the individual's
concerns and within 14 days:

indicate how the matter will be dealt with

give an estimated time for examining the concer
advise if there has been any initial enquiries;
confirm if a full investigation will take place. and

The Contact Officer will agree with the worker the type and fra
of investigation. Gonfirming data protection and confidential

quency of contact to feedback on the progres
ity restrictions in the process

F

=

The Contact Officer will notify the individual of the
outcome of the complaint within 14 calendar days of »

o —

The Contact Officer will notify the Monitoring
Officer the outcomeRaige:ékdo

laint. who will



14k E&

Appendix B
CONFIDENTIAL

WHISTLEBLOWING PROCEDURE FEEDBACK FORM

We have recently concluded an investigation into your concarns raised under the Council's
VWhistleblowing Palicy, We would welcome your feedback in relation to how the matter was
handled as this will assist us when dealing with future cases ard when reviewing the poiicy. Your
reply will be treated as confidential and will be retained by the Monitoring Officer.

1. Whao did you report your concern to? | Line Manager
E Whistleblowing Officer
N Trade Union Rep
M Other {please specify)

2. Were you satisfied with the way in which your concern was dealt with by that person?
I Yes
| No

3. If no, please explain why: . .....

4. Were you aware of the Whistleblowing Policy at the time you faised your concarn?
] Yes
)| Mo

5. If yes, where did you see a copy of the Whistleblowing Policy?

Line Manager
Whistleblowing Officar
Trade Union Rep
Intranet

Uther {please specify)

O 7 E= I |

8. Were you advised of how the cancern was being dealt with and the outcome?

4 Yes

7 Mo
il Chrerail, are you satisfied with the way your concern has been managed within the
Whistleblowing Policy? I Yas

= Mo

8. If ne, please explain why:

S



15fPazc

Appendix C
WHISTLEELOWING CASE STUDIES

The following case studies have been produced by Public Concern at Work (PCa\V), the
whistleblowing charity, which advises individuals on their whistleblowing dilemmas and
arganisations on their whistieblowing arrangements.

They are examples of whistleblowing concerns that individuals have raised in other
organisations

Case 1 — Fraud in the NHS
The Story

Tim coordinated training for an NHS Trust. He was concerned that his koss was hinng
a friend of his to deliver training on suspicious terms which were costing the Trust over
£20.000 a year. More courses were booked than were needad and the friend was
always paid when a course was cancelled. Although Tim asked his boss to get a credit
note as with other training contracts, he never did. Tim also couldr't understand why
the friend was paid for training sessions delivered by NHS staff. One day when the
boss was out. Tim saw the friend enter the boss' office and leave an envelope, His
suspicions aroused, Tim peeked inside and saw that it was filled with E20 notes,
amounting to some £2 000. Unsure what to do, Tim called Public Concemn at Work
Tim said his boss had lots of influence in the Trust and he was unsure who to tell,
particularly as the Trust was being restructured and none of the directors were SBCUre
in their posts. Tim also recognised that the cash in the envelope was so brazen that
there could be an innacent explanation.

What PCaW advised

PCaW advised Tim that the options were either to go to a director of the Trust or to the
NHS Counter-Fraud Unit. Either way, we advised Tim to stick to the facts and focus on
specific suspect amangements and payments. We also said he should avoid the
temptation to investigate the matter himself. Tim said he felt much better and would
decide what to do over the holiday he was about o take.

What happened

On his retum, Tim raised his concerns with a director at the Trustwho called in NHS
Counter Fraud. Tim’s suspicions were right. his boss and the trainer pleaded guilty to

stealing £9,000 from the NHS and each received 12 month jail terms suspended for
two years.

Case 2 - Involving a Requlator
The Story

lan worked as a safety inspector at an amusement park. He was responsibie for
maintaining one of the park's most popular rides. Every morning he would carry out a
safety inspection on the ride and, if it passed. he would sign the ride off as safe in the log.
During one inspection, he noticed that pins on the axles which kept the carriages stable
had become loose. lan thaught this presented a serious risk and notified his managers.

After what lan felt was not a thorough examination the Operations Manager cleared the
ride as safe. lan was unhappy with this and the next day, as no corrective action had been
taken, he again could not sign off the ride as safe. Again the OperaPag@143aar



16| Page

anxious that the weekend was coming up and that the park would be extremely busy, He
was also worried that if he pursued the issue any further he would be dismissed.

What PCaW advised

PCaWV advised lan that they could contact the Health and safety Executive (HSE) on his
behalf and relay the information that he had given us without giving his name. However, it
was more than likely that they would want to speak to him, if they felt that the situation was
potentially serious. PCaW said they would explain lan's anxieties about his position and
ask the HSE to bear this in mind. Although he was unsure whether he would speak to the
HSE, he asked us to make the initial contact. The HSE agreed that the situation sounded
potentially serious. However, they told PCaW that they would need to speak to lan. PCaW
explained lan’s fears that if the HSE suddenly tumed up to inspect this particular ride, his
employers would easily put two and two together and he would be out of a job. The HSE
assured us that if they were to carry out an inspection, it could be dane in such a way as
not to make lan’s role apparent. We went back to lan and, after talking things through, he
agreed that he would speak to the HSE.

What happened

Shortly afterwards the HSE made a 'routing’ visit fo the park during which they inspected
the ride, along with several other rides. As a result of the inspection, the ride was
suspended and the repairs were carried out,

Case 3 - Inappropriate Relations
The story
AM was a residential social worker in a children’s home. He grew increasingly

concerned that a colleague, PE, seemed to have developed a close relationship with a
12 year old girl in the home.

Colleagues and some of the children joked that PE was bacoming rather infatuated
with the girl. During a holiday trip, AM was alanmed that PE insisted that the girl should
travel in his car alone with him and that he spent a lot of time with her during the
haoliday. AM raised the issue with PE who just laughed it off. On retum from the
holiday, AM decided with a colleague that they should raise their concems discreetly
with the Couneil. They were told they had a duty to report them formally. When they
did, an investigation was launched and PE was given specidl leave and told to stay
away from the home. AM contacted us when he learned that the investigation had

finished and that PE would be returning to the home. He and collzagues were worried
that this was not the right decision.

What PCaW advised

PCal¥ advised him to contact the Council's head of child protection and explain his
concerns. However, we pointed out it was the Council's job to decide what action to
take and that what mattered was that the Council felt sure that PE was not a risk. We

also said that the fact that PE was returning to the heme did not mean that no action
had been taken.

What happened
Page 44§flf_r_tﬂscusslngl‘lfhe matter with the Council, AM felt happier with its decision as he

- .



/f/?)e'ﬂ’rx " @L‘t{%

Canllaw Ynghylch
Datgelu
Camarfer

Amddiffigniad Cfredthiol | Weitusy
sydd A phrﬂiwm un ¢ Craaitiy

e Sir Gar ;
Carmarthenshire

My ¢

R\ Page 45



Page 46

Rhagymadrodd

Llunivwyd y dafler hon yi ganllaw twr i balisi a
gweithdrefnau Datgelu Camarier y Cyngor. Os
haffech gael rhagor o wybadaeth dylech gwfeirio
aty Palisi Hawn v geilir cael golwg amp ary
Fewnnwyd, neu siarad d'ch Rheotwr Liinell, eich
Tim Adnoddau Dynol, Swyddag Datgelu
Camarfer, neu gynirychiolydd eich Undet Liafur.

Ni fyad y rhan fwyaf o weithwyr byth yn yorfod
wynebu'r penderfyniad anodd o ran datgelu ney
rel gwybad am gamarfer diftifol yn v gwaith,
ond g5 ceweh eich hunan mewn sefylifa o' fath,
dhdech fod yn ymwybadol fod gan y Cyngor
weithdrefnau i'ch diogelu. & dweud v guwir, mae'r
gweithdrefnaun ofynnol yn 8l Deddf Datgely er
Budd y Cyhoedd 1998,




Beth yw Datgelu Camarfer?

Datgelus Camartar yw'r term a ddefryddir |
ddisgrifie datgeliad gan weithiwr, n.y. gweithwyr
cyflogedig. gweithwyr achlysural, cynghornwyr
neil aelodau cyfetholediq, staff asiantzeth,
contractwyr neu wirfoddobayr, o
gamymddygiad vighvd 3 gweithredoede
anghyfreithlon neu esgeuluso ¥ ¥ giraith.

Beth yw agwedd y Cyngor at
gamymddygiad yn y gweithie?

Mod ¥ Polisi Datgelu Camarfer yw rhoi sylve
bryderon nad ydynt yn cael eu CWMEEsy gan
weithdrefnau cyflogaeth eraill ac sy*n faterian
butd y cyhoedd. Er enghiratfit, os oes germych
achwyniad ynghyleh eich cyflogaeth, dylech
ddefnyddio Gweithdrefn Ac wwyniadau'r Cyngor.
O vdyeh yn pryderu arm fwlia new aflonyddu v
¥ gwaith dylech ddefryddic’t Weithdrefn Urddas
¥n y Gweithle sydd gan y Cyngor. Fech anogir
chi i ddatgelu camarfer os credwch fod
camymddygiad wedi digwydd yn unrhyw raj oy
meysyed canlynol:

« Trhxzeddau

+ Mynd yn groes | raymedigaethay cyfreithicl

« Camweinyddu cyfiawnder

+ Peryglu iechyd a diogelweh unigolyn

 MiweidioT amgylchedd

» Yindrech bwriadel | gelu gwybodaeth am
unrhyw un ot enghreifftiau uchad,

Dylech ddarlleny Polisi hwn ary eyd #F Cad
Ymddygiad ar gyfer Swyddegian, ¥hghyd ag
urrhyw weithdrefnau adrannol ar gyfer Page 47

wrreebusadlio | riselme -



Page 48

Sut y byddaf yn cael fy niogelu os
byddaf yn "datgely camarfer"?

Mae'r Polisi Datgelu Camarfer ya fodd | chi leisio
eich pryderon yn gyfrinachol a heb ofni Lnrhyw
ertedigaeth, camwahaniaethu nac anfantais ¥
sgil hynmy.

Pam y dylwn Ddatgelu Camarfer?

Rodyrn yn ystyried pah achos o gamarfer o fewn
¥ Lyngor yn fater difrifal iawn, ac os oes gennyeh
bryderon difrifol am unrhyw agwedd ar waith v
Cyngor. fe'ch anogir | leisio’r pryderon byniny, vh
wir, mae disgwyl i chi wnegd,

Rhoddir sylw | chi'n syth ac mewn modd priodaol.
Drwy ddatgely camarfer gallach delingelu wich
sydweilhwyr, v cvhoedd, ac eraill, ac ar yrun
pryd, sicthau bod y Cyngor yn ymviybodol o'
brablem ac yri gallu delio & hi.

A phwy y gallaf gysylltu os oes gennyf
bryder difrifal?

Mi ddylech gyvhuddo neb na siarad ag unigglion
¥n uniengyrchol, na cheisio ymchwilio it mater
eich hun, Dylech godi eich pryderon fyda
Swyddog Datgelu Camarfer neu gvdag enwau
cyswlit eraill a nodir yo v Polisi.



A oes modd i mi leisio fy mhryder yn
ddienw?

Cewch fyneqi eich pryderon ¥ gdienw oned
maent yn llai grymus a chant eu hystyried yn £l
disgresivn y Swyddog Monitro,

Cofivech fod y Polisi Datgelu Camarfar ynoich
diogelu ac ith helpu i fynegi eich prderon yn
hwdarys,

Beth sy'n digwydd ar 81 i mi leisio fy
mhryderon?

Rhoddir cymaint o adborth & phasibl | chi
¥nghylch sut yr ymdrinnic &' mater, a hynimy fal
arfer gan v sawl v bu i chi feisio eich pryder
iddofiddi. Mae hyn yn amodol ar ddia geludata a
chyfrinachedd,

Beth sy'n digwydd os byddaf yn dal yn
anfodlon ar ymateb y Cyngor?

Bwriad y polisi hwn yw rhal modd | chi lsisio sich
pryderon o fewn y Cyngor, ac rycdyrn yn
gobeithioy byddwdh yr fodlon ar ¥ frordd v
byrdlddven yn ymdrin &'t mater. Fadd byninag, o8
na fyddweh yn fodlon mae croeso i chi oysyiitu A
Phrf Weithredwr y Cyngor, newa ¢ hadeirdd
Annibynnof y Pwyllgor Safonau, neu 3 mannau
cyswilit allanel a nedir yn v Polisr,

Page 49



Page 50

Mae'r Palisi Datgely Carnarfer yn cydnabod y
ddyletswydd sydd ar v Cynger i raj cymerth |
weithwyr sydd yn eu cael euhunain yn yr
amgylchiadau anedd hyn, Mae cymarth arall ar
gaal ar ffurf y Polisi Urddas yvn y Gesithle, y Polisi
Achwyniadau a7 Polisi Straen, neu'r
Gwasanaethau Cwnzela drwy'r Gwasanaeth
lechvd Galwedigasthol

| gael rhagor o wybodaeth, edrychweh
ar y fewnrwyd neu cysylltweh &
Chynrychiolydd eich Undeb Liafur neu §'r
Tim Adnoddau Dynol drwvy ffonio

01267 246184,

@ recycle

ailgylchu T 5% wedi’i ailgylchu



| Gozeps :

Slinllel saing 5ige 2713 lMapep Loyt 1 11105074 1627 Fage
=

gﬂ’ﬁf@(]@_ "B (ﬁ”

Whistleblowing
A Guide

Legal Profection for Wovkers
with Concerns af Work

oo Sir Gar
Carmarthenshire

f%ry-cu'i“&

oCTOBER
|

Page 51

d

AE&



GLEFE-whistheu sawifin Gaine 25 13 ] FappoLagsut 1 PR 1097 oo
—

Intreduction

This leaflet has been produced as 3 short guide
1o the Council's Whistleblowing Folicy and
procedures. If vou want mere information you
should refer to the full Policy which can be
viewed on the Intranet or speak to vour line
manager, Human Resources Team, 3
Whistleblowing Officer or Trade Unian
representative,

Mast employees will never be faced with the
difficuit decision of speaking up or reperting a
serious wrongdoing at work but if vou do find
yourself in this situation, you should be aware
that the Council has procedures in place to
protect you. This is, in fact a requivement of the
Pubdic Interest Disclosure Act 1998,

Page 52



QlZ7aT Whestlooluewing Suide 2073 0K aep Tavaat 1110

—ig -

What is Whistleblowing?

Whistleblowing is the term used to describe a
disclosure by a worker, e, amployees, casual

worker, Councillor or Co-opted member, dfgency
staff, contracters or velunteers, of malpractice as

well as illegal acts or ornission at weark.

What is the Council's attitude to
malpractice in the workplace?

The Whistleblowirig Policy's aim is to cover
concerns which fall outside the scope of other
employment procedures and are in the pubilic
interest, For example, if you have a grievance

refating to your emnployment, you should use the

LCouncil’s Grievance Procedure, If YO are

concerned about buliying or harassment in work

you should use the Council's Dhgnity at Work
Procedure. You are encouraged 10 'hicw the
whistle' if you believe malpractice has taken
place in any of the following areas:

* Crirningl offances

* Breach of legal obligation

« Miscarriage of justice

¢ Danger of the health ard safety of an
individual

* Damage to the emironmeant

* Delberate concealing of information about

arty of the above,

You should read the Policy in conjunction
with the Officers Code of Conduct and any
departmental procedures for Investigating
CONCerns

TEMA 1827 Fzany

_ rﬂ.

Page 53



-']LJ:":"?,'-".a"l.-'l|ix1|n?.‘:u|-3‘.';|r'_t; Suids 200 3 “Brp_ Lyt ) PR 162, 33;::'1

k-

How will | be protected if 1 “blow
the whistle”?

The Whistleblowing Policy allows YOu 1o express
your cancerns in confidence and without fear of
victimisation, subsequent discrimination or
disadvantage

Why should | Whistleb|ow?

We take any malpractice within the Council
very setiously and if you have serious concerns
aoout any aspect of the Council’s work then
You are encauraged and expected to come
forward and voice those concerns,

You will be dealt wizh promptly and properly,
By doing so, you could be protecting yaLr
i colleagues, the public and ofthars, whilst
*% ensuring that the Council is aware of the
problem and can deal with it

Wheo can | go to if | have a serious
cancern?

You should not approach or accuse individuals
directly or atterpt o investigate the matter
yourself, You sheuld rafse vour concemns with a
Whistleblowing Officer or ather contacts named
inthe Policy.,

Page 54



s o

Can | report my concern anonymously?

You can raise concerns anonymeusly but they
are less powerful and will be considered at the
discretion of the Monitoring Officer,

Remember the Whistleblowing Policy is there to

protect you and help vou raise your concerns
with canfidence,

What happens after | have reported my
cancerns?

You will be given as much feedback as possible
on how the matter is being dealt with usually by
the person you reported your concern. Subject
to data protection and confidentiality.

What happens if | am stifl not happy
with the Council’s response?

The Policy's aim is to give vou a way 1O rIise vour
cancerns within the Council and we hope that
yorl are satishied with how it is dealt with,
However, if you are not satisfied then you are
welcome to contact the Councilks Chief Executive
or the Independant Chair of the Standards
Comrittee or external contact points as
desaribed in the Policy.

GL 221 histlel bnnng Ga oa AMI_TEasp Aot 1A 2007 1627 Page s

L

Page 55



Page 56

The Whistle Blowing Policy recognises the
Coundil’s duty Lo provide suppart for employvees
wha find themselves in these difficult
circumstances, There are other support
mechanisms in place such as Dignity at Work,
Grievance and Stress policias or the Counselling
Services through the Occupational Health
Service,

Please see the intranet or contact your
Trade Union Representative or Human
Rescurces Team on 01267 246184 for
further information.

@ sy 75%recycled

Enpnigp DR - - Prls e Ldmanizi o presd
Codbah 0 es Has b pez=us sra a0 T35 recen oo

L3227 Whintleh oteiiug 5 opne 200 A_FSgap tavout 1 TR 1627 Pariels

[cihick



A}H\-’Q{ii L4 3 C !

SjuailLEdan EmEcE_m:w___,mm_:c:EEnuh

SEANIANT J2I0 0] Lo e 8desip o

BANSIET JUlEnpur usiileda SauunwLc

Eu:_tmn_mam:_.mzcxw _‘._H_mm_._hEmuﬁw_uL
1dnyrd o redan ainse w cn_umacmmﬁw

wawpedeg sannag (eaiuyss

Aepn o SUBINFuiuue |y HUipAul uawedag EEEEEW

wiswdoaag Hidouoag Suipnjse s edag S EAENISNT 160
D RAeg Mouoog Jo JagsuRL] 01 Jourd Jusmedan Banniang oo

“%ba Shg LA¥E %8Z Tl £59
Yoll el 461 5 S9N
.u_.mm
Yol | gt £51 ® Jjeay 'asen
Y08 c0l LTl %57 e [l B Uaipiyg 9 uon
%09 BS a6 > BINSID7 P LojEIa|
Yob6 L8 £6 Fol b gl 6 CELT]
Yl 8 il 0L , JuBLLt
%3l 0g Szl o, 5B BN
%001 06 06 SOANNDEXT
Yalt T 29 ¢ SBANNgDY T
{faojepuey) {(Morepuey)
suebeuryy pajaduwiog sieBeuey siaBeuey paediuon siabeuey
ajdoad ayed sJafieusy ajdoay oydoag ayey srebeuepy ajdoay
uogejduron o ajdoad op ‘ON E10 ] uonsjduwias sjdoad oy O e300 LIETRILEY
SLOZIB00L0 SLOEE0LD SLOTIBO/LO FPLOZiELIE0 PLOZILLIED FEDZILLICD

siafieuew Joy

$33e1 uonaldwos Bupies)-s Buime|gspsiga



iy

L
o

ﬁpp@rﬂm ’

Agp, 10 s

uzwdapnag a IW0wea] Sepn
Wawdamnag 2 ILUSUODT b0 a3ysuesy o s

2 mEEBE IR lIRdeg sagunuw

Walupedsg Buisnoy  tareay ‘Ble] ‘jeiaag
1P 01 Joud uguiedag JUNFST B Uiz uatay
H/FUIIIE |4 Fumpnpu) BB I WL A
Juzan et saom lag Baysag .
HU sl Rdag § anpnoaxg 3L
ud Juawipedag ShONIST far

A 8351 SE9Z %9} 6% GELZ
Yol GoE 9z6 ,Saiyun
am:
Y% e 248 ® _r__ﬁ_mmI.nwLm|u._
Yoty £5C 00g. el 4 0eG S MAIPILD '8 uoip
Yal¥ 26i 26 BMNSIDY 9 Lanesay
Yol 00Z BbE Yol iz FEE s20un
Soly OLZ it Lusiuug
Yol ¥e ove -S801en ey
Yl6 DEE 9re LSBAINDaxy |
. i} 8 Loe SEANNCExT

HE1E e eel pejajduros hes e sges paraiduwos
tHojje|thuoy o HELS ‘apn HeEls "op (Bl uenapdiuos o HEYS "ON HES "o R0 e
S10Z/20/20 SLazianii0 SLOZIRDI20 FLOZ/LL/ICO YLOZILLIEO Fi0ZibLiED

#HFis 1oy s;e) uonejdiuoa Bujuses-a Burmorgansiym

Page 58|



JUSTFORSIAEE o Sy GA

Y GA‘R Cakmarthe@hiI

S{AFE YR DHLE = i
e i

= o= - -3 ___l"J__ _= cr il il _J"._..._
MAE preswybwyr Sir Gaerfyrddin yn cael eu hannog i fynagi diddermen
E‘-:.PF‘EL'-_F':"S"L mewn band eany cyflymach i'w cymuned,
EYH BLU Eydd preswylwyr g busnesau vy siryn elwa o thaglen arlossel Su perfast—
. Cyflyrmu Cymris, sy'm werth mlliyriau o bunnoedd ac yndod # band eang |
[Feitr i ok rhaiy o Gymin,
Band eang Feibr yw'T genhadlasth nesat o fand eang - maa' awer cyffymach a mwy
dibynadwy, a0 mae'n defyeddio technolen vwahanal. Nid eyl broses o lawrhaytho
e-byst neu bori ar y rhyngrened yw'T unig fantaision,
Mae hefyd ynager busnesau  farchnad fedeang, gan wella sich wachayn gyflenrt a chvmpddy
symbyrchiant, el bod mwy o gylleosdd ar gasl, Mae Feibr aisaes ar gael mewt rhai thannat o
Lanelli trwy ragien draigl tasnachol BT. Byeld v gyfnewiafa hon ymi derbyi syl eto fel rhan o
raglen Suiper fast — Cyfhemu Cyrirw,
ydd ardaloedd Pencader o Chaerferddin vn gallu oyrchu’y guwasanasthnevwydd hwn o dae
¥ rhaglen yr ystod ris Medr 2014, gyda Helren, Liarybydder, Massyorugiayg, Pumsaint,
Felindre & Cross Hands yo dibm s mis Mawrth 2075, Mas? cyfnewidfeyeld araill | gaet eu
hinwchraddio ar o mis Mawrth 20715, Gallvech nadi eich diddordeh arwwelan: wawsuperfasl-
cymnu.corm, & byddwich yncael guybod pa fydd band sarng Feilr ar gaali chl.

fdae hifer o wahanal Ddarparwyr Gwasanswth Riymgrased 150s) ¥ Sminig y gwasanasth, felly '
gallweh dedewis y fargen ara i chi.

Pwll nofio Llanelli wedi ailagor

MWIAE piwil nofic Liamelfli ar agor bellach.

Misgedd ar & gorfod caL'r cyffeuster hwnoyny
ganalfan hamdden ym mis lanawr oherwydd
i to gasl ei ddlfrodi gan ¥ storrmydld, mae

pobl yn gally frwynhau vo y pwll nefio
Lipaith ata,

Maae't holl raglenni nofio yh weithredol arbyn
iy, ac mae aichebios yo cael e darbyn
nawtar gyfer y Rhaglen Dysgu Mofio,
*oogystal mae cymiiuniat ar waith ar gyfer
oweithaareddau neveydd, gan gynmeys pale deivr syn cas) e lansio YT
ciwedd yimls,

i qynharach y mis hwn cynbalived ponesbisos o weithgareddau wwnd am dedim yn Y
ganalfan bemdden i ddarhlu bod v pudl yo s lageor,

Hoedd mam yn gynilun atgyweirio sylwiddal 2 gostiodd £350,000 gan fod angen gosod to
newaydd 1,200 o fetrau sguwen ynghyd § gesod Fenestr newsydd ynvto a gwheud gwarhi
addast'r yoleuadan. M fedd v gwelliannad bn vn ehiwr arrdw iawn yn v cyfleuster vned
bobileagaidd hwn and bellach mae gany pedl nofio do cadam i1 dyfoeal,

MR ONR R ONSITSS MR R MR e e sm e e e B S e s N e g

; FYTHYNNOD GWYLIAU MOETHUS YNG NGHYMRU

Mee Y Gorau o Gymru yncynmnig lety gurplisag hunan ddsmar
4 8 55gren yng

i

I

i

; i
Coorstymogradt: 5% | starf, feulua Arindiaw. i

v syl s, PodWEh Y coa CSGE wirth afcheky I
Idderbyniefch gostyngiad i
waniebestofwaloseaukney Fonda 21650551 107 i
|

I

]

| Malioes  EmiiaMay ThSitwg Uricse Haceesier CafePhimbars SwdGos  Fabricriowms Monbs L By
Teparand ionBuichars BIP MiGrith Love Lettwn UK Bngand Sign The Ggtic Shegr Solarie £05
| TR A Ar gl n T e e o b i Saod

--—--—n-.-'----—-———-1-——-—*_————---



Gair gam y

Prif Weithredwr

#U nifer o newidiadau'n ddiweddar o
ran uwch-realwyr ¥ Cyngor, Mae Roger
dones, y Cyfarwydder Adnoddau, wed
gatas a gofynnmyd i Chiiz Mogre
yrgyrmired &' rél oylid statudel dres
dro hyd nes y bydeban yn hysbysebu'r
sy rywbiyd y fhyddyn nesal. Bydd
gan Chiis dasg anferth o ran gweithio ar
¥ gyflidel harfoliawn yn y tair blynedd
nesaf gyda chydweithwyr yn y Tim Rhaoli Corfforasthal a
Byvrrdd Gwelthredol y Cyngor.

Ar 20a'n Medl biydd Bruce Melernion, ein Cyfarwpddur Gofal
Cymdeithasal, lechyd a Thai v~ gadasl. Rydyrn wedi penadi
Jake Margan yn olyrydd idde ond ni fucd Jakie v dechzu tan
fis Tachwvedd folly bydd Stefan Semith yn wrnigyrnryd 3 rdiy
Cyfarwyddwer Statudel e nes y byvdd Jake yn cyracdid. Sefan
e Pennaeth ¥ awasansethau Plactar hyn o brpd a'n gweithinr
oyrmdeithasal uchal,

Gadawedd Chris Burns, Prif Withredwe Cynothiyol, Yy Cyngar
ar 1af Medii ymgymryd & 3l Frif Weithredwr Dros Dro Cyngor
Brwrdeislref Sincl Caarill, Mae Wandy Walters widii phenodin
BrFiveithredwr Cynorthwyel dros dro am Fed st Meeeddyn,
Bydd Wendy hefyd yr parhau'n Bennasth Datblygy
Economaide.

Y1 olaf, wrthirnd wsgrifenni: bn, sedyim veedi cael 200
acisianiau am swydd Cfanwyddwr y Gwasaraathay
Amaylcharldel, Bydd v evfweliadau v cagl eu cynnzl ar Tafa
2il Hydref, Mae Richar:] Warkman, alr exfarwyddwer presennal,
wizndl bod mar garedig 2 chwtanc | anos tan y Madaolig i ganiatay
iw alynyeld vingymiyd 3% sweedd. Hoffwn ddiolch i Richard am
el gymaorth &l hyblygrarydel yn hyn o beth,

Maet hol: nevidiadau byn yn digeswdd ar adeg heriol jawen i
Mae'n rvaid Lo ystyried sety gallwn wineld arbedion/uriadau
gt £45 miliwn e ein cyllidabat yn ystod ¥ tair blvneda
nasaf, Mae wvn i eitnriadol o anodd ac mas'r Tim Rheoii
Corftoraethad o't Penasthlaid Gwasanaeth yn gweithn | nodi
suty bycelwn yr lielhay, dilew, aildrelh, silflachorizethy,
cyriyddu incwnac ati, Bydd hye yn effoittio ar bab rhan o hok
gwasanaath oherwydd maint y toriadall ' gyllidel v ydyrn v1
e derbyr gan Lywodraeth Cyrry, Br mad v cyllicebay
Lhywodraetts Cymru v caed ey lleihau rmae wedi penderfynu
bioc w GIG yn flaenarlzeth ac felly mae'n rhaic Haibau Cyllidabaly
Liywodraeth Laler miwyr cvllida’t GIG. Byda cynigion ar qyfer
wwtcgl 2 wesznasthaw, ailerefnu 't Cyngor, Heihaty
grasanacthau ac ystyried lle E::}.rdd_wn ¥n gl v ackedion sydd
eu hangen yn dechra thod ' gobag vo ystod e hydnaf,
ddariheiaeth calff hyn effaith ar staffio. Ong reyf veedi
atzeffaT holl tweh-swyddegion bod yi rhaid inng wnayd
popeth y gallwn | nsgol diswdedo gorfodol. ¥ carn olaf ol! Fyecded
hyn. Rydyrn aisces wedi dosbarthu gwybodasth.am y Cyrllun
lerfynu CyRiogacth yn Wirfoddol a chyflecedd | fynd ynhan-
arser, ned gael ymddealiad hyblyg, Rhaid dychweled unrhyw
frregiannay o ddiddordel: erbyn 30 Madi,

Mae' fordd v mae't Celarvyddeeyr o' Penasthiald Gwasanaach
a lawer o rechwy araill wediyratel 't hor fon by v beer vp
Hestun calondid imi. Mae iawer iy o waith i'w wneud one
ney'n ey s w biydches: yn dioe drapddi gystal, e nad gwell,
ra chytff eyhoeddus aeall wng Mglwerin.

A

Page 60 ...

01 F 355 1ahawr

e e
I )

b < |'|'.-r|||:.-_ it FYFL e e pliabaarn ar -1y

Fibdon- £ 3t ',iﬁt_':fllif""| e gyrrinnd
Brtel Y paageal eiede] g

AR T PR T R L T A |

Bancicu Cyfarpar Trydanol ac Flectronig Gwastra

EELLACH mae dau fane syomadod ar gael argyfer ailgylchi
#ieny

+ digueyddiacizL: oot dry oyl y el | godi anan e
AT lﬁﬁtEMMﬁﬁwwwﬁu feyrhiad

Beth yw Llinell Gofal?

Froniweh heddiw i



SUST FOR STAFF

Y GAIR

STREE TH UG

CARMARTHENSHIRE residents are being encouraged to register their
?_‘-ﬂﬁr:ﬁl interest in superfast broadband for their communiy.
EYMRU Residents and businessas in the county are set to banefit fram the
+ picneering multimillion pound programme Supesfast Cymin, brirging
nmatiomnd e e broadband toWales
Fibre broadband is the rext genaration of broadbarned - much faster fore reliaole and it

usesa differenit cechnology, Downloading emails of intarnet browsing maore guickly aren't
the anly Berehts.

Italso opens businesses up to aworldwide marker, IMmproving your supply chals and
incyaasing productivicy affering grester opportunities, FHbra is alregdy aveilabile in some
areas of Lkarelli through BT's commercial rellout, This exchangs will be re-visited under tha
Superfas] Cymrg programme.

Areas of Pencader and Carmarthern will be able to gocess this new service under the
Fragramitie during Seplember 2014, with Hebron, Ulanybydder, Massvoru g, Purnpsaint,
Velindre and Cross Hands following in March 2015, The remaining exchanges are scheduled
o be Upgradad postdarch 2015 Register your inlerest o the Superfast Cyrinrr websito
wovnve. s perfast-cymirienm, You will e informed when fibre breadband beceimes available
to yorli. There arc a twmber of different Intermizt Service Prosidars (ISP offering the sorvice,
56 vou can choose the best deal far you,

Swimming Pool Now Open!

LLAMELL swirmtning pool is

NoW Gpen.,

Staff car enjoy rnaking waves again
atthe lersure centre facilioy manths
after it was fovced to close its doars
i Jarary dus o damage oits
roof caused by tha storms. Al
SWIFMETHING Erogrammnes are up

and runnlng and bookings are

nizet Beitg talen for the Learn to
Swirn Eregramme.

Mews actlvities ara also planned
with Water Polo beleg launched this month.
Afun packed, free activity weekend was held at the leisure contre earlier thes month ta
celedirgte ts opening, The £350K repair work was a majcr schems with 1,200s0 metres of
racfing 1o be replaced induding mew skylights and ligit ng alteraticns.

There will net be much to ses at this immensely popula facility by weay of irmprovennar s
B the swimming pool has a sacure roof far the future,

Best of Wales offer exclusive 4 and 5* self catering
holiday accommodation in Wales,
Siscount. 3% discount for staff family and frisnds
tnteroote U3GE5when boaking to renaive your diacaunt,
Visitwnanne nestobwalescook orcall 1653571 107

e i e g 05 _ = _—

i Frabfoels. Em:ur_r Tha S U;-un Harvester m”ﬂ.ﬁh; Sz togy Tab(k.H;us‘D Wanks - LSty
oger and 5ot Buschars 108 BicGreth Lire Letters UK Singand Sein The OptieShon Solarfd LS
1 AT L e G A 0y e S0 | T e v T e e v st e il

—-----u—---u.-__—-.——-—---—----------




Direct from {hie

Chief Executive

THERE have been a numberof
changes recenily to the senior
manggemant of the Council. Reger
lones, the Director of Ressurces has
left and on an interim basis, Chris
Pioore has been asked to take on the
statutory finance rale untii we gs out
ta advert sorme time next year. Chris
will hava a big job to do working on A R el e
the very challenging budget for the P J'M ;

next three years with colleagues at Corporate Mana gernent L gy

Team and the Council's Executive Board,

O 20th Seprambern, Bruce Melesnon, our Directar of Social Care,
bealrh and Housing deaves. We have appointed lake Morgan as
fis succasson, put ake will not start antil Nevernber, so Srefan
Smith weil] step into the Slatutory Directar's rale until Jake's
zriival. Stefan is curently Head of hildren's Sorviees and aur

hf"l_l!” IFE#EAT AL

“Heaiwer, Hais s s pnapn WTEp k24 rid R R P e =g Namm
rrinst sanior soclal worker o
Chris Burs, Assiscant Chiet Bxecutive le*t the council an 15t Trie pekne
September to rzke up the role of Ihterin Crisf Executive a¢ gl '
Caerpnilly County Burough Coungl, Wendy Walters has been A0t Ty diop Bk primany e
aupointed Assiztant Chisf Executive an an nterim basis for up P T e Bl el 1T a0 the segens atior
toayrear, Wencywill aiso continue to be Head of Economic
Levelopment.
Firally, as write thiswe have recejyed 20 applicaticns for the
post of Diraclor of Environmantal Senvces, Interiew will take PHERE are e Do miohile WEEE hianiks for tharecvcling of small
place on T=tand Ind Octeber. Bichard Workmmar, aur TUFFEMRt eloctrical ter

Direcron has very kindly agreed to stay o unt] Christraas b Fhyekie (g e il ety
allowr his suzressor to ba appointed into past, My tharks to
Rizhard, for his assiszance and fexibility .0 this respect,

Alk these changes take place ata vary chaillengng time for us.
We mave to look 4t making sowlngsiouts of £9%en from cur
budgsts over the next thiee vears, This I5 exveptionally difficult
and tne Corporate Managsment Team and Heads of Service ano
workdeg voident'fy how we reduce, withdrew, restraciure,
re-prioritise, increase income ete, Mo area of service vl be
untoached given the scale of cuts in the budget we rezceive from
Wizish Government. Whilst thoir butgets are not being reduced
thay have determined that the MHS is 2 ariarity and therefore
local Gavernrment budgets havs 1o be reguces to fund the NS
Froposals fo cutting services, restructuring the Councl,
downsizing 2nd locking at whers we will find the savings “ﬂ’ﬁ M m m e
nesded will begin to emerge during the autumie. Thareis no : %wlﬁ ﬁw :WMW

doubt that this will have an impact an sta ng. But | hawve

rerm nded all senior oficors that we muss de 2l we can 10 gwoid
compulsory redundancies. This will be 5 very last resort, We
hava already circulated informat on about the Val urtary
Severance Scherne and opportunities for guing pait-time, or
tasing fexlble retirement, Any expressions of nteres: must ba How can people donats to your cause®

retumec oy 30 feplember. 'E‘ﬁﬁ*m Mﬁ&wmw;mm Mmmwmmm
l'am ancouraged so far by the way Diractors and Heads af w%’&ar = Cibwraan et S0

Servicas ang many other managers have bear respending to
this chalfenge. Thera is ruch maores wok ta do, buttam
optimristic that we will navigate ous way 17 rough this as well,
i not betzer Ihan athay public badies In Wales.

Careline

th:'r is Carellne?

Page 6”2



/E sencl i< L

POLISI DIWYGIEDIG YNGHYLCH DATGELU CAMARFER
Diogelwch Cyfreithiol | Weithwyr sydd 3 Phryderon yn y Gwaith

Chi, y gweithiwr, sydd yn y sefylifa orau i nedi camarfer vn ¥ Cyngor ond efallai eich
bad yn amharod i leisio eich pryderon. Mae'r polisi hwn wed ddiweddary ' nod yw

eich annog | fynegi pryderon difrifol er budd vy cyhoedd a hynny yn y Cyngor, yn
hyderus.

Fe'ch anogir | ddatgelu camarfer os ydych yn credu bod camarfer wedi digwydd yn
unrhyw un o'r meysydd canlynol;

* Tramgwyddau troseddol

* Torn rhwymedigaeth gyfreithiol

* Camweinyddu cyfiawnder

* Peryglu iechyd a dicgehwch unigolyn

« Niwed I'r amgylchedd

* Datgelu gwybodaeth am unrhyw un o'y pwyntiau uchod yn fwriadof

Cofiwch, diben y polisi hwn yw eich diogelu os ydych yn gorfod rhoi gwybod am
bryder difrifal ynghylch gwasanasth y maer Cyngor yn ei ddamparu neu ynghyich
ymddygiad gweithiwr arall, cynghorydd reu unigolyn arall sy'n gweithredu ar ran y
Cyngor.

Os ydych yn dymuno siarad & rhywun yn gyfrinachol am fater o'r fath, cysylitwch &'ch
Swyddog Datgelu Camarfer adrannol, a'ch Swyddog Ymgynghorol {(Adnoddau
Dynol} neu & chynrychiolydd eich Undeb Liafur. Galiweh gael gair ag unigolyn a
enwyd, yn eich dewis iaith, ac mae Swyddogion sy'n medru'r Gymraeg wedi'u
rhestru yn y polisi.

Al

Edrychwch am y symbal hwn &

Mae rhagor o wybodaeth ar gael yn adran Adnoddau Dynal y Ilyfrgell dogfennau ar
BRIAN neu drwy gysylitu &'ch rheolwr llinell,

REVISED WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY
Legal Protection for Workers with Concems at Work

As an employee you are in the best position to recognise maipractice within the
Council but maybe reluctant to voice your concerns. This policy has been updated

and is intended te encourage you to raise serious congcerns that are in the public
interest within the Council with confidence.

You are encouraged to 'blow the whistle' if you believe malpractice has taken place
in any of the following areas: Page 6



Page 64

* Miscarriage of justice

= Danger of the health and safety of an individual

* Damage to the environment

* Deliberate concealing of information ahout any of the above.

Remember, this Palicy is there to protect you if you find yourself having to report a
serious concern about a service the Council provides or the conduct of another
employee, councillor or other individual acting for the Council,

If you want to speak to someone in confidence about such an issue, please contact
your Departmental Whistleblowing Officer, HR Agvisor or Trade Union
representative. You can speak to a named individual in your ianguage of choice and

22

Welsh speaking Officers are named within the Policy. Look out for this symbol e

Further information can be found in the HR section of the Document Library on
BRIAN or via your line manager



(5'5 nadﬁ:ﬁhg{} s:f«; _s#;e r;rfanf sx?ufihar;}lgehh 3 Rydym yn ymroddedig i ymdrir
ewn eb 1I'ch pryaer, mynnwceh air a'c . ;

rheolwr Ilinell neu'r swyddog(ion) ¥b g}#fﬂ.f{}l, yn agored ac yn

dynodedig isod: broffesiynol ag unrhyw bryder

dilys a fynegir.
Ni allwn wneud hyn heb eich hely

chi. Os bydd rhywbeth yn eich po
yn'y gwaith, dywedwch wrthym,

Mae'r Polisi Datgelu Cam-arfer ar gael yn y liyfrgell
ddooferinau ar RRIAN ' :



If you are unsure how to procesd with your
concern, please discuss with your line
manager or the designated officer(s) below:

Page: 66‘ L, Y A R R S £ o

We are committed to deali
responsibly, openly and
professionally with any
genuine concerns raised.
We cannet do this without yo
help, if something at work is

troubling you, please tell us.

.



102 AN — SIM3T] )i

Page 67

[lounon AJunon adiysusyuew

TREARAD T IRAH W LI s

M0 LT BIT

.\a SOEA 104 [B18Uas) JouL
_ PALUAS loupalAo pofml;



it LLLL o = B T

sapl|s
Buimoljo} ey} uc pasuewwns ase sBulpul JNO pue SEaIR JO 1BqUINU B 1B Pay0o| apd

s1amolgansIiym pue Bumoiqapsiyan Hoddns aoe(d u) ale 1ey) siuswabueie

pue Adljod BuImo[geiSIyMA §,|12unoD 8yl 1B payoo| Malass BUIMOIgSNISIUA SIUL
S8IpNIS JUBWIUIBAOL) |BDOT

8]l Jo auo se BuIMo|qafISIYAA JO Mairal B Bunjeuspun Afusung si 9ol0) 1IPNY SOIEM

punoJibyoeg pue }xajuo’

Page 68



s T

1200 Buloluop syl AQ paulelulEWw

uolsian [BULIOJUI Ug SI pJ028) JUSLIND 3] 1SIXa 10U S30p pIosad |BJjUs) ‘jewlo] e

pue abus|ieys e surewsal

$§9098 Jsindwioo Jnoypm yels Buiyoral pue Aoljod oy} Jo ssausieme yels padjosya

1ou sey ) ybnouyle suesiul sy uo s|qe|ieae Adljod au] apew sey |1punc) syt
'SI0)|IounQD) ©) 3|qe|eae
apew usaq jou sey Buiuien sy pue mo| Ajaaile|al 84 sa1el uone[dwod Ing padojaasp
Buteq si Buiuies) suow pue pelealo uasg sey Buimojge|isiuym uo Buiulels syioads
Augnros sanoaya Buipnjouw
‘aoljoeld Jejdwsxs swos Ylim ‘poob s Buimo|qa|jsiym O] JUSIJIWLLOD [IpUncD ay)
‘2alloddns pue 9s1Ru0d ‘painonils ([em ‘poof s1 Aoljod BuimogasIuAn s.JIounoD syl

:35NE28C UCISN|JU0ID SIY) 0} SWIBD ;)

Jayuin} sjuswabueue usyibuans [im Buiuies} pue sses0.

‘Aoljod U] sassauyjeam ||ews AIDA JO Jaquinu e passalppe JI ‘ao1joel
lejdwaxe swos yum ‘poob ale Juswobuesie BUuIMOGaJISIUM [1B19A

e 69

Aewwng




!l\:mi.l-.{-'-:-*i“

saoueasub Woll suIsaUoD
Buimolgspsiym arenualaylp o} sajdwexs res|d
papiaoid aa1ape Juspusdapur 10} s|ig1ep 108Iuon
'SI9010 BUIMOIGOSIUA PRLUEN A
puUB Xoqui [lew-2 pajeaipsg A
‘Pailjuapl sjoBIUND Jo abuel apIAA
awsbeusw
aul| Jo apISINO SWIS2U02 38I.1 0] 3|aY
sbenbBugj
Buunsseas pue salpoddns - sjAls Ajpusuy-Jesn
psjuasald ||am pur asIouDn

741014

LIgoUuod & Buleay laquiaidag Ul eapIWWIO) splepue}s o] pajuasald

u1 Jabeuey sury ay) Jo Butaq si uoisiaal taypny e ‘{sabueyo uonesibs)

2|01 8y} 480 voisnuoo IYbig spaliel) £10z7 Jequwaidasg ul pamainal Aoljod

aaluoddns pue as19u02 ‘painions
l1oMm ‘poob s1 Ao1jod BuImO|gaISIYAA S.|1ounog ay |

L

Page 70



suosiad paquosald

|[euls)xa Jo )s1| saisuayaldiuco
B apnjoul Jou $80(]
slamo|gajisiym |enusiod

Beb, o] joe Aew uoneWLOUI
SSC[28IP 0] JUSSUDD U3LIM
Buiuielqo Jnoge Juswalelg

e T TR T EF T e TR

Page 71

suonebae

snoljew Bunews Jol uopoe Aleuldiosig
Slamo|ga|Isiym

1sulebe sjesudss suqiyold Apmidxg
SIOMO|ga|IsSIym

poddns pue jo8104d 0} a1eU) 1 ) s9els Ales|)
SULI22U0D SNoOWAUCUE Ylm sUoII)LL| sayluapi
pasiel aq 0] SLISUGD SNOWAUCUE 10) SMO||Y
papiacld SjoEjU0D [BuIRIXS Jo abury

$2INS0J2SIP [BUIDIXS
Buiew jo ysu sy} jo uoneue|dxe Jes|

aaloddns pue asipuo9 ‘painionis
l12m ‘poob si Ad1jod Buimojqa|isiyap s,11ounod ayj



Inaf el EAWR A B0 TF et B

(ssweljswi) paloadxa Ypm) yoeqpas)
Buipiaord 1o} syuswisBueie saisusysidwon
uswiabeuew

aUl| Jo SpISING P3IBPISUOD Uk $UIasU0Y)
1yBislano

Ue UYum siofjiounoy jje Buipiaoid ‘pounon
liN4 0} spodas winl U Yaiym ‘eapiuwon
spiepuelg 0} spodal dnousy Bulsalg
sjuswabuelre pue Aoijod maiaal

01 Aljenuue s1aaw yoym dnole) Bulisslg
Bumolgsfisiupa Ag pepiacid Auilnios aaoayg

BulopBuosm Buuoub uey) Jayel

AlshowAuoue Jo/pue Ajjeuiaixs

LWIsJuod e Duisiel Inoge jusawiale)s
noldxae ue Bupoe) si AJj0d

ssaooid sy} o) papiaocid

S| aouspuadapul moy pue

uonebnsaaul jeuwsslul Aue a1e|dwoo

pinom oym ‘seuinbus |enul lebeuepy Aoljod HH
sayeW oym Ule|dxs — uoneolue|o AQ psulBjutew pue sAIN0SX T JSIYD JUEBISISSY
salinbal ainpaocold uonebissau| x pue JaoiyQ Buuoliucpy ayy Ag peumoO

Aunnias sansaye Buipnjaui ‘aanoead Jejdwiaxa swos
U3im ‘pool s1 Buimolqaisiym o} JUSWWtLoD [19Unos oy |

Page 72



e N

s3aloijod Jayjo Jepun

Ylim 1jBap 2g ABLU SUIasU02
SWOS 1BY] $8A8|j2] |IoUnos)
ay} pue (Winuue Jad g-7) Mol
A|aallE|al 1 peploos) SUISDU0D
Burmogaisiym Jo Jaguinu ay |
SWIaoU09 jo plosal

[eJiUa0 ‘[Bewld0) oU S| alay |

1

P 1

e bt s g i L

{Je2140 Buuocliucy ay} EB

Allewloyur) pajos||o2 s1 uopeulIol peojasen S

©
suonebnsaaul xe|dwoo lo) sicreBlsaauin

palpainae ()} 40 |joed e sasn [IBUNoD
pajpuBY SJB SUIRIU0D MOY Ul 8dUsplyuco
Hejs ssasse 1ounos) auy; disy o1 Aojod
BuimolgelisIysA 8L} O} pappe Wio) yaeqpas4
slsgam (MYDd) YO 18 Lisouey

211Qn4d syl smsinal Jabeuelp Asljod HH
[I2UROY [Ny PUB 83)JILULLIOY) SpIepuUR)S

0} papodal uay) aJe yoiym ‘selloglno pue
seley) ‘su1souod uo suodal dnoig Buleslg
dnoucy Buusalg

Buimolgeisiyaa Ag Ajlenuue pemslasl Asijod

Auinuos aanosaye Buipnjoul ‘esnoead Jejdwaxs swos
yum ‘poob si BuImo|gajisiym 0 JUSLjiLLIoD [I2unog ay |

#

Fd



saoualaylp

ay) ayensn|| digy o] sejdwexa Apnis

aseo Buipiroid ‘seoueasiib pue BUIMo|ga[ISIym
usamlaq salenuaiayip Apesio buiulely sy
sBuileuqg Jaysaljal

eia Buiuiel) s)yepdn Jusda) paAladal aAey

BuIMmoIgaiSIyMm Aorjod Buimolgeisiym sy) Ui paynuapl sjdosd

Buueaos Ajjeayioads Buluies) siabeueLl
3AI80a1 JOU ap SIO|IPUN0D % ajdoad Joj Buiuiely Jayunj Buidojsaap
AuaLing aie pue Buipuny painaas sAey HH

lounoy ey} Aq 1 payoo
Buisq si SIY} 'mo| 318 ajnpowl siabeuell ||e Joj
Buluies|-a jo sajel uonsdwoy x GUIMmo|gafisIiym uo ajnpoll Bululesy buluies|-g

S10]|12UN0YD

0} 3|qe|IeA. apewl Uaaq jou sey Buluies) ay) pue mo| AjpAl
ale ssjel uonsjdwos Ing padojsaap Bulaq si Buiuies} alo
pue pajests Usag sey Buimojgajisiym uo Buuiedy sy1oed

Page 74



bl L bt b by b\ in by |

Page 75

B104 Y3 pue sunajing

H ‘suoidweyn suoneounwwo) ‘spIing

Bummogeisiyan ‘siaisod — adeid Ul sawayos

JO Jaquinu e Ind saey pue SUOTEIILUNWILLIOD

maiAa) dnoio) Buliesls BuImo|gaIsSItAA @Y L

$$8008

SSOUSIBME [JBIS 1O [9A] 12Ul Jnoynm saaioldws ssoy) bulyoes

ay} yoay2 o} Ajejelodioo Buiylue ui abusjieyo ay Jo aseme si [louUnoD 8y
BUOP JOU SEY [PUNo) 8y ] 1BUEBNUI BY] UO B)qissanor Ajisea sI A21|0d

A

abuajjeys e sulewal ssas9e Jendwon Jnoypm yeys Buiyoses
pue Asijod a3 Jo ssoualeME LE)S peyoayd jou sey 1 ybnouy)
‘Jauesjul ayj uo ajqejieAe A31jod 3y}l apew SBY [I2UN0Y) 3y L



sSauaBME JJels BUDOaLD JO SPoUIBLU MBIABY

sjuswsbuelte jelausb pue

solepdn syl Jo aleme Jels Bupjew 1oy AB3jels suoneaunuIwod e dojgasq
Buiwiesy Buime|gensium Jayuny Buidojasap uo papels Apeale yiom sy Bunajdwos —
pue ‘Buimoigapsiym uo Ajesiucads siagwelwl paosja Buuiey -
‘ginpow Buiieal-a Hunsixa ayl 1o ucnechwod syj Bugowosd -

U0 Buiuies) snoo

SUJI=22UQ0D mc_..._..___.o_o_m:m_c? JO pi0d3l [BJIUSD ‘|BWIO) B S)eal))
SIeMO|g-a1siym |enuiod Bef o] 108 Luss0p )i JeYl 08 UOIJELLIOU
[eNUSpLUOD 9S0/9SIp 0] JUSSU0D uajlim Builelqo o] Siajal JBY) JUSLIS}RIS DUl MalAal  —
pue 'BuiopBucim Buoubl Luey) Jayiel swsaues Buisiel Inoge Joldxa aq  —
‘suanebiyseall Joy sunpsoosd sy Auepp -
‘S19011J0 10BIUCD puk siabeuew JO saj0l ayj AJlep  —

Jayuny Aoijod Buimolgajisiyaa 2yl Buiuayibuang

juswanoidul] Joj sjesodo.td

Page 76



Jsuonsanp

Ry W g e B AR

Page 77




Page 78



Agenda Iltem 6

STANDARDS COMMITTEE
11™ SEPTEMBER 2015

CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLIANCE BY TOWN AND
COMMUNITY COUNCILLORS

Recommendations / key decisions required:
To consider the report

Reasons:
The subject matter of the report falls within the remit of the Committee

Scrutiny Committee recommendations / comments:

Not applicable

Exec Board Decision Required NO

Council Decision Required NO

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER PORTFOLIO HOLDER:- Clir E Dole (Leader)
Clir M Stephens

Directorate

Chief Executives

Name of Head of Service: Designations:

Linda Rees-Jones Head of Administration & Law | Tel Nos.

Report Author: 01267 224018
Robert Edgecombe Acting Legal Services Manager | E Mail Addresses:

RJEdgeco@carmarthenshire.gov.
uk.

wor Sip Gar EICH CYNGOrRarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire ) ]
PS¢ YOUR counciLdoitonline
“ty Cos™® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Page 79



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
STANDARDS COMMITTEE
11"" SEPTEMBER 2015

CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLIANCE BY TOWN AND COMMUNITY COUNCILLORS

As part of its role in monitoring Code compliance by Town and Community Councillors, the
Committee received a report at its December 2014 meeting detailing the levels of code training
received, declarations of interest made, dispensation requests granted and Code complaints
registered in respect of Town and Community Councils within the County.

However not all Town and Community Council’s responded to requests for information and
therefore there were significant gaps in the report.

The Committee therefore requested that a further report be presented to its September 2015

meeting and that a formal Freedom of Information Request be sent to all Town and Community
Councils within the County.

That information request was submitted in April 2015. A detailed summary of the information
provided is attached to this report.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? YES

wor Sip Gar EICH CYNGOrRarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire ) ]
A Your counciLdoitonline
“ty Cos™® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Page 80



IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this
report :

Signed: Linda Rees Jones Head of Administration and Law

Policy, Crime | Legal Finance ICT Risk Staffing Physical
& Disorder Management | Implications Assets
and Issues

Equalities

NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE

wor Sip Gar EICH CYNGOrRarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire ) ]
A Your counciLdoitonline
“ty Cos™® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Page 81



CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed:

Linda Rees Jones

Head of Administration and Law

( Please specify the outcomes of consultations undertaken where they arise against the following headings)

1.

Scrutiny Committee
Not applicable

Local Member(s)
Not applicable

Community / Town Council
Not applicable

Relevant Partners
Not applicable

Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations

Not applicable

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW

Title of Document File Ref No.

Locations that the papers are available for public inspection

Legal file DPSC-136

Legal Services, County Hall

P N
omeor Sir Gar B

Carmarthenshire

(o gN
U, o

Page 82

EICH CYNGORaArleinamdani
www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

YOUR counciLdoitonline
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



Code of Conduct Compliance

o
c
—_ gl
2 g
2 — e
< e +—
[ Q o<
£ 3 £x
£ o N
m L c
o € 2
°) 52
=z Z <
ST0Z/Y10¢ suonkeieppaq
(<)} o % — m % ~ o < by =
ST0Z/PT0T Siuiejdwo) apo)
o o — o| o o o o o o o
ST0Z/bT0Z suonesuadsiq
o o o o| o o o o o o o
ST0Z/¥10T 8ululel] apo) a
o o o o~ = — — o o o o
suoneue|rd
¥10Z/€T02 nesepaq " » o o W ol _ N B R
¥102/£102 siutejdwo) apo)
o o o o| o o o o o o o
t10Z/€10¢C suonesuadsiq
() o o o| o o o o o o o
¥10Z/€10¢ Sututea| apo) 5
N 3] < N = o ~ ~ o I~ >
suoneue|rd
€102/210¢ nnesepaq o 5 ° o W al B N S N
ET0Z/2T0T Ssiutejdwo) jo apo)
© o o o| ol o| o o o o o
€102/2102 suonesuadsiq
Ln o — ol ol o o o o o o
€102/2102 Suluies] apo) _
o o (@] o = o ~ o o < o
c c c
32 2 w
5 P 2 ol =
£ z c ©
3 I o 3 @ 9]
W = + O © P = e —
‘S = = ° pras w
o 3 < = > ) S o € =
oo c 7 W © rud = ©
o b3 € 2 c 1S © O £ c 3
S 8 £l g e & s = =2 szl &
< < < o o O O S O I S

Page 83



8 abed

o
=)
8 2 g
9 8 g 3 2 8| s 2l 2| §| w
o Q =) P =] o P - o o < -
N N ~ o N (N - o N (N - o
S~ > ~N S~ ~ o ~ ~ = o ~N
N N 2 ~ () o) ~ ~ < o ~ ~
- b} c o~ -l pm [0) - pm <
o =) = o o o o b= o Q 2 d
N N K o N N c o N ~ c Q
(1)) (7} o (o] oY) [7,) i N 0o [7,) — o~
c c £ » c c S " c c 8 «
= .0 o < = .0 o c = .0 Q <
= b= Q .0 = b= £ .0 = b= £ .0
o a - B o a o =] o a o B
AR AR A A -1
_ 3 2l 3| T 3 gl 3| T 3 =3 3 S
Council S P S a S B S a S P S a Comments
Cynwyl Gaeo ND ND ND 0 ND ND ND [ND - no data provided
Dyffryn Cennen 0 7 7 0 7 2 3
Eglwys Gymyn 0 0 1 0 1 1 0 |Clerk also attended training
Y - Number of Clirs. trained
Gorslas Y 11 Y 0 7 Y 15 |not known
Henllan Fallteg 1 2 0 0 6 0 4
Kidwelly Town 9 29 2 16 65 0 78
Members have discussed the
Laugharne Town 1 2 0 0 4 0 5 Code on several occasions
Llanarthne 2 6 2 0 4 2 5
Llanboidy 0 0 2 0 4 0 1
Y - number of cllrs. trained
Llanddarog Y 1 Y 0 1 Y 7 [not known
Llanddeusant 0 0 0 0 1 0 1




Gg abed

[15]
S
8 2 g
9 8] g 32 8| s 2l 2| §| w
o Q =) P =] o P - o o < -
N (N ~N o N N - o N N - o
~ S~ ~ ~ SN o ~ ~ S~ o ~
N N 2 ~ () o) ~ ~ < o ~ ~
- b} c o~ - pm () - b <
o =) = o o o o b= o Q 2 pa
N N K o N N c o N ~ c Q
(1)) (7} o (o] oY) [7,) i N 0o [7,) t— o~
c c £ » c c S " c c 8 @
= .0 o < = .0 o c 't .0 o <
= = Qo .0 = = £ 2 = = € .0
o a et B o a o =1 o a o B
AR AR A AR
3 a2l 3| T 3 gl 3| T 3 3 3 S
Council S P S a S P S a S P S a Comments
Llanddowror &
Llanmiloe 1 2 2 0 3 1
Llandeilo Town 2 26 2 20 0 28
Training materials given to all
Llandovery Town 0 15 1 11 1 12 |members
Llandybie 0 30 0 35 2 22
Llandyfaelog 1 8 2 13 0 11
Llanedi ND ND ND ND ND ND |ND - no data provided
Llanegwad 0 1 1 7 0 12
Llanelli Rural 13 12 0 27 1 51
Y - Number of Clirs. trained
Llanelli Town Y 27 Y 33 Y 25 [not known
Llanfair ar y Bryn 1 1 0 0 2 1
Llanfihangel
Aberbythych 2 8 0 5 0 5
Code complaint resulted in
Llanfihangel ar Arth 0 2 1 5 3 1 ([suspension of cllr.




Comments

Clerk attended training and

cascaded info. to members

ST0Z/v10T suoneseaq

11

ND |ND - no data provided

ND |ND - no data provided

26

24

4

ST0Z/¥102 siuejdwo) apo)

0

0

ST0¢/T0Z suonesuadsiq

10

ST0Z/v10Z Sulutes) 9po)

ND

ND

v10Z/€10C suoneuepaq

10

ND

ND

36

¥10Z/€10T Sutejdwo) apo)

¥10Z/€T0C suonesuadsiq

¥102/€10C Sulules] apo)

ND

€T02/2102 suoneuepaqg

ND

10

ND

19

£102/210¢ shuiedwo) jo apo)

€10¢/210¢ suonesuadsiqg

€102/2T0Z 3ulules] 3pod

ND

ND

Council

Llanfihangel Rhos y

Corn

Llanfynydd

Llangadog

Llangain

Llangathen

Llangeler

Llangennech

Llangyndeyrn

Llangunnor

Llangynin

Llangynog

Page 86




/8 abed

o
S
8 2 g
] a S o ) = Q < a o Q n
o Q =) o o o P P =] o < o
N (N ~ o N o - o N o - o
~ = * N ~ - o N >~ ) o N
o~ N 2 ~ ) ) ~ ~ < it ~ ~
- b c ~ - pm [3o) - pm) <t
o o - - o o 4] - o o 4] -
N N o =) N N e =) N N ] o
w | 2| 2|9 w| 2| 35 |« w | 2 | 5 | N
E o g c £ () - c £ () a c
£ =] S o £ =] £ o £ =] £ o
o a - =] o a o B o a o =]
= < ) g = g o g = g o g
3 2 | 5| 3 3 g2 | 3 |3 S o 3 S
Council S B S a S P S a S P S a Comments
Members received copies of
Llanllawddog 0 0 0 8 1 0 0 6 0 0 0 2 |Code Training presentation
Llanllwni ND 0 0 ND ND 0 0 ND ND 0 0 ND |ND - no data provided
Llannon 4 0 0 8 1 0 0 8 0 0 0 3
Llanpumsaint 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0
Same Clerk as Llanwrda and
Llansadwrn 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 Meidrim
Llansawel ND 0 0 ND ND 0 0 ND ND 0 0 ND |ND - no data provided
Llansteffan &
Llanybri 0 0 40 1 0 0 45 0 0 1 38
Llanwinio 0 0 0 3 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 4
Same Clerk as Llansadwrn and
Llanwrda 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 Meidrim
Llanybydder 1 0 0 2 1 0 0 3 0 0 0 2
Llanycrwys 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 3




88 abed

o
S
8 2 g
m f"'n ﬁ [} 3 3 Q < ﬂ 3 Q "
o Q =) o o o P P =] o < o
N (N ~ o N o - o N o - o
~ SN ~ ~ SN o ~ ~ S~ o ~
N N 2 ~ ) o) ~ ~ < o ~ ~
- b c ~ - p [3o) - b <t
o o - - o o 4] - o o 4] -
N N o =) N N e =) N N ] o
o0 ) o N o0 v = N 00 n = N
c g £ n c c © 7 c c i) n
. c . (=} [-% c . o [} c
s | 5| S| 8 S|l % | E| 8 - £ | S
o a - =] o a o B o a o =]
© © ©
3 2 | 5| 3 3 g2 | 3|3 S o 3 S
Council S B S a S P S a S P S a Comments
Manordeilo &
Salem 0 0 0 6 1 0 0 10 0 0 0 6
Same Clerk as Llanwrda and
Meidrim 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Llansadwrn
Myddfai 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Newcastle Emlyn Number of clirs. trained
Town Y 0 0 29 2 0 0 18 Y 0 0 27 |unknown (Y)
Newchurch &
Merthyr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2
Pembrey & Burry
Port Town 15 0 0 26 1 2 1 7 1 0 0 4
Pencarreg 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Code discussed by members
Pendine 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 on several occasions
Pontyberem ND 0 0 ND ND 0 0 ND ND 0 0 ND |No data provided (ND)




Comments

ST0Z/¥10¢ suoneieppaq

19

17

ND ([No data provided (ND)

ST0Z/PT0T Siuiejdwo) apo)

0

ST102/bT0Z suonesuadsiq

ST0Z/v10C Sululel] apo)

¥T02Z/€T0C suonesedaq

16

20

ND

¥T0Z/€10C Ssuejdwo) apo)

t¥10Z/€10¢C suonesuadsiq

¥102/€102 Sulutes| 9po)

€102/210¢ suone.epaqg

12

14

ND

£102/210Z stutejdwo) J0 3po)

€102/2102 suonesuadsiq

€102/210Z 8ulules] 3pod

0

Council

Quarter Bach

St. Clears Town

St. Ishmael

Talley

Trelech a'r Betws

Trimsaran

Whitland Town

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 90



Agenda Item 7

STANDARDS COMMITTEE
11™ SEPTEMBER 2015

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES REPORT
2014/2015

Recommendations / key decisions required:
To consider the report

Reasons:
The subject matter of the report falls within the remit of the Committee

Scrutiny Committee recommendations / comments:

Not applicable

Exec Board Decision Required NO

Council Decision Required NO

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER PORTFOLIO HOLDER:- ClIr E Dole (Leader)
Directorate

Chief Executives

Name of Head of Service: Designations:

Linda Rees-Jones Head of Administration & Law | Tel Nos.

Report Author: 01267 224018
Robert Edgecombe Acting Legal Services Manager | E Mail Addresses:

RJEdgeco@carmarthenshire.gov.
uk.

wor Sip Gar EICH CYNGOrRarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire ) ]
PS¢ YOUR counciLdoitonline
“ty Cos™® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Page 91



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
STANDARDS COMMITTEE
11"" SEPTEMBER 2015

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES REPORT 2014/2015

The Public Services Ombudsman for Wales has published his annual report for 2014/2015

The Ombudsman considers complaints of maladministration and service failure against public bodies
and allegations against members of local authorities that they have broken the Members Code of
Conduct.

The key points are;

1.

The overall number of maladministration complaints against public authorities rose by 7%
compared to an 8% increase the previous year.

Local authorities continue to account for the largest proportion of complaints, the number of
complaints recorded against them rising by 5% compared to a 9.5% increase the previous year.
Of the 2,015 maladministration complaints concluded, only 428 were taken forward and only
349 of these (82%) resulted in the complaint being upheld or partially upheld.

A total of 12 Public Interest Reports were issued, one of which related to Carmarthenshire
County Council (see page 49 of the Annual Report). This matter related to events that took
place in 2012 and the Ombudsman’s report was presented to Full Council on the 24" February
2015.

A total of 58 Maladministration complaints relating the Carmarthenshire County Council were
determined (the 4™ highest)

Overall there has been a 1% increase in Code of Conduct complaints compared to a 22%
decrease in 2013/2014.

Code complaints against County Councillors have risen 13% whilst complaints against
Community Councillors fell by 8%

Of the 239 Code complaints concluded during the year, only 34 cases were taken to
investigation. Of these in 17 cases there was no evidence of breach, in 8 cases no action was
needed, 1 case was referred to the Adjudication Panel for Wales and 8 referred to local
Standards Committees.

A total of 15 Code complaints relating to County Councillors and Town and Community
Councillors from Carmarthenshire were concluded (the 2" highest)

The committee is requested to consider the attached report

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? YES

wor Sip Gar EICH CYNGOrRarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire ) ]
o <2 YOUR counciLdoitonline
“ty Cos™® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Page 92



IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this
report :

Signed: Linda Rees Jones Head of Administration and Law

Policy, Crime | Legal Finance ICT Risk Staffing Physical
& Disorder Management | Implications Assets
and Issues

Equalities

NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE

wor Sip Gar EICH CYNGOrRarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire ) ]
A Your counciLdoitonline
“ty Cos™® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Page 93



CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed: Linda Rees Jones Head of Administration and Law

( Please specify the outcomes of consultations undertaken where they arise against the following headings)
1. Scrutiny Committee
Not applicable

2. Local Member(s)
Not applicable

3. Community / Town Council
Not applicable

4. Relevant Partners
Not applicable

5. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations
Not applicable

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW

Title of Document File Ref No. | Locations that the papers are available for public inspection
Legal file DPSC-136 | Legal Services, County Hall
Legal file CCCN-061 | Legal Services, County Hall

wor Sip Gar EICH CYNGOrRarleinamdani
orsor Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire ) ]
A YOUR counciLdoitonline
“ty Cos™® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Page 94



mbudsman

SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS

MAKING COMPLAINTS SERVE WALES

ANNUAL REFORT 2C14/15






mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

The Annual Report 2014./15

of

The Public Services Ombudsman for Wales

Laid before the National Assembly for Wales
under paragraph 14 of Schedule 1
of the Public Services Ombudsman (Wales) Act 2005






Annual Report 201415 mbudsman

| PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

1 Introduction by the Ombudsman 5
2 My Role as Public Services Ombudsman for Wales 8
3 The Complaints Service 10

- Public Body complaints 13

- Code of Conduct complaints 16
4 |mproving Public Service Delivery 20
5 Governance and Accountability 22
6 Other Activities 24
7 Equality Matters 30
Annex A Public Body Complaints: Public Interest Reports Case Summaries 39
Annex B Public Body Complaints: Statistical Breakdown of Outcomes by Public Body 51

Annex C  Code of Conduct Complaints: Statistical Breakdown of Outcomes by Local Authority 63







1. Introduction by the Ombudsman mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

Nick Bennett Margaret Griffiths
Ombudsman Acting Ombudsman
(from August 2014) (to July 2014)

| am delighted to introduce this report for the year 2014/15. It is the ninth Annual Report of the Public
Services Ombudsman for Wales (PSOW) since the inception of the office in April 2006. The year
201415 was of course a year of transition. | took up my appointment as Ombudsman in August 2014,
succeeding Professor Margaret Griffiths who was the Acting Ombudsman to July 2014, having been

in that role from December 2013. | wish to pay tribute to Professor Griffiths for so ably taking on the
interim role as Ombudsman as well as for her assistance and support to me during the transition phase.
| valued this highly.

Innovation

On taking up my role, one of the first things that struck me was the stark reality that the volume of
increases in enquiries and complaints made to this office reported in previous Annual Report was
continuing into 2014./15. Significant was the fact that during July 2014, the month before | took up my
post, the office received both the highest number of enquiries and the highest number of complaints
since the office came into existence in April 2006. At the end of the year the picture was that,
compared with 2013/14 there had been a 7% increase in all contacts (that is, enquiries, public body
complaints, and complaints about the conduct of members of local authorities).

Taking a look back over the past five years, complaints about NHS bodies (which includes health
boards, GPs, Dentists) have risen by 126%. Whilst not painting such a dramatic picture, it should

not go unremarked that complaints about county/county borough councils are also on the rise.
Again comparing the position to five years ago, there has been a 10% increase. Greater detail on the
complaints made to my office during 201415 can be found at section 3 of this report.

This upward trend in contacts to my office has been a matter of concern to me. Whilst admirable work
has been undertaken in recent years to streamline the office’s complaints handling processes, | have
been eager that we should seek to identify areas for further efficiency gains. | therefore instigated an
innovation project, which took place over the space of some three months. This engaged all staff. The
work resulted in over 30 agreed action points. The majority of these related to internal changes, with

a key focus being on reinforcing and gathering greater momentum in relation to becoming a ‘paperless
office’. We have taken the view that this approach will enable us to gain further efficiencies in relation

&



to the practicalities of dealing with casework documents. However, there will also be implications

for bodies within jurisdiction too and | was able to announce in February the fact that we would be
changing our approach so that we would request records in electronic format only, but that associated
with this | would be reducing the timescales allowed for bodies in jurisdiction to provide me with

the records requested. It is also intended to increase use of Skype/videoconferencing to conduct
interviews across Wales.

Turning the Curve

In addition to the changes emanating from the innovation work, | am firmly of the view that we

should engage more directly with county/county borough councils and health boards with the aim

of promoting improvements in their approaches to complaint handling. These two sectors account

for 83% of the complaints that | receive. Essentially the service | provide is reactive. That is, | have

to respond to the enquiries and complaints that arrive at my office. However, | am keen that more
people’s grievances are properly addressed and resolved at local level, providing earlier resolution for
complainants and in turn reducing the level of complaints arriving at my door. The current upward
trajectory of complaints to my office cannot be sustained indefinitely without additional resource and |
am anxious that we should act proactively to turn the curve.

Furthermore, | am of the view that we also need to do more in relation to having a greater wider
impact in relation to improving public service delivery and contributing to public policy in Wales,
beyond seeking improvement in the place where the problem occurred. | believe that beyond the
‘common good' resulting from this, it will also ultimately lead to fewer complaints coming to the office.
As part of this programme, | will be placing greater emphasis on my office’s own data gathering in
relation to the complaints we receive in the office, so that we can derive more detailed statistical data
and hence intelligence in relation to the trends and patterns of these.

| have also given considerable thought as to how my staffing resource should be structured in order

to enable me to achieve those things that | see as my priorities. Having arrived at my conclusions, |
presented my proposals to my staff during March 2015. | will be seeking to implement those changes in
the early part of 2015/16.

Assembly Inquiry into the Powers of the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales

Another aspect that | gave early attention to upon taking up my role as Ombudsman was to consider
whether the PSOW Act required review, particularly since it is now ten years old. | took the advantage
as part of my ‘induction” as Ombudsman to ascertain what best practice looked like amongst colleague
ombudsmen, particularly within the UK but also further afield. Having considered what | found, | arrived
at the view that whilst the PSOW Act remained well regarded within the ombudsman community,
there was a danger that Wales would be left behind as regards developments taking place in other
nations and countries. Furthermore, | believe it is important to future proof the Act to enable me, and
my successors, to be able to respond to the challenges we know Wales will face with the future ageing
society.

.



mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

Building on the work of the previous Ombudsman, Peter Tyndall, | therefore put forward a number of
proposals to the National Assembly for Wales in relation to areas where | believed that the current
Act could be extended and strengthened. | was exceptionally pleased that the Assembly’s Finance
Committee agreed to undertake an inquiry into the possibility of extending the powers of the Public
Services Ombudsman for Wales. | was delighted that so many stakeholder organisations took the
time and trouble to provide evidence. This ranged from bodies in jurisdiction and their representative
organisations, the Commissioners in Wales, as well as colleague Ombudsmen in other parts of the
United Kingdom and academic experts in the field. At the time of writing, we await the Finance
Committee’s decision as to whether to recommend the introduction of a Bill in relation to the
PSOW'’s powers.

Thanks

Finally, | wish to thank the staff of my office. Upheaval is never easy, but their professionalism and
dedication is of the highest order.

ALKy

Nick Bennett
Ombudsman

&




2. My Role as the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales

As Ombudsman, | have two specific roles. The first is to consider complaints about public service
providers in Wales; the second role is to consider complaints that members of local authorities have
broken the Code of Conduct. | am independent of all government bodies and the service that | provide
is free of charge.

Complaints about public service providers

Under the PSOW Act 2005, | consider complaints about bodies which, generally, are those that provide
public services where responsibility for their provision has been devolved to Wales. The types of
bodies | can look into include:

» local government (both county and community councils);

» the National Health Service (including GPs and dentists);

» registered social landlords (housing associations);

» and the Welsh Government, together with its sponsored bodies.

Since 1 November 2014, | am also able to consider complaints about privately arranged or funded social
care and palliative care services.

When considering complaints, | look to see whether people have been treated unfairly or
inconsiderately, or have received a bad service through some fault on the part of the service provider.
Attention will also be given to whether the service provider has acted in accordance with the law and
its own policies. If a complaint is upheld | will recommend appropriate redress. The main approach
taken when recommending redress is, where possible, to put the complainant (or the person who has
suffered the injustice) back to the position they would have been in if the problem had not occurred.
Furthermore, if from the investigation | see evidence of a systemic weakness, then recommendations
will be made with the aim of reducing the likelihood of others being similarly affected in future.

Code of Conduct Complaints

Under the provisions of Part Ill of the Local Government Act 2000 and also relevant Orders made
by the National Assembly for Wales under that Act, | consider complaints that members of local
authorities have breached their authority’s Code of Conduct. | can consider complaints about the
behaviour of members of:

» county and county borough councils
» community councils

» fire authorities

» national park authorities and

» police and crime panels.

All these authorities have a code of conduct which sets out in detail how members must follow
recognised principles of behaviour in public life.

°_



mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

If a county councillor wishes to make a complaint about another county councillor within their own
authority, then | expect them to first of all make their complaint to that authority’s Monitoring Officer,
as it may be possible to resolve the matter locally without my involvement.

Vision, Values and Strategic Aims

Strategic Aim 1. Strategic Aim 2:
To offer a service where excellent customer To deliver a high quality complaints handling
care is at the forefront of all we do, where service, which considers and determines

we work to raise awareness of complaints thoroughly but
our service and do our best proportionately, and
to make it accessible conveys decisions

to all and easy Values clearly.

to use.

Accessibility Vision Fairness

To put things right for users
of public services and to
drive improvement in those
services and in standards in
public life using the learning

from the complaints

Being a good we consider.

employer Learning

Strategic Aim 4: Effectiveness

To continue to analyse

and improve the efficiency Strategic Aim 3:
and effectiveness of our governance,

business processes and support functions, To use the knowledge gained from
to further demonstrate transparency and our investigations to contribute to
ensure the best use of the public money improved public service delivery and
entrusted to us. to inform public policy.

&




3. The Complaints Service

3 470 Total Complaints
) i 2,296
Enquiries
7%increase on 2013/14 6%increase on 2013/14

Complaints about a Public Body

2,065 complaints
7% increase on 2013 /14 ‘

938
County 769
Council NHS body
Complaints Complaints
5% increase 1% increase

These account

for 83% of all

Public Body
complaints

Code of Conduct
231 Complaints

1% increase on 2013/14

§ 125 106 -
County Community
Councillors Councillors
Complaints Complaints
13% increase 8% decrease
| These account |
for 100% of all
Code of Conduct
complaints

F’_



mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

Public Body complaints outcomes 2014/15

Total cases closed: 2,015

N™

CRSSS

raen Souvwal S

349

complaints upheld
P held of these were
partly uphe public interest

Code of Conduct complaints outcomes 2014/15

Total Code of Conduct
cases closed: 239

CASeS No evidence of a breach No action
e Ao \eesiEEhen of the Code of Conduct needed
_—
N
_—
N
N
_—
-
N
_—
-
N
N
Referred to the Referred to
Adjudication Panel a standards
for Wales committee

v



Caseload overview

Annual Reports of previous years have drawn attention to the volume of increases in enquiries and
complaints to this office. The year 2014,/15 saw that trend continue. There was a 7% increase in all
contacts (that is, enquiries, public body complaints, and complaints about the conduct of members of
local authorities) and casting an eye over the past five years, there has been a 104% increase.

Total Enquiries and Complaints received by year

6,000 -
23]
226
5,000 - 201
1932 2,065
4,000 [ 1790

412

3000 277 1,605 B Enquiries

2,000 1425 Public Body Complaints

1,000 . I Code of Conduct Complaints
0

2010/1 201112 2012/13 201314 2014/15

Enquiries

The office dealt with 3,470 enquiries during 2014/15, compared with 3,234 the previous year an increase
of 7%.

Enquiries are contacts made by potential complainants asking about the service provided, which do
not, in the end, result in a formal complaint being made to me. At this point of first contact, we will act
in various ways, such as:

» advise people how to make a complaint to me where people have not already complained to the
relevant public body, we will advise them appropriately, sending their complaint directly to that body
on their behalf if that is their wish

» where the matter is outside my jurisdiction, direct the enquirer to the appropriate organisation able
to help them.

» where appropriate, the Complaints Advice Team also seeks to resolve a problem at enquiry stage
without taking the matter forward to the stage of a formal complaint.

We are pleased that despite the continued increase in enquiries to this office we have been able to
provide a prompt service at the frontline. We set ourselves the target of answering our main line
reception calls within 30 seconds in 95% of cases. There were 6,307 main line calls to the office during
201415 and 99% of these were answered within this timescale, which clearly is better than the target
we set ourselves.

.



mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

Public Body Complaints

The number of complaints received about public bodies continues to increase. We received 2,065 such
complaints in 2015/16 compared with 1,932 in 2013/14 (a 7% increase).

Sectoral breakdown of complaints

County councils have always generated the most complaints to this office. This is not surprising given
the wide range of services they provide. For a number of years complaints received about county
councils had held at a fairly constant level, the past two years have seen an increase. In particular,
there was a notable 5% increase in complaints over the position for 2013/14.

Health body complaints continued the upward trend of recent years. There was a 1% increase over the
past year (769 complaints compared with 759 in 2013/14).

The chart below shows the distribution of the complaints received by sector.

Complaints by public body sector

1000 = g B 20145 2013/14
900 891
800 - 769 759
700 -
600 |-
500 -
400
300 -~
213
200 - 165
100 - 86 75
39 93
0 [ ] - 2h 8 0 2 3 10
County/County NHS Social Welsh Community  National Parks  Independent Fire National
Borough Bodies Housing ~ Government &  Councils Authorities Care Authorities  Assembly for
Councils its Sponsored Providers Wales
Bodies Commission

Complaints about public bodies by subject

As can be seen from the chart below, health complaints account for 34% of the caseload compared
with 36% in 2013/14. This small decrease in ratio terms is due to an increase in other types of
complaints received rather than a fall in the number of health complaints received (as confirmed by
the details above). As has been the case in recent years, housing (15%) and planning (12%) are the service
areas which account for the greatest number of complaints received after health complaints.

i




Complaints by subject 2014/15

8% 4% 1%

0% 5%

9%

Education

Health

12% Housing

Benefits and Taxation

Complaint Handling

Planning and Building Control

Roads and Transport

34% Social Services

Independent Care

15% Various other

m Community Facilities, Recreation and Leisure

Environment and Environmental Health

[Note: Complaints are categorised by the main subject area of a complaint. However, complaints can also
comprise other areas of dissatisfaction - for example, a ‘Health’ complaint may also contain a grievance about

‘Complaint Handling']

Outcomes of complaints considered

We closed 2,015 complaints during 201415, compared with 1,926 during 201314 (an increase of 5%). A
summary of the outcomes is set out in the table below and detailed breakdowns of the outcomes by

public service provider can be found at Annex B.

| am extremely pleased that we have managed to achieve this level of closure during the year and that

we are continuing to keep apace with the increased number of complaints to the office. Whilst the
number of cases on hand at the end of 201415 stood at 446, compared with 393 at the end of 2013/14,
| remain satisfied that this is a reasonable caseload to have open at any one time and do not consider

this to be a backlog.

Complaint about a Public Body 2014/15| 2013/14
Closed after initial consideration* 1,564 1,402
Complaint withdrawn 23 47
Complaint settled voluntarily (includes “quick fix” of 127 cases) 164 214
Investigation discontinued 8 18
Investigation: complaint not upheld 71 63
Investigation: complaint upheld in whole or in part 173 173
Investigation: complaint upheld in whole or in part — public interest report 12 9
Total Outcomes — Complaints 2,015 1,926

%%




mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

[* Cases closed after initial consideration include complaints that relate to one of the following
circumstances:

» outside of my jurisdiction

» premature (that is, the complainant had not first complained to the public service provider, giving
them an opportunity to put matters right)

» did not provide any evidence of maladministration or service failure
» did not provide any evidence of hardship or injustice suffered by the complainant
» showed that little further would be achieved by pursuing the matter (for example, a public body may

have already acknowledged providing a poor service and apologised).]

Decision times

Time taken to tell the complainant if | will take up their complaint

In relation to complaints about public bodies, we informed 93% of complainants within 4 weeks of
whether | would take up their complaint (from the date that sufficient information is received). This is
better than the 90% target we set ourselves. Further information on these timescales is set out in the

chart below.
70% - B 20145 2013/14
61%
60%
55%
50%
40%
30%
20% —
15% 13%
° 127 %
° ° 10%
0% - 9%
4% 3y
- 1% 2% 2% 2%
0 | |
Within 1 Within 2 Within 3 Within 4 Within 5 Within 6 Over 6
Week Week Week Week Week Week Week

5




Investigation Times

We completed 99% of investigations within 12 months, against the 100% target we set ourselves. There
were two cases that went over 12 months. Both of these involved strong challenges from parties in the
investigation. This led to further clinical advice being sought in the first case, and an internal review of
the evidence gathered in the second before the investigation could be concluded. The chart below
gives further details on the timescales taken to conclude investigations concerning public bodies.

2014/15 2013/14
50% .
46% 455
45%
40%
35% - 34%
30% 28%
25%
20% - 7% 7%
15%
10% - 9%
5% - 3%
1% o
o N i o
<3 months 03 to 06 months 06 to 09 months 09 to 12 months 12 to 18 months

Code of Conduct Complaints

Complaints received

Overall the number of number of complaints received was similar (231 in 201415 compared with 228
in 2013/14). However, the past year saw an increase in complaints about members of county or county
borough councils, whilst the number of complaints concerning members of community councils fell.
This can be seen in the table below.

2014/15 2013/14
Community Council 106 115
County/County Borough Council 125 M
Fire Authority 0 2
National Park Authority 0
Police & Crime Panels 0 0
Total 231 228

%



mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

Nature of Code of Conduct complaints

As in previous years, the majority of complaints received during 2014/15 related to matters of ‘equality
and respect’. In 201415 this accounted for 35% of the code of conduct complaints received compared
with 36% in 2014/15. The next largest areas of complaint related to disclosure and registration of
interests (22%), and integrity (16%).

% 10%

Accountability and openness

0
Disclosure and registration of interests

35% Duty to uphold the law
22% ‘
Integrity

Objectivity and propriety

Promotion of equality and respect
Selfessness and stewardship
9%
8%

16%

[Note: Although showing as ‘0%’ there was 1 complaint made in relation to ‘Selflessness and stewardship]

Code of Conduct complaint outcomes

Of the 239 Code of Conduct complaints closed in 2014715, the majority (178) were closed under the
category ‘Closed after initial consideration’ This includes decisions such as:

» there was no ‘prima facie’ evidence of a breach of the Code

» the alleged breach was insufficiently serious to warrant an investigation (and unlikely to attract a
sanction)

» the incident complained about happened before the member was elected (before they were bound
by the Code).

A greater number of investigation reports were referred either to a local authority’s standards
committee or to the Adjudication Panel of Wales in 201415 (9 complaints) compared with 2013/14 (6
complaints). In these circumstances it is for these bodies to consider the evidence found, together with
any defence put forward by the member concerned. It is then for them to determine whether a breach
has occurred and, if so, what penalty, if any, should be imposed.

K




A summary breakdown of the outcomes is below:

2014/15 2013/14
Closed after initial consideration 178 176
Complaint withdrawn 7 12
Investigation discontinued 20 8
Investigation completed: No evidence of breach 17 10
Investigation completed: No action necessary 8 17
Investigation completed: Refer to Standards Committee 8 5
Investigation completed: Refer to Adjudication Panel 1
Total Outcomes — Code of Conduct complaints 239 229

County councillors are now expected to make their complaints about other councillors within their
authority to their monitoring officer. However, | continue to receive ‘low level’ complaints of this type
at my office. These, for example, could be allegations of failures to show respect and consideration of
others under paragraph 4(b) of the code. We have reviewed our practice in dealing with the complaints
of this type that come to my office, and will be taking a firmer position in the future in referring these
‘low level’ complaints back to monitoring officers to be dealt with locally.

A detailed breakdown of the outcome of Code of Conduct complaints investigated, by authority,
during 201415 is set out at Annex C.

Decision times

Time taken to tell the complainant if | will take up their complaint

In respect of Code of Conduct complaints, 79% of complainants were informed within 4 weeks of
whether | would take up their complaint (from the date that sufficient information is received). This is
lower than the 90% target we set ourselves.

However, different from the position in relation to public body complaints, although not obliged to,
members may (and often do) comment on the complaint against them when they have been informed
of the complaint. Whilst therefore it can take longer to decide whether to commence an investigation,
| consider that it is fairer for us to take into consideration what a member has to say before taking a
decision. This is because the commencement of a formal investigation against a member is a stressful
and serious matter for the member being complained about. Nevertheless, | will work during the year
to ensure that we advise both the complainant and the accused member promptly as to whether we
will take the matter into investigation or not.

Further details on these decision timescales are shown overleaf.

%%



mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

3% 1 B 20145 2013/14
30% —
25%
21% 21%
20% 18%
15%
15%
12% 12%
10% 8% 8% 8%
5% 6% 5%
5% [~ I
0
Within 1 Within 2 Within 3 Within 4 Within 5 Within 6 Over 6
Week Week Week Week Week Week Week

Investigation Times

The position for completing code of conduct investigations is a positive one. | am pleased that over
the past year we succeeded in meeting our 100% target for completing investigations within 12 months,
as can be seen in the chart below.

2014/15 2013/14
50% -
45% 44%
40%
35%
30% | 29% 2%
o | 24% 24%
25% 2%
20%
15% 15%
° 12%
10%
5% |-
0
<3 months 03 to 06 months 06 to 09 months 09 to 12 months

. (-




4. Improving Public Service Delivery
-

| place great importance on using the knowledge and learning gained from the casework of my office to
improve public service delivery in Wales and to inform public policy. There are a number of established
key vehicles in place in this regard:

» Public interest reports — 12 issued in 2014/15: Summaries of these complaints together with
findings and outcomes are set out at Appendix A, with the full reports available on my website at
www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk.

» The Ombudsman’s Casebook, which is published quarterly: Key issues addressed during 2014715 were -

- failures by local authorities to recognise their homelessness duties and associated handling of
housing application

- insufficiently robust investigations by public service providers, inconsistent with the mantra of
‘investigate once; investigate well, together with missed opportunities by service providers to
resolve matters themselves at an early stage.

» The Code of Conduct Casebook: Last year it was reported that a Code of Conduct Casebook had
been introduced on a biannual basis at the request of local authority monitoring officers. This has
been well received, but a request was made during the year for this be produced on a quarterly rather
than six monthly basis. Quarterly editions will therefore appear in 201516, however, due to the low
number of cases available within quarterly editions, a commentary//lessons learnt section will be
produced within an end of year ‘annual compendium’ only.

» Annual letters — county councils and health boards: Published on my website, these provide details
in respect of the individual bodies and comparisons against other organisations in the same sector
as well as details on an All Wales basis. They are also used as the basis of discussions with the Chairs
and Chief Executives of individual local health boards. Local authorities are also invited to seek a
meeting to discuss their particular Annual Letter if they so wish.

In addition to the above, a revised edition of the Guidance on the Code of Conduct for local
authorities members, originally published in 2010, was issued at the end of March 2015. A key change
introduced is the new ‘public interest test’ that | will now apply when considering whether or not to
investigate a complaint. | have introduced this test as a result of the high number of trivial complaints
that | receive at my office, and to make clear the criteria that | will apply when considering whether a
complaint should be taken into investigation or not. This test will ensure that | continue to investigate
serious complaints to maintain public confidence in standards of public life. Other changes introduced
into the document include further guidance on the use of social media and political expression, as
well as a flowchart designed to provide members with assistance on the issue of interests. | hope
these changes will also see a reduction in the number of code of conduct complaints to my office.
The revised version of the Guidance can be found on my website: www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk

°____



mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

| have also given consideration to how | might be able to work with other relevant organisations.
Examples of activities during 2014./15 have been:

» Information Commissioner

| have been very pleased to be able to work with the Information Commissioner in reviewing the
PSOW'’s Principles of Good Administration. At the time of writing the proposed revised document is
out to consultation, but the intention is to introduce two new principles in relation to Good Records
Management and to issue the revised version as a joint publication with the ICO.

» Commissioners in Wales

| have continued to meet regularly with the Commissioners in Wales to discuss matters of mutual
interest and concern. We continue to explore ways in which we can reinforce each other’s work for the
benefit of public services in Wales. For example, | intend in the forthcoming year to give consideration
to the issue of the apparent lack of social care complaints that | receive, in view of the outcome of
the Older People’s Commissioner’s “A Place to Call Home?: Care Home Review Report” In addition,

| was delighted to have had the opportunity to speak at an event hosted by the Welsh Language
Commissioner during the National Eisteddfod for Wales in 2014, in what was my first week in the post
as Ombudsman. | was also grateful to the Commissioners for their support for the proposals for new
legislation and was encouraged by the recognition that our respective offices could work well together
in relation to any proposed own initiative investigations, should the Ombudsman be granted this power
by the Assembly.

» Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with the Care and Social Services for Inspectorate
Wales (CSSIW)

Whilst the CSSIW is a body within my jurisdiction, | considered that it would be appropriate to put in
place a MoU with the CSSIW in view of its role as a regulator. The MoU was signed on 14 December
2014 and was particularly timely in view of the recent extension to my jurisdiction on 1 November 2014
to be able to consider complaints about privately arranged or funded social care and palliative care
services.

In the forthcoming year, | will be looking to explore how the work of my office can have a greater
impact in the future in relation to influencing improvements in public service delivery and for informing
public policy and | look forward to being able to report next year on developments in this area.

- §



5. Governance and Accountability

The Ombudsman

The Public Services Ombudsman (Wales) Act 2005 establishes the office of the Ombudsman as a
‘corporation sole’. The Ombudsman is accountable to the National Assembly for Wales, both through
the mechanism of the annual report, and as Accounting Officer for the public funds with which the

National Assembly entrusts the Ombudsman to undertake their functions.

During 2014./15, | appeared before three of the Assembly’s Committees, namely the Public Accounts
Committee (to discuss the Annual Accounts for 2013/14); the Communities, Equality and Local
Government Committee (to discuss the Annual Report for 2013/14); and the Finance Committee (to
discuss my budget estimate submission for 2014/15). | welcomed the opportunity on each occasion to
discuss how the public money | received was and would be spent, and the service provided by my office.

Advisory Panel and Audit & Risk Assurance Committee

Whilst bearing in mind the constitutional position of a corporation sole, | have an Advisory Panel which
provides both challenge and support to me as Ombudsman. There is also an Audit & Risk Assurance
Committee, a sub-committee of the Panel, which provides particular support to me in relation to my
responsibilities as Accounting Officer. The work of both these fora over the past year will be addressed

in greater detail as part of the Governance Statement within my Annual Accounts for 2014715, which |
expect to be published in August 2015. However, | take the opportunity here to state that, following an
open recruitment exercise, | was delighted that Mrs Sharon Warnes, previously Assistant Director/Senior
Policy & Performance Manager at Gwynedd Council, was appointed to the Advisory Panel (following Mr Ceri
Stradling’s resignation at the end of 2013/14). Mrs Warnes also sits on the Audit & Risk Assurance Committee.

Management Team

Whilst as Ombudsman | am solely accountable for the decisions and operation of my office, the
Management Team is a formal group that provides me with advice and support. It takes specific
responsibility for advising on the development of the three year Strategic Plan and the annual Business
Plan; annual budgetary requirements; ensuring the best use of the public money received; and an
appropriate performance monitoring framework.

It is also responsible for the delivery and monitoring of strategic aims; monthly performance monitoring
against objectives; ensuring that risks are actively identified and addressed; agreeing corporate policies
(e.g. complaint handling procedures, human resources policies) and monitoring their effectiveness; and
developing the office’s outreach strategy and monitoring its implementation.

Three Year Strategic Plan and Business Plan

The past year was the final year in relation to implementation of the Strategic Plan developed for
2012/13 to 201415 and many of the activities and achievements have been reflected in this Annual
Report. The existing vision, values, purposes and strategic aims for the PSOW service can be found at
page 9.

.



mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

| decided during the course of the year to produce a one year Strategic Plan for 201516, which has
been deliberately rolled on from the previous Three Year Strategic Plan as | believe that the ‘Vision’
remains as relevant and appropriate as ever, not least given the current public policy context. Another
key consideration for rolling on the previous three year Strategic Plan for a further year was that it was
hoped that the National Assembly for Wales would agree to modernising the PSOW Act. It seemed
more appropriate for the office to develop a new Three Year Strategic Plan at a time when the position
on these potential changes to the Ombudsman’s legislation is known.

European Directive on Alternative Dispute Resolution

Following the issuing of the European Directive on Alternative Dispute Resolution, the UK Government
laid before Parliament on 17 March 2015 the Alternative Dispute Resolution for Consumer Disputes
(Competent Authorities and Information) Regulations 2015. These new arrangements in relation to
consumer and trader disputes have an impact on PSOW jurisdiction in relation complaints about
independent care providers.

Whilst the National Assembly for Wales has legislated that people who fund their own care have

a right to complain to the Ombudsman, the EU Directive/UK Regulations will mean that unless the
PSOW applies (at a cost) to be an ‘ADR Entity’ the UK Government will also nominate an alternative
ADR entity to be available to consider such grievances. That said, neither the EU's ADR Directive

nor the UK Government’s Regulations make ADR compulsory for businesses in areas where it is not
currently, so the majority of businesses will retain a choice as to whether to use an alternative ADR
entity or not. Further they would no doubt be the subject of a charge to sign up to an alternative ADR
provider. This ultimately means that the only statutory right that service users will have, in relation to
the independent consideration of their complaint to an independent care provider, will be through the
Ombudsman.

There are a number of issues requiring consideration in this matter, including questions of subsidiarity,
and the position of the Ombudsman in relation to accountability to the National Assembly for Wales
and independence as regards reporting to the UK Government’s nominated Competent Authority — the
Trading Standards Institute, in what in essence is a ‘traders’ membership organisation’. There is also the
issue that independent social care providers are organisations which are regulated by the CSSIW. At the
time of writing, | am still considering whether or not it is appropriate for the PSOW to apply to be an
ADR entity.

K




6. Other Activities

Relationship with the National Assembly for Wales

| am pleased with the development of the relationship
between my office and the National Assembly over the past
year. | was pleased to meet with Dame Rosemary Butler, the
Presiding Officer, in the early days after having taken up my
appointment and to be able to discuss my initial priorities as
Ombudsman. | was also delighted to be able to welcome the
Presiding Officer to my office in January 2015, when Dame
Rosemary took the time to meet individual members of my
staff. This was much appreciated.

W R el g X<l | refer elsewhere in this report to my engagement with the
Assembly in relation to the inquiry into the powers of the
Ombudsman. | have been very grateful to Mrs Jocelyn Davies, AM, the Finance Committee Chair and
all members of the Finance Committee for agreeing to undertake this inquiry and for being prepared
to consider recommending a Committee led Bill in this regard. | know that my officers too have

appreciated the co-operation they have received from Assembly staff in this regard.

| was also pleased to be able to offer as part of the professional development scheme for Assembly
Members and their staff, a training session whereby we were able to discuss the work of my office
tailored in a way in order to assist them to be able to better advise their constituents about what, as
Ombudsman, | can and cannot do.

Outreach

The office’s stakeholders are many, and include

- members of the public (i.e. the users of public services)

- bodies within jurisdiction

- members of the National Assembly for Wales

- voluntary organisations (in particular those who offer advocacy services)
- the media.

We have continued in our endeavours to help people know where and how to put a complaint about a
public service through the Complaints Wales signposting service, which is delivered by the Complaints
Advice Team. This independent and impartial web and telephone service signposts people’s complaint
to the organisation that provides the service they wish to complain about, or to the appropriate
independent complaint handler or ombudsman. Promotion of the service continued during 201415 via
a radio advertisement campaign.

.



mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

In relation to bodies in jurisdiction, in addition to the meetings held with individual bodies, during
January 2015 | held regional seminars aimed at both chief executives and complaint handling
practitioners, where the issue of good practice in relation to complaint handling and records keeping
was addressed. | was grateful to a number of complaint handling practitioners from bodies in
jurisdiction for speaking about their experiences at these sessions. | was particularly pleased that over
200 people attended from all sectors within my jurisdiction.

Delegates in attendance at the seminar held in Newport.

We continued to engage with voluntary organisations. For example, during the past year we spoke at,
or held meetings with Oxfam Cymru, Diverse Cymru, All Wales Credit Union Managers Group, Shelter
Cymru, Age Cymru, Welsh Council for Voluntary Action and the Motor Neurone Disease Association.
We also held meetings with, or spoke at events held by, professional and representative bodies of
those delivering public services (for example, law and nursing professions; One Voice Wales).

A positive relationship with the media continued. Media attention to the work of the office again was
largely as a result of the public interest reports issued. However, | was also pleased to be able to meet
with BBC news and current affairs staff during the year. It was particularly useful to be able to discuss
the limits of what | am able to comment upon as Ombudsman and what is and is not possible to put
into the public domain as a result of the confidential work of my investigations.

&




Complainant satisfaction research

We have continued with our complainant satisfaction survey practice in relation to customer
satisfaction for our first contact service. The outcome for 2014,/15 was as follows:

% of respondents answering
either ‘strongly agree’ or ‘agree’

It was easy to find out how to contact the Public Services 84%
Ombudsman for Wales

The service | have received has been helpful and sensitive 75%
Staff were able to understand my complaint / The person that dealt 73%

with my query knew enough to be able to answer my questions

| was given a clear explanation of what would happen to my 80%
query/complaint

The service has provided what | expected of it 64%

The past year has again overall seen a very good level of satisfaction. Also similar to previous years,
responses to the final question have been affected by a decision by the Ombudsman not to investigate
their complaint, for example, because the person concerned has not yet complained to the organisation
concerned or that the matter is outside of the Ombudsman’s jurisdiction. Sometimes, people decline to
answer this question, saying that they are going to wait for the Ombudsman’s decision on their complaint.

In addition, the data gathered from the questionnaires returned to us, which contain both satisfaction and
equality information, is now input into our complaints handling system and associated with the relevant
complaint case record. This has enables us to analyse outcomes of complaints against various protected
characteristic groups. This work is still in its infancy, but | am pleased that to date nothing has emerged
from this analysis to suggest that there should be any reason for concern in relation to anything in our
processes or approach to investigations which disadvantage any particular groups of people. (Note:
access to the customer satisfaction and equality data on our system is limited to a couple of members

of staff and no complaint handler has access to these details.)

The PSOW and the Ombudsman World

The 9th Regional Seminar of the European Network of Ombudsmen

The PSOW, jointly with the European Ombudsman, hosted a very successful three-day seminar in June.
The event was very well attended by regional ombudsmen from across Europe. The theme was ‘Voices
for the Voiceless’ and seminar sessions were relevant to all participants and provided much food for
thought among the delegates. It was interesting to note that we all faced similar challenges. It was also
an opportunity to showcase Wales to those present. On behalf of Margaret Griffiths as well as myself, |
would like to thank Dame Rosemary Butler, the Presiding Officer, for hosting the welcome reception at
the Senedd.

o



mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

Over one hundred Une centaine
ymbudsmen de médiateurs

icross Europe a votre service

i1l your service en Eu rope

Emily O'Reilly, European Ombudsman (standing) and Acting Ombudsman, Margaret Griffiths, addressing the European delegation.

International Ombudsman Institute/Northern Ireland Ombudsman

In July 2014 the Northern Ireland Ombudsman and Northern Ireland Human Rights Commission (NIHRC)
produced a Human Rights Manual which is a toolkit for ombudsman staff to identify human rights
issues in the assessment and investigation of complaints of maladministration. This was launched by
them at the IOl World Conference in Tallin. The Northern Ireland Ombudsman and the NIHRC have
committed to deliver a training package to enable other ombudsman schemes to develop a human
rights based approach to investigations of maladministration. Whilst my office has already adopted
such an approach to a certain degree, | am pleased that arrangements have been made for the training
on the toolkit to be delivered to my staff in the early part of 2015/16.

The Ombudsman Association

In many ways the role of the Ombudsman is unique. Although no one Ombudsman scheme is exactly
like another, the work of the Ombudsman Association (OA) is considered to be important as a means
of sharing best practice and to learn from each other. This is particularly valuable in view of the fact
that Ombudsman schemes need to be objective and maintain an appropriate distance from the bodies
in jurisdiction. We have continued to participate in OA activities, including participating in a number of
the OA Interest Groups.

Complaints about the PSOW service

The ‘Complaints about us’ procedure can be used if someone is unhappy about our service. For
example, a complainant may wish to complain about undue delay in responding to correspondence;
or feel that a member of staff has been rude or unhelpful; or that we have not done what we said
we would. There is a separate procedure for complainants wishing to appeal against a decision on
their complaint. Further details about both these procedures are available on my website:
www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk.

K




The table below reports on the number of complaints received during 201415 and their outcomes,
together with a comparison of the position in 2013/14.

2014/15 2013/14
Complaints brought forward from previous year 3 2
New Complaints received 13 32
Total Complaints 7 12
Outcomes
Not Upheld (service related issue) 14 13
Upheld in whole or in part 12 7
Related to investigation decision - referred to investigation 44 17
process
Complaint withdrawn or insufficient information 14 7
Total closed during year 84 44
Ongoing and carried forward at 31 March 1 3
The nature of the complaints that were upheld/partly upheld were:
Undue delay in response 1
Wrong postcode held on file 1
Incorrect information provided 1
Not responding to correspondence 1
Interviews forms and CD recording covers not bilingual 1
Website complaint form submission error 3
Wrong details held on file / or correspondence sent in error 4
Total 12

The following corrective action was undertaken:

» An apology was issued to the complainant in all 12 cases.

» The relevant line Manager(s) were made aware of the upheld complaints relevant to their team
for future training and monitoring.

» Appropriate and relevant staff training was undertaken where necessary.
» Appropriate action in accordance with PSOW HR policies was undertaken.
» Issues with ITC e.g. Website submissions were reported to relevant IT providers for resolution.

» Interview forms are now available in a bilingual format, and arrangements have been made for
bilingual CD labels to be used as soon as they are available.

o



BLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR waLEs N NS

;)Pumbudsman

{

:me_u:n_EO
ay1 01 vd

ﬁ

_wu_tO:o_amE‘_oE_
Juawadeuepy

(

Ja8euepy
suoljeduNWWo) *g A21)10d

WViL
JAILNO3X3

ﬁ G x JojeSi3saAu|

J

h 9 X 103e813S3AU| JOIUS

J

ﬁ 138eUR SUOIIeSIISaAU|

J

WViL
NOILVOILS3ANI

\
G X 103e813s9AU| w

9 X 103e813S2AU| JOIUS w
\_

7

13sIApY |e8a7 g w

138euely suolyesiysaau|
\.

WViL
NOILVSILS3ANI

9 X IO HIoMased)

9 X J03e813saAU|

| X 103e313S3AU| JOIUSS

Ja8eue|y suoljediysanu|

oY anY oY e

WV3IL
ADIAQV SLINIVIdWOD

¥ X 432130
1oddng suomase)

X J3D14JQO SIDIAISS
a3e10di0) Joluag

L X 4221340 3oddng
Jiomased Joluas

anY oY anY e

Ja8euey
$221AJ3G d3el0diod

—

NOILVYLSININGYV 8
SADIAY3S FLVIOJUOD

Ja8euepy
M3IADY

suolje813saAu| Jo Jo3daliq
3 1921)J0 Bunesado Jaiyd

FRORS
JURIUNODDY

|edueury

S3]BAA 40} LBWISPNQUIQ S3DIAISS D1 |qNnd

(SLOT Y24eW L€ 3e se uonisod) 3aey) jeuonyesiuedio

5




7. Equality Issues

A commitment to treating people fairly is central to the role of an ombudsman. The Public Services
Ombudsman for Wales is committed to providing equal opportunities for staff in the service provided
to complainants. No job applicant, staff member or person receiving a service from the PSOW will

be discriminated against, harassed or victimised due to personal characteristics such as age, disability,
ethnicity, sex, gender reassignment, pregnancy or maternity, sexual orientation, religion or belief,
whether they are married or in a civil partnership, or on the basis of any other irrelevant consideration.
Staff are expected to share the Ombudsman’s total opposition to unlawful and unfair discrimination
and the commitment to conducting business in a way that is fair to all members of society.

Under the Equality Act 2010 and the Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011 laid
down by the National Assembly for Wales, the Ombudsman has a duty to publish a Strategic Equality
Plan and equality objectives. The first such Plan, which contains the Ombudsman’s equality objectives,
was published at the end of March 2012 and complied with the statutory requirement to publish before
2 April 2012. (The Plan is available on the website: see www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk). Also under the
specific duties, the Ombudsman is required to produce an annual report in respect of equality matters.
As articulated in the Strategic Equality Plan, many of our practices have been part and parcel of our
approach since the inception of the office in 2006. Where relevant therefore, these will remain a part
of the annual report on equality matters, which is set out below.

Accessibility

As part of our process, we do our very best to identify as early as possible any individual requirements
that may need to be met so that a service user can fully access our services and, in particular, we ask
people to tell us their preferred method of communication with us. We always try to make reasonable
adjustments where these will help people make and present their complaint to us. Examples are:
providing correspondence in Easy Read; using Language Line for interpretation, where a complainant

is not comfortable with making their complaint in English or Welsh; obtaining expertise to assist us to
understand the particular requirements of complainants with certain conditions, such as Asperger’s
syndrome; and visiting complainants at their homes.

We produce key documents in alternative formats, such as CD/tape and Braille, translate these into
the eight key ethnic minority languages used in Wales; and we have upgraded the accessibility of our
website from A to AA compliant.

During 201415, further work was undertaken in relation to our websites, with a view to introducing
tools to enable translation of web pages in a whole host of languages; checks in relation to website
accessibility issues; introduction of BrowseAloud which functions for the mobile versions of our
websites in addition to the desktop versions.

Particular attention has also been given to requirements of those people who are deaf or hard of
hearing and we intend to improve on our service in relation to British Sign Language provision and other
relevant facilities during 2015/16.

.



mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

We also recognise that some service users may need assistance in making their complaint to us and
we have also invested a great deal of our energy in gathering information about advocacy and advice
organisations to help them in this regard. This information is readily available on our website as well as
through our Complaints Advice Team.

Equality Data Gathering/Monitoring — Service Users

We have always undertaken equality monitoring in respect of service users, which has informed our
annual outreach strategy. Results of equality monitoring undertaken since 2005706 in respect of service
users was published in the Strategic Equality Plan.

The outcome of the monitoring during 2015/16 in respect of the protected characteristic groups (as
defined in the Equality Act) is set out below.

In view of the nature of the work of this office, we would expect the composition of people who
complain to this office to, at the very least, mirror the national demographic position; in fact, we would
expect the proportion of complainants from groups who could be considered to be at disadvantage
or vulnerable to exceed the national picture. In respect of each of the questions we asked, those who
completed the form were given the opportunity to respond ‘Prefer not to say’. Nevertheless, from the
results below, the PSOW is relatively satisfied that in making comparisons with official data available
(e.g. the Census 2011) the composition of our service users meets or exceeds national demographics in
the way we would expect. It is in particular good to see that of those who responded, 4% identified
themselves as having a minority ethnic background, which matches the demographic picture in Wales
against the Census in 2011. This was a group which was slightly under represented in the most recent
few years.

We take the results from our equality monitoring into account when developing our outreach
programmes. We gave particular focus to raising awareness of the PSOW service among people from
minority ethnic groups during 201415, engaging with organisations such Diverse Cymru and Oxfam
Cymru. Whilst the improvement could be a matter of coincidence, | believe this outreach work has at
least had some impact in this area.

Protected characteristic group Percentage Outcome
Age:

Under 25 4%

25-34 13%

35-44 19%

45-54 22%

55-64 20%

65-74 12%

75 or over 5%

Prefer not to say/No response 4%

- §



Protected characteristic group Percentage Outcome
Disability

Yes 30%

No 61%

Prefer not to say/No response 9%
Health problem or disability limiting day-to-day activities?

Yes, limited a lot 26%

Yes, limited a little 15%

No 50%

Prefer not to say/No response 8%

Gender reassignment

Yes 31%
No 0.5%
Prefer not to say/No response 68.5%
Religion or belief
No religion 39%
Christian (all denominations) 49%
Other religions 6%
Prefer not to say/No response 5%
Married or same-sex civil partnership
Yes 46%
No 44%
Prefer not to say/No response N%
Race/Ethnicity
White 91%
Other ethnic background 4%
Prefer not to say/No response 5%
Sex
Male 47%
Female 47%
Prefer not to say/ No response 6%
Sexual orientation
Heterosexual or straight 84%
Gay or Lesbian 3%
Bisexual 0.5%
Other 1%
Prefer not to say/No response 11.5%

.



mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

Our Casework

Our commitment and contribution to equality matters also manifests itself in our complaint handling
work. We also have regard to matters of human rights. Whilst it is not for the Ombudsman to decide
whether a public service provider is in breach of such legislation, it is possible that the failure to take
account of any such legal obligations, or to follow policies and procedures designed to implement
these obligations, will be maladministration. For example, following the investigation into a complaint
about works being undertaken at a property by a housing association, the report issued in January 2015
included a recommendation that the housing association should also consider the impact of its failings
in connection with the Human Rights Act.

Training

PSOW staff have over the years received equality and diversity training. We continue to provide
relevant training in this regard. This is important to us for two reasons. Firstly, so that in the service
we provide we can be responsive to the changing needs and requirements of people with whom we
communicate and interact. For example, most recently two members of staff have been learning how
to communicate via British Sign Language. Secondly, so that we have the knowledge to be able to
identify during our investigations any failings by public service providers in respect of their equality
duties.

Further, and as referred to at Section 6 of this Annual Report, arrangements are being put in place
for 2015/16 in relation to training for staff to identify human rights issues in the assessment and
investigation of complaints of maladministration

Outreach

We meet regularly with third sector organisations, holding formal seminars at least biennially, giving
talks and addresses at their conferences and we also have an ongoing proactive programme of meeting
with individual organisations. This year’s activity has been reported on at Section 6 of this Annual
Report. This enables two way discussions about the work of the office, so that we can obtain views

on the service we provide from their perspective and it enables us to explain how they can help those
individuals who require assistance in making a complaint to us to do so.

Equality Impact Assessments

As part of the work in developing the Strategic Equality Plan, we developed an equality impact
assessment toolkit. Equality Impact Assessments are now embedded in our practices when reviewing
existing, or developing new, policies and procedures.

Staff Equality Data Gathering/Monitoring

Our staff have been asked to complete and return a monitoring form seeking information in respect
of each of the protected characteristics. We also now gather such information during our recruitment
exercises. That disclosure is, of course, on a voluntary basis. The data held at 31 March 2015 is set out
below.

K




Age The composition of staff ages is as follows:
21to 30:17%
31to 40: 29%
41to 50: 31%
51 to 65: 23%

Disability 86% of staff said there were not disabled, no member of staff said that they were
a disabled person (14% preferred not to say)

However, when asked if their day-to-day activities were limited because of a
health problem or disability which had lasted, or was expected to last, at least 12
months, 2% said that they were limited a lot, 2% said they were limited a little,
82% said their day to day activities were not limited (14% preferred not to say)

Nationality In describing their nationality, 50% said they were Welsh; 26% said British, 10% said
they were English, 2% said ‘Other’ (12% preferred not to say)

Ethnic group The ethnicity of staff is:

79% White (Welsh, English, Scottish, Northern Irish, British);
2% White/Irish

3% Black (African, Caribbean, or Black British./Caribbean
2% Asian or Arian British/Bangladeshi

(14% preferred not to say)

Language When asked about the main language of their household, 75% of staff said this
was English; 11% said Welsh, and 2% said ‘Other’ (12% preferred not to say)

Religion or Belief | Responses to the question asking staff about their religion were as follows:
No religion: 38%;

Christian 38%;

Muslim 2%;

Other1%

(21% preferred not to say)

Marriage/ When asked if they were married or in a same sex civil partnership, 49% of staff
Civil Partnership | replied “Yes’; whilst 33% said ‘No' (18% preferred not to say)

Sexual Responding on this, 77% said that they were Heterosexual or Straight, 2% said Gay
Orientation or Lesbian (21% preferred not to say)

.




mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

Under the specific duties we are required to set an equality objective for gender and pay; if we do
not do so, we must explain why. The Strategic Equality Plan does not currently contain any specific
objective in this regard because at the time of its development females were very well represented
at the higher pay scales within my office. The position is kept under continual review and the equality
objectives will be revised if necessary. However, as can be seen from the table below, the position
currently remains satisfactory.

Pay and Gender - data as of 31/03/2015

Pay (FTE) Male Female
Up to £20,000 0 6
£20,001 to £30,000 1 12
£30,001 to £40,000 1 2
£40,001 to £50,000 8 20
£50,001 to £60,000 3 2
£60,001 + 1 1
Subtotal 14 43
Total 57

In relation to the working patterns of the above, all staff work on a full time basis with permanent
contracts, with the exception of the following;
» 13 members of staff work part time (11 female, 2 male).

» no members of staff were employed on a fixed term contract.

New starters / staff leavers

During the year we have had six members of staff leave and recruited six. Due to the low numbers
involved, the equality data for these individuals has been reported as part of the all staff information
above. It is not considered appropriate to report separate equality information relating to the
individuals involved due to the risk of identification.

Recruitment

During the year we have conducted three recruitment exercises which have resulted in the following data:

5k



10 CAT CO / | Advisory Total
CWSO Panel
Member
Age Did not say 9% 8% 0% 9%
under 25 0% 28% 0% 19%
25-34 26% 35% 0% 32%
35-44 29% 19% 0% 22%
45-54 25% 10% 21% 15%
55-64 N% 0% 64% 4%
65-74 0% 0% 7% 1%
75 and over 0% 0% 7% 1%
Gender Did not say 4% 3% 7% 4%
Male 43% 42% 71% 42%
Female 53% 55% 21% 54%
Nationality Did not say 5% 6% 7% 6%
Welsh 92% 61% 64% 7%
English 3% 9% 0% 7%
Scottish 0% 3% 0% 2%
Northern Irish 0% 0% 0% 0%
British 0% 18% 29% 12%
Irish 0% 3% 0% 2%
Welsh/German 0% 0% 0% 0%
Ethnic Group Did not say 5% 12% 0% 10%
White(Welsh/Scottish/English/ 95% 76% 100% 82%
NI/British)
White (Irish) 0% 3% 0% 2%
White (Gypsy/Irish traveller) 0% 0% 0% 0%
White (Other) 0% 0% 0% 0%
Asian/Asian British 0% 6% 0% 4%
Black, African, Caribbean or 0% 3% 0% 2%
Black British
Mixed or multiple ethnic group 0% 0% 0% 0%
Other ethnic Group 0% 0% 0% 0%
Language Did not say 14% 3% 14% 7%
English 18% 92% 57% 67%
Welsh 58% 0% 29% 19%
Bilingual (Welsh/English) 10% 5% 0% 7%
Other 0% 0% 0% 0%

.



mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

10 CAT CO / | Advisory Total
CWSO Panel
Member

Disability Did not say 10% 3% 0% 6%
Yes 0% 0% 0% 0%

No 90% 97% 100% 95%

Limited Did not say 10% 3% 7% 5%
Activities Yes, limited a little 0% 0% 0% 0%
Yes, limited a lot 0% 0% 0% 0%

No 90% 97% 93% 95%

Religion Did not say 16% 12% 0% 13%
None 34% 59% 14% 51%

Christian 47% 29% 86% 35%

Buddijist 0% 0% 0% 0%

Hindu 0% 0% 0% 0%

Jewish 0% 0% 0% 0%

Muslim 0% 0% 0% 0%

Sikh 0% 0% 0% 0%

Other 3% 0% 0% 1%

Married or civil | Did not say 5% 7% 7% 6%
partnership Yes 32% 16% 86% 21%
No 63% 77% 7% 72%

Sexuality Did not say 18% 19% 7% 19%
Heterosexual 82% 74% 93% 77%

Gay or Lesbian 0% 7% 0% 5%

Bisexual 0% 0% 0% 0%

Other 0% 0% 0% 0%

[Note: the above information excludes internal promotion.]

Key to abbreviations:
» 10 — Investigation Officer.
» CAT CO/CWSO — Complaints Advice Team Casework Officer or Casework Support Officer.

K




Staff Training

The majority of staff training is based upon job roles or applicable for all staff to attend, and as such
there are no equality considerations to report. All individually requested training by staff has been
approved, and as such there is no need to report on equality data differences between approved and
non-approved training requests.

Disciplinary / Grievance

Due to the small numbers of staff working in the office, and the small number of instances of
disciplinary / grievance, it is not considered appropriate to report on equality data for this category due
to the risk of identification of staff involved. | remain satisfied that there are no identifiable issues in
this area that would cause me concern.

Procurement

Our procurement policy now refers to the relevant equality requirements that we expect our suppliers
to have in place.

e




mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

Annex A

Public Body Complaints

Public Interest Reports: Case Summaries




HEALTH

Cwm Taf University Health Board
Case reference 201401023 — Report issued March 2015

Mr C complained to me about the care given to his mother (Mrs M) by Cwm Taf Local Health Board
(“the Health Board”). Mrs M was 86. She had a medical history which included atrial fibrillation ("AF”),
Type 2 Diabetes, osteoarthritis and osteoporosis. She was taking a number of medications, including
Warfarin (anticoagulation protection for AF). She was admitted to the Royal Glamorgan Hospital on 24
March 2012 because she was suffering with diarrhoea and vomiting.

Mr C said that at approximately 5.00pm on 4 April, while waiting to be discharged, Mrs M suffered a
stroke. He said that despite family requests, his mother was not seen by a doctor for over six hours.
Then, overnight whilst she was sleeping, she suffered a further significant stroke. Mr C said the Health
Board repeatedly delayed responding to the complaint and he was dissatisfied with the way it handled
the complaint and the complaint response.

My investigation considered the relevant records, comments from the Health Board and evidence
provided by Mr C and his family. | took advice from an experienced physician, a Stroke specialist and an
experienced senior nurse.

| upheld Mr C's complaint because | concluded that the care provided to Mrs M on, and leading up to,
the evening of 4 April was inadequate. During her stay in hospital, by allowing the protection offered by
anticoagulation to be inadequate, the Health Board failed to properly protect Mrs M from an avoidable
stroke. The Health Board then failed to assess and treat her symptoms promptly and effectively. There
was also a delay in her being seen by a suitably trained clinician and in transferring Mrs M to an Acute
Stroke Unit.

My investigation also found that the Health Board failed to:

» follow the relevant NICE Stroke Guidance and did not have an adequate stroke protocol;
» provide (or record the provision of) appropriate nursing care;

» keep appropriate records;

» comply with Complaints Guidance.

The Health Board accepted the report and agreed to:

a) give Mr M an unequivocal written apology for the failures identified by this report;

b) give Mr C an unequivocal written apology for failing to comply with Complaint Guidance;

c) make a payment to Mr M of £5,500 to reflect the failings in care identified by this report; the
uncertainty caused by those failings; the delays in the Health Board's handling of this complaint and
the time and trouble taken by his family in pursuing the complaint with this office;

d) so that appropriate lessons may be learned, share this report with the medical, nursing, health care
and administrative staff involved in the case;

%



mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

e) provide me with evidence of the existing monitoring and quality assurance mechanisms it has in
place to prevent a recurrence of:

» the failure of nursing staff to complete appropriate assessments and implement appropriate care plans
» the failure of staff to maintain appropriate records
» the failure of administrative, nursing and medical staff to follow the Complaints Guidance;

f) ensure compliance with current NICE guidance and professional guidelines, by reviewing (and if
needed, updating) the current policies/protocols for the:

» management of in-patients on pre-existing Warfarin therapy
» INR monitoring of in-patients with relevant pre-existing conditions

(if needed, the Health Board should implement training for staff who indicate that they are not fully
conversant with the relevant protocols);

g) ensure that staff training in respect of recognising acute stroke is up to date, with particular reference
to the current NICE guidance and professional guidelines;

h) ensure that use of the NIHSS (or similarly recognised tool), in order to identify patients who are likely
to have had an acute stroke, is implemented;

i) to ensure compliance with current NICE guidance and professional guidelines, review its
arrangements for the identification and treatment of acute stroke and consider including the
following measures:

» all patients who may have had an acute stroke should be immediately assessed by a suitably trained
physician to determine whether thrombolysis is suitable

» all patients who may have had an acute stroke should have immediate CT scanning (i.e. within one
hour)

» all patients who may have had an acute stroke should be assessed immediately for admission to a
specialist acute stroke unit

» all patients who may have had an acute stroke should have a swallowing screening test (using a
validated tool) by a trained professional within four hours;

j) give my office suitable evidence to demonstrate that it has complied with the recommendations.

I (-



Cardiff and Vale University Health Board and GP
Case references 201306223 and 201306224 - Report issued February 2015

Mrs H complained about the standard of care afforded to her late husband, X, by the Health Board's
Mental Health Services and his GP practice, before his death in January 2013 (when he took his own
life). X's clinical history included a number of incidents - he had self harmed, abused both alcohol
and drugs and taken overdoses. In 2012, X continued to be treated by the GP Practice with increasing
regularity, being prescribed a number of different medications to treat anxiety/mood disorders and/

or depression. These included drugs known as benzodiazepines (known to be potentially addictive).
X took an overdose of anti-depressants in January 2013, two weeks before his death, but was
discharged from hospital and remained on a waiting list for counselling (which he had been on for
some time). However, before he could be seen, X took his own life. Mrs H also complained that she
had subsequently received a letter addressed to X inviting him for a counselling appointment at the
Practice, which compounded her distress. An inquest touching upon X’s death returned a verdict of
suicide but noted “That there was a failure by those treating him to identify his suicidal intent.”

Following advice from my clinical advisers, the complaint was mostly upheld. Whilst | could not
conclude with any certainty that the outcome would have been different, were it not for the failings
found during the investigation, failures on the part of both the Health Board and the Practice included
the following:

» Lost opportunities on the part of the Health Board to properly evaluate X’s mental health following
earlier serious incidents and to comprehensively assess him when he was seen.

» A failure on the part of the Health Board to discuss X’s discharge after an overdose two weeks before
his death, and a failure to provide discharge information to the Practice in a timely way.

» Numerous errors in the Health Board’s own investigation, following X's death, which indicated a lack
of proper care and attention.

» A failure on the part of the Practice to refer to secondary care and/or a failure to properly assess X's
suicide risk.

» The Practice’s continued prescribing of benzodiazepines was contrary to national guidance.

| recommended that both the Health Board and the Practice apologise to Mrs H, and offer her redress
of £1,500 each, for the failures identified, her distress, and her time in pursuing the complaint.

Further recommendations included the provision of evidence by the Health Board of its audit

of discharge communication with GPs, its reminder to staff conducting investigations of serious
incidents and reminders about comprehensive risk assessments. In relation to the Practice, further
recommendations were made about continued auditing and monitoring of its benzodiazepine
prescribing and that it should produce a Practice Prescribing Policy. Both the Health Board and the
Practice accepted my recommendations in full.

e



mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

Hywel Dda University Health Board and GP
Case references 201302382 & 201306002 - Report issued September 2014

Mrs X complained that her mother’s GP had failed to ensure that aspirin, which had previously been

prescribed for atrial fibrillation, was reinstated following a period when it had been stopped because
she was taking warfarin. Mrs X said that her mother, Mrs Y, had suffered a debilitating stroke, which she
believed could have been avoided, or its severity reduced, if she had been taking aspirin.

Although | found that the GP had failed to re-prescribe aspirin for Mrs Y in January 2013, there was no
evidence that aspirin would have reduced the risk of Mrs Y suffering a stroke.

My advisers expressed concerns about the failure of the GP to consider prescribing warfarin, rather
than aspirin, for atrial fibrillation, and the failure of secondary care professionals in the Health Board
to alert the GP to consider this. The scope of my investigation was therefore broadened to include the
Health Board.

| found that it had not been unreasonable for the GP to prescribe aspirin in 2004, as guidelines at
that time did not clearly recommend warfarin. However, a CT scan in 2011 showed that Mrs Y had
suffered a stroke; she was therefore known to be at high risk of a further stroke, and the Health
Board ophthalmology service, which had arranged the scan, should have referred her to the Stroke
Department. Also, the GP should have considered prescribing warfarin for her, in accordance with
guidelines at that time.

Further opportunities to recognise the situation were missed in July and September 2012; in July Mrs

Y suffered a DVT, and was prescribed a six month course of warfarin, but neither the clinician who
referred her to the haematology department in July nor the cardiologist who saw her in September
alerted the GP to the desirability of considering prescribing warfarin for Mrs Y on a longterm basis. The
GP did not review Mrs Y’s medication then or subsequently. | found that these were serious failings and
upheld the complaint; if Mrs Y had been taking warfarin the risk of her suffering a stroke would have
been significantly reduced, although he could not conclude that she would not have done so.

| recommended that the GP should:

a) apologise to Mrs X for the failings identified;
b) pay Mrs X the sum of £1,000 in recognition of the significant distress the failings had caused her;

c) if she had not already done so, carry out an audit of all patients at the Practice who have been
diagnosed with atrial fibrillation, to ensure they are prescribed the most appropriate anticoagulant;

d) introduce and maintain a register of such patients, with annual review of their treatment being
carried out.

I, (-




| recommended that the Health Board should:

a) apologise to Mrs X for the failings identified;

b) pay Mrs X the sum of £1,000 in recognition of the significant distress the failings had caused her;

c) consider the introduction of a register and annual medication review of patients with atrial fibrillation;
)

d) introduce a procedure to ensure a medication review by the original clinician before the discharge of
a patient on warfarin;

e) advise all clinicians to be explicit in their correspondence with GPs as to their expectations for future
management of the patient;

f) undertake a review of the procedures in the ophthalmology department for referral to other
specialties.

Aneurin Bevan University Health Board
Case reference 201302660 - Report issued July 2014

Mrs X complained about the length of time that her father (Mr Y) had to wait to be seen following
a referral made by his GP in September 2012 for an endoscopy at the Royal Gwent Hospital. Mrs X
highlighted that there had been a downgrading of the referral from urgent suspected cancer (USC)

without her father having been seen and without any discussion with his GP. She was also concerned
about the lack of clear ownership and responsibility for her father’s care. Mrs X said that there was a
lack of cohesion between the differing specialities involved which resulted in communication failures.
Mrs X was of the view that her father’s treatment and quality of life might have been improved if he
had been seen in a more timely manner.

Mrs X also complained that the Health Board’s subsequent investigation into her complaint failed

to accept responsibility and acknowledge the harm that was caused by the delay in Mr Y receiving
attention. In investigating the complaint the Acting Ombudsman took account of the view of one

of her Clinical Advisers. The Acting Ombudsman found there to be unacceptable delays in the care
provided and said that no sense of urgency was shown to Mr Y’s clinical condition. She said that there
were shortcomings in the leadership and ownership of the care and treatment being provided to Mr
Y. The Acting Ombudsman raised concern about inadequate communication with the GP and with Mr
Y and his family. The Acting Ombudsman highlighted that the relevant Health Board policy did not
comply with the NICE guidelines. The Acting Ombudsman was also concerned about the waiting time
for an urgent outpatient appointment. She said there had been an unnecessary delay in an endoscopy
procedure being carried out. The primary site of cancer was identified following this.

The Acting Ombudsman upheld the concerns raised by Mrs X about the clinical care. She noted that
although a more timely response would not have changed the sad outcome, it might have avoided
the unnecessary psychological suffering felt by Mr Y and his family. It was also possible that a
tracheostomy procedure could have been avoided.

%



mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

The Acting Ombudsman also upheld Mrs X's complaint about the Health Board’s subsequent complaint
investigation.

The Acting Ombudsman recommended that the Health Board should:

a) provide an apology to Mrs X for the significant shortcomings in her father’s care and treatment;

b) provide financial redress to Mrs X of £1,500 for the distress caused to Mr Y and his family and £500
for the time and trouble incurred in making a complaint and for the shortcomings in the complaint
response;

c) review the endoscopy referral criteria for USC to ensure consistency with the relevant NICE guideline;
d) ensure that the First Consultant Gastroenterologist considered the issues raised in this case.

e) take action to ensure that the unacceptable delays for urgent outpatient appointments are
addressed;

f) review the process to ensure that abnormal results are acted upon urgently by a lead clinician or
relevant cancer MDT;

g) review how it communicates effectively and appropriately with patients and their families,
particularly when more than one speciality is involved;

h) comply with the “Putting Things Right” framework including a proper consideration of “qualifying
liability” and seeking independent clinical advice in appropriate circumstances.

Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board
Case reference 201301339 — Report issued June 2014

Ms A complained that Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board (“the Health Board”) unreasonably
delayed two of her appointments, at its Glaucoma Review Clinic (Glaucoma is a disease which damages
the optic nerve and causes vision loss). She said that she needed emergency treatment as a result. She
contended that she sustained significant vision loss in her right eye and experienced “considerable
distress” because of these appointment delays. She indicated that she was dissatisfied with the Health
Board's response to her complaint because it took too long to provide it and asserted that her sight
was “unaffected” by these appointment delays.

The Acting Ombudsman upheld Ms A's complaint. She considered that the Health Board delayed Ms A's
Clinic appointments unreasonably and failed to manage her glaucoma-related risks appropriately.

She was also of the view that it took too long to respond to Ms As complaint and failed to update her
and manage the issue of possible qualifying liability appropriately. She recommended that the Health
Board should:

a) write to Ms A to apologise for the failings identified;

(-



b) write to Ms A to explain how it determined that there was no qualifying liability in her case;

c) review its ophthalmology services with reference to her investigation report and a pre-existing
“Situation Background Assessment Recommendation” (“SBAR”) report; and,

d) prepare another SBAR report following this review.
The Acting Ombudsman also considered it appropriate to recommend financial redress for Ms A.

However, she did not do so because Ms A did not want such redress. The Health Board agreed to
comply with the recommendations made.

Cwm Taf Health Board
Case reference 201300374 — Report issued May 2014

Mrs C complained, through her solicitor, that the Health Board had failed to diagnose her brain
tumour in a timely way; instead for over a year she was managed and treated for a stroke, and was

later referred for a mental health assessment. Consequently, Mrs C said, she was not provided with
earlier relief from the distressing symptoms she suffered and she was made to feel that her symptoms
were psychosomatic. In addition, Mrs C complained about how the Health Board had dealt with her
subsequent complaint.

The investigation found failings in Mrs C’s clinical management. The Acting Ombudsman’s Independent
Clinical Advisers said that Mrs C's multiple admissions to hospital should have triggered consideration
of an alternative diagnosis to a stroke much sooner. She ought to have been referred for an MRI scan
and/or to a Neurologist. Two failed referrals could not be explained. The Consultant treating Mrs C

for a stroke worked alone at the time; this was criticised as it gave no opportunity to discuss complex
presentations. The referral requests to Radiology were found to be insufficient or illegible resulting

in failed communication and misinterpretation of some images. This resulted in a 12 month period of
additional distress for Mrs C albeit that, unfortunately, no surgical intervention could have been offered
to her. There was some delay in the Health Board responding to requests made by Mrs Cs solicitor as
part of her complaint. Mrs C's complaints were upheld.

The Health Board agreed to all the Acting Ombudsman’s recommendations:

a) to apologise and offer redress of £2,500 to Mrs C for her distress as a result of the failings and delays
identified;

b) through a Clinical Lead, to issue reminders to all staff of the need to provide accurate, clear requests
to Radiology colleagues and also to properly evidence inter-clinician referrals clearly in the clinical
records;

c) Mrs C’s case should be used as a learning exercise and discussed at a joint meeting of all departments
involved; and,

d) the Radiology service should consider participating at an early stage in future Welsh trials of the
electronic ordering of Radiology requests.

%



mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

Abertawe Bro Morgannwg University Health Board
Case reference 201205048 — Report issued May 2014

Mrs A complained about the care provided for her late father, Mr B, by Abertawe Bro Morgannwg
University Health Board (“the Health Board”), at Morriston Hospital (“the Hospital”). Her complaint
concerned the diagnosis and investigation of his condition, his treatment in the Emergency
Department, his discharge from the Hospital, his spinal surgery, his ophthalmology input, his manual
handling assessment and his personal care. Mr B had cancer.

The Acting Ombudsman upheld Mrs As complaint. She considered that the Health Board had not
investigated Mr B's condition appropriately, diagnosed it correctly soon enough, provided timely triage
for him, managed his discharge, pain and handling-related needs effectively or consistently given him a
reasonable standard of personal care. She recommended that the Health Board should:

a) write to Mrs A to apologise for the failings identified;

b) pay Mrs A a nominal sum of £1,500 in recognition of the significant distress that its failings caused;

c) formally remind its clinicians of the importance of identifying and responding to Red Flags (clinical
indicators of possible serious underlying conditions that require investigation);

d) satisfy itself that its triage arrangements should avert any delay akin to that experienced by Mr B;
e) review its pain policy to ensure that it complies with the relevant pain management guideline;
f) arrange and provide discharge-related training for its nursing staff members;

g) formally remind its nursing staff members that they must ensure that their patient handling complies
with the relevant best practice guidance;

h) formally remind its nursing staff members that they must assess and review the personal care needs
of their patients systematically and record the service provision associated with them consistently;

i) formally remind its nursing staff members that they must ensure that their catheter care complies
with the relevant best practice guidance;

j) arrange and provide pain management training for its nursing staff members;

k) share her investigation report with all relevant staff members and discuss it in an appropriate forum.

The Health Board agreed to comply with these recommendations.




HOUSING

Cartrefi Cymunedol Gwynedd
Case reference 201304611 - Report issued August 2014

Mr K complained that Cartrefi Cymunedol Gwynedd (“CCG”), his housing association landlord, had
unfairly refused his application to adapt his property to install a walk-in shower. He said that CCG
had accepted that he had a need for the adaptation, as two occupational therapy assessments had
indicated.

Mr K explained that CCG had refused the application mainly because he and Mrs K were
underoccupying their home, as it was a three bedroom property. It had stated that many families were
awaiting such homes. Mr K asserted that CCG'’s decision to refuse the application and then turn down
his appeal, demonstrated that its policies were discriminatory against older and disabled people. In
addition, he considered that the way CCG handled his appeal was incorrect.

Mr K said that he was being forced to move from a home he had lived in for 36 years against his will
because he could not use the bathroom facilities satisfactorily.

| concluded that broadly CCG was operating reasonable policies, which were compliant with legislation
and took account of the balance between a prudent use of its housing stock and the rights of tenants.
However, | found that CCG needed to do more to provide evidence of the number and waiting times of
families within its policy framework.

In Mr K’s case, however, | found that CCG had been maladministrative in its handling of the application
and appeal. | found that the initial decision to refuse the application had been taken without due
consideration of Mr K’s circumstances. The appeal decision then failed to identify that omission. |
considered that Mr K had not had a fair hearing as a result of these failures. Mr K had suffered an
injustice in that context.

| upheld Mr K's complaint. | recommended that CCG:
a) apologise to Mr K;

b) pay him £300;

C

d

offer Mr K a fresh and prompt re-determination of his application;

review its Adaptations Policy with regard to one aspect of its wording;

)

)

)

e) consider how it could incorporate the evidential basis regarding the need for family homes into the
Adaptations Policy.

CCG accepted these recommendations.

%



SOCIAL SERVICES mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

Carmarthenshire County Council
Case Reference 201304738 - Report issued January 2015

MrY complained about delay by the Council in investigating his concerns about his four year old
daughter’s welfare, when in her mother’s care.

His concerns were the family’s living conditions, the frequent changes of address and allegations of
drug taking. He considered that some of the remarks made by a social worker regarding drug taking and
parenting were “inappropriate.”

| found that the Council failed to carry out a home visit and missed a number of opportunities to
investigate Mr Y’s concerns about the family’s circumstances, which included a number of risk factors.
Instead it relied on information from the school, where his daughter was a new pupil. It also failed to
investigate properly a referral made from an English County Council’s Children’s Social Services Team
where the concerns were similar to those raised by Mr Y and where an “urgent welfare check” was
requested. It was several months before the home was visited and this was only after a referral from
the police following a drugs raid. An assessment of the child’s needs was not carried out before the
child left the Council’s area to return to Mr Y’s care.

| found that a comment relating to drug taking and parenting made by a social worker was not
appropriate given the lack of investigation and assessment of Mr Y's daughter’s circumstances. He also
highlighted very poor complaint handling and found that Council staff were defensive and lacked
objectivity in dealing with Mr Y’s representations. The Council failed to deal with the complaint
under the Children’s Complaints procedures which it should have done, and missed an opportunity to
investigate the service failings in respect of Mr Y's daughter.

The Council accepted my recommendations to:

a) apologise to Mr Y and make a payment of £1,000 for the uncertainty caused by the lack of
assessment together with his “time and trouble” in making the complaint;

b) arrange an audit (to be carried out independently of the Council) of referrals to its Children’s Services
Teams to review the appropriateness and consistency of its responses;

c) provide training on the Framework for the Assessment of Children in Need and their Families for all
staff who deal with referrals and assessments;

d) review its arrangements for dealing with social services complaints, to ensure its compliance with
recent legislation and guidance;

e) provide training on complaint handling for those staff dealing with complaints regarding the
provision of services for children.

I, (-



OTHER

Llansannan Community Council
Case Reference 201304436 - Report issued July 2014

Mr Z complained that he had been wrongly prevented from attending monthly meetings of the
Llansannan Community Council (“the Council”). He further complained that before he was told he
could no longer attend, the Council had stopped providing any translation facility for those meetings.
The Council transacts its business in Welsh and Mr Z does not understand Welsh.

The investigation found that there had been maladministration in the manner in which the Council
reached its decision to prevent Mr Z attending meetings. There were no minutes or any record of the
appeal Panel meeting at which the decision was said to have been taken. | also considered there were
no evidenced grounds for its decision given the statutory enshrined right of members of the public to
attend meetings of elected councils so long as no disruption was caused at meetings (when attendees
could be asked to leave or that right withdrawn). There was no evidence of any disruption when Mr Z
had attended; the decision had been solely based on his conduct in daily life outside meetings. Whilst
not condoning that conduct, there was no basis to prevent Mr Z from attending.

The Acting Ombudsman was satisfied that the Council could, as it had done, elect to transact its
business in Welsh but she was not persuaded that it had demonstrated how it might ensure the non
Welsh speaking public could engage in its democratic business (as noted by guidance issued by the
Welsh Government). Furthermore, the Council's own adopted Welsh Language Scheme stated that
it would treat both languages equally. It could not therefore objectively be doing so if it failed to
make some provision for those attending meetings who did not understand Welsh. Otherwise those
members of the electorate could not understand what was being discussed.

The Acting Ombudsman made the following recommendations to the Council:

a) to apologise to Mr Z for the maladministration resulting in the injustice to him of not being able to
attend monthly meetings;

b) to review a number of its policies including its Standing Orders and Welsh Language Scheme to
ensure greater clarity as to its position on translation at business meetings;

c) to ensure it recorded decisions taken pursuant to its policies and procedures.

%




mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

Annex B

Public Body Complaints

Statistical Breakdown of Outcomes
by Public Body Complaints Investigated

—7@\



998 L S 1 44 L 8 14 8t¢ 49 u vioL
6 L L S L 44 44 L WEeyXalp
9t v el L [4 U9eLIO|
L€ L ¢ a 6 9 ue3Jowe|9) JO e
65 L | 8C 0t 6 LISURMS
11 | al [l ¥ Je uouk) eppuoyy
IS L L ¢ 4 0t y skmog
113 ¢ el vl S IIYSD|0IqUI
14 L 8l 7l L HodmeN
Le 14 ¢ vl Gl ¢ 10q|e] 1Ood YyreaN
61 L [4 S 6 [4 AIYSYINOWUON
il l 9 S S 1YPAL JALW
L€ ! bl 14 £3s9)8uy Jo 3)s|
€€ | L ¢ u 6 L ppaumo
14 L ¢ 4 0t L alIysul4
14 | | | 8 oL L alysysiquaq
0¢ L ¢l 8 8 AMuo)
8¢ | L 4 l u u ¢ uoI31paia)
8¢S [4 | L L [4 Ll 14 S allysuayieure)
86 _ l il [t Ly 1L Hpred
6% l l 6l 6l 6 Alydized
« _ I 6l 6 4 pua3puig
[44 L L ol 4 9 JUSMO) Neude|q
Pi12ydn yied ui io 3aed ui 10 UOIJRIIPISUOD
JON - ajoym ui 3]OYM Ul | JUIWAIAS |eniul a3yye

pasop) 3ioday -Pieydn -pieydn | Aseaunjop paso)> sased uoIpsun( | 1BUNo) y3noiog A3uno)

Sase) |ejol | UMeIpYIM | 43Yy3Q | 3doday ;Y30 | -340day 9IS | /X1PIND | panunuodsiq 43430, | 2amewaiy Jono /Kuno)

(ol

STIDNNOD HONOYO049 ALNNOD/ALNNOD



0t

9l

V101

100435 YSIH SMOJIIM
- |]oueq eaddy uoisnoxg

100U AJewiild 14enig JUNOW

331 uhig |08sp

eS| PPAUUAIA |08SA

eUURS3I] |03SA

100YS A1ewllid SOJOOAN IS

— g | | | o - g

100YDS Alewlild useysA|]

Jooys
YBIH DY UAMO) preydry 1S

J00ydS Asewtid neusadApAyy

100Y2S dAIsuay.dwio) JApey

— o e | -

100Y2S AJewlid MOUUOW

|00YdS
A1ewlld yoeq Uaysiue)

100425
3AISURY21dwo) Uo3)iae)

100y2s uAm3uAig

|00YdS 83)esseq

100yDS Areuwltld YuaqAil]

|00 Areliig Y00Iq)IN

L

100Y2S Atewtid A1

— g | g | | -

L

100Y2S AJeWlid ied Y1eoy

paso))
sase) jejol

UMEIPYIIM

P12ydn
JON -
yoday
24310

3ded ug 10
ajoym ui

- p1eydn
yoday 2430

3ded ui 1o
ajoym ui

- P1dydn

- poday 91§

JUWAIAS
Kaezunjop
/Xi4pmd

panunuodsiq

UoIjRIIPISUOD
jeliiul Jayje
paso)d sased
A3Ro,

ainjewaid

uolyIpsunf
jono

sjaued jeaddy jooyds

ALRIOHLNV TVDO1Y¥3IH1O0

9



SITEM IS9M B PIN

Pi12ydn yied ui io yaed ui 10 UOI3RIIPISUOD
JON - doym ui 2)0YyM Ul | JUIWIIPIAS Jeniul sayye
pasop) yoday -P1rydn -p1dydn |  Aseaunjop paso) sased uonIpsun(
sase) |ejol | UMeIpYiIM | 13Yy30 | 3doday Y30 | -340day 9IS | /X1)PIND | panunuodsiq 43430, | ainjewayd Joino | Ayuoyany andsay 3 a4
8 | [4 (4 13 violL
[4 L L EIUOPMOUS
4 I I 1580 AIYSM0IqUIS]
14 L L L L SUOdeag U0daJg
Pi12ydn yied ui io yaed ui 10 UOI}RIIPISUOD
JON - ajoym ui 2)0YM Ul | JUIWIIPIDS Jeniul sayye
pasop) yo0day -P1rydn -p1dydn |  Aseaunjop paso) sased uonIpsun(
sase) |ejol | UMeIpYIIM | 13Y30 | 3dodoy Y30 | -340day 9IS | /X1)PIND | panunuodsiq 43430, | ainjewauyd JoinQ | £A3uoyiny yied jeuoneN

(@INNILNOD) ALIOHLNV VD01 Y¥IHLO

(ol



6¢ 13 3 L [4 oL u 8 JeloL

L umo] yuedjep

| ¢ | Ajunwwo?) pleuusd

L UMO] 10d A1ng 3 A31quiad

| UMO] Y1eaN

| Aunwwo) ydsauueN

L UMO] 821538\

L L 14 Ayunwwo) ueuuesue|]

l Ajunwwo?) Janouey]

L
S
L
L
L
L l Ayunwwo?) Jmep
L
14
l
L

| Ajunwwo) uouue|]

Aunwiwio) uoiay)
14 )9 JOpBWUER|T ‘YHUUSSUE|]

l 1 Ajunwwo?) ¥2033e8ue)]

L l | Ajunwiwo) |pauey]

l Alunwwo? Jawuey

| Ayunwwo?) yuy ukiyhq

umoj nejja3joq

l Ayunwwo) pay|3 1AMud)

| umo] Aeng) syeuuo)

L Ayunwwo) uja)

l AUNWWOY) 1UaMIdR)

z (aa1ysaur4) Ayunwwo?) paodiy

N N = = = = = - NN

7 UMO] YIAMISAIaqQy

Anunwwo)
b I 1 4 y1a])1yue] 18 AJa))114aqy

Pi12ydn yedurio | yiedurio UOI}RIIPISUOD
JON - 3)OYM ul 3]0YM Ul | JUBWIIIAS Jeniul 1a3je
pasop y0day -P1rydn -p1dydn |  Aseaunjop paso)d sases uonIpsun(
$Sase) |e30l | UMeIpYIM  J3Y3Q | 1oday Jay3Q | - 340day 9IS | /X14PINY | panuiuodsiq A3y30, | aimewaiy JO3INQ | |12uno) umoj 1o A3lunwwo)

STIDNNOD NMOL/ALINNWWOD

1




UOI11RIDOSSY
3uisnoy niwAy-our]

UOI3BI20SSY 8UISNOH pojeH

el

P31 46 Blemo dmig

N | O || ™M

uyauky dmio

P11 (s31eM)
UOI3e120ssY 3uISNOH Ajlueq

8uisnoH
Ajunwwo) Je| uouk)

LIA13 te] seyyapwiA)

0 pAMD feL seyyspwiA)

Ja1ue) [B] SeyyapwAd)

n | = N N

P17 dnouo) 3uisnoy |eiseo)

©0

PY] UOIJRID0SSY
3uISnoH uAly pAmD

UOI3BID0SSY 8UISNOH JaLiey)

L

PPAUAME) |OpaUNWAY) Yailie)

N || N O

AMuo) yaipie)

PY¥] UOIIRIDOSSY
3uisnoH Axunwuwo) Jjipied

P11
UOIJe1D0ssy 3ulsnoH uAmpe))

u

oL

P37 8uIsnoH
AJUnWWo?) uoy uoig

P17 UOIIRID0SSY
3uisnoH ulppIAN 01g

P £32105 3un)4 ‘playAaqqy

paso))
sase) jejol

UMEIPYIIM

P12ydn
JON -
yoday
24310

3ded ug 10
ajoym ui

- p1eydn
yoday 2430

3ded ui 1o
ajoym ui

- P1dydn

- poday 91§

JUWAIAS
Kaezunjop
/Xi4pmd

panunuodsiq

UoIjRIIPISUOD
jeliiul Jayje
paso)d sased
A3Ro,

ainjewaid

uolyIpsunf
jono

(uonyenossy 3uisnoy)
piojpueq je1dos paialsiday

SQUOTANYT TVIDOOS AYILSION

(ol



3

SIT ¢ ¢ L K4 £9 soL 6l 1ol

UOI1RID0SSY
LL S 9 3UISNOH 1S9 pUB S3)eAA

¢ | 14 P17 1580) 0] SA3)JBA

UoI3eID0SSY
9 | | | ¢ 3UISNOH Ys|apm panun

I l | 8 | 0 uoidipase) reL

9 L S uojed le|

4 L L dnoig uaias

Jleday
[4 L | pue 287 Je| UOUAD) BppUOyY

S | 4 SOWOH 19y

PY] UOIJRID0SSY
l 3uISNOH 241ys30JqUIad

L L SOWOH 1dN

U013eI1205SY 3UISNOH ppAMaN

[T o]
—

N M| | —
—

L [4 SaWoH A1) 1odmaN

UOI1RIDOSSY
S L 14 [4 UISNOH 2J1YSYINOWIUOW

P17 UOIIRIDOSSY
S ¢ L L 3uIsnoH sa[eA PIW

L | SOWOH SA3)|eA JAYLSN

Jieday
L | pue 1) |ypAL JAYLN

6 L L L P17 SOWOH UIPW

Pi12ydn yied ui io 3aed ui 10 UOIJRIIPISUOD
JON - ajoym ui JJOYM Ul | JUBWB)NIS Jeniul Ja34e
paso) 3ioday -P13ydn -P13ydn | £Ksezunjop paso)d sased uoiIpsun( (uonyenossy 3uisnoy)
Sase) |ej0l | umeIpyiM | 12y3Q | Moday a0 | -340day 9IS | /X1PINY | panuiuodsiq 43430, | 2amewaiy JO INQ | piojpueT je1d0s paiaysiday

(@INNILNOD) SQUOTANVT TVIDOS AIY3LSIDIY



619 8 144 LoL L (41 [4 6S1 €Ll Ly viol
u L | 14 14 4 $92IAISS SDURINGUIY US|
[4 L L S3JeM UHEsH 21qnd
1 9 l 9 4 st S 8uiyoeal sAmog
86 4 S 1 _ tl 74 9% 9 ®PQ lPMAH
14 L 14 LL 4 ¢ 4 6 9 oL WM
16 L 8 al L 9l 6l 174 L oeA pue JjIpied
741 [4 el Ik L oL 143 1€ 8 pejempe; 151og
66 [4 [4 174 L 8 [44 0¢ ol UBASG ULNaUY
oLL S il | 9 0¢ €€ 8 8muuZION 01 IMeLIAqY

P1dydn yaed ui 1o yaed ui Jo uoI)eIIPISUOd

JON - doym ui JJOYM Ul | JUBWIPIAS Jeniul Ja34e
paso)) yi0day -P1rydn -pieydn | Asezunjop paso)d sased uoidIpsun( Isni] SHN
$ase) |e30l | UMeIpyM | J3Yy3Q | 3oday 130 -310day 9|s | /x11)PIND | panunuodsiq 43430, | aamewaiy Jo3InQ /Pieog y3jeay je20]

S1SNYL SHN ANV SQidvO4d HL1V3IH 1vOO1

(ol



S L 13 | violL
[4 L L el Wm)
uegiouwre|
| L 40 9BA pue JjipJe)
$3)BAA UI S]1DUN0)D
1 l U3|eaH Aunwwio) Jo preog
L | 3muue3Iop 0Ig amMeLIQY

Pi12ydn yed ul io 3ded up 10 UOIJeIIPISUOD

JON - ajoym ui 3]OYM Ul | JUIWIIIDS Jen3iul Jayye
pasop 3ioday -P13ydn -pP13ydn | Kseaunjop paso)d sase uoiIpsun( J12uno)
Sase) |ejol | UMeIpYIIM | 13y3Q | iodoy sya0 | -340day 9IS | /xX1)PIND | panunuodsiq Ad3Y30, | ainmjewaid JoInQ Y3jeaH A3iunwwo)
6vl | [44 113 14 | 134 113 oL violL
14 | 4 L ¥sIoeuleyq
K4 | 6l 6C ¢ 143 24 L d9
144 ¢ ¢ L L L 9 ¢ 1snusq

Pi12ydn yied ui io 3aed ui 10 UOIJRIIPISUOD

JON - ajoym ui 3]OYM Ul | JUIWAIAS |eniul a3yye

paso) 3ioday -P13ydn -P13ydn | £Ksezunjop paso)d sased uoiIpsun(

Sase) |ejol | UMeIpYIM | 43Yy3Q | 3doday ;Y30 | -340day 9IS | /X1PIND | panunuodsiq 43430, | 2amewaiy Jono Y3jeaH 12430

$31d09 H11V3IH ¥3H1O

5




v8 [4 [4 L ob 174 SL TVLOL TIVH3IA0
LL ] € £ vioL
S3)BA 0}
L L Jeunqui] A3adoud Jeruspisay
6 S ¢ L S9]eAA S90IN0SY JeinyeN
L | S3)BAA 40 |12UNOD) e
saipog paiosuods
JUBWIUIAAO0Y YS]IM
€L [4 [4 L 111 K4 u violL
991}ILIWIOY) S3IIAIDS
L l Pasijeidads yieaH ysjam
6¢ [4 L L ol 4l L JUSWIUISAOY) YS|opA
¢l 6 ¢ L 9ye10323dsu| duiuueld
Jeunqu]
L | uolyenieA s3)eA YHoN
S3BM
[4 L L 91e10323dsu| a1edy3jesH
S S MISSD
u S b ¢ NIWAD SSYD4VD

Pi12ydn yied u1 io yaed ui 10 UOI}RIIPISUOD

JON - aoym ul 3)OYM Ul | JUIWIA|IIAS |en3iul 1235

pasop yioday -P13ydn -pieydn | Areaunjop paso)d sased uonIpsLn(

sase) |e30] | UMelpyM | 43Yy3Q | dodaysayiQ | -340day 9IS | /x1)PINY | panunuodsiq 43430, | ainjewayd Jo3inQ JUDWIUIIA0D) YS]OM

(ol

S31A09 AFIYOSNOCS LNIWNYIAOD HSTIM ANV LNIWNYIAOD HSTIM



S S 1viol
€ ¢ uonIps1n( Jo 1no Apog
| L NALS3
UOISSILUILLOY)
1 I $3)BA 404 A|qUISSY |BUOLIEN
Pi12ydn yied u1 io 3ed ui 10 UOI3eI3PISUO)
JON - ajoym ui 3)0YM Ul | JUAWII|IIDS Jeniui sa3ye
pasop) 3oday -P13ydn -p12ydn | £K1eaunjop paso)d sases uonIpsun(
sase) |ejol | UMeIpYIIM | 13Y30 | 4odoy soYa0 | -340day 9IS | /X14)PIND | panunuodsiq Ad3y30, | aimewad Joino JETTHYG)
SYIH1O
S L | [4 | violL
1 l 3WOH 3Je) 1IN0 10qjeL
3WOH
1 I 3JEY) |RI3USPISY ASNOH SHYM
L L uejeH A
1 I AWOH 3Je) N0 UIoyImeH
P17 (sdiysiouyiey)
| L SIWOH a1e) YdN4g
Pi12ydn yied u1 io yred ul UOI}RIIPISUOD
JON - doymul | J03JoYMuUl- | JUIW|IAS Jeniui Jayye
pasop 3i0day -P1ydn | pieydnioday | Ksepunjop paso)d sased uonIpsLn( S13pIA0Ag
Sase) |eJol | UMBIPYIIM | 43430 | 340day J3Y3Q | 3sau|dNqngd | /XI4)PIND | panunuodsiq 43430, | aamewaiy Jono ai1e) Juapuadapui

SYIAIAOYUd FUVD LNIANI4IANI

v






mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

Annex C

Code of Conduct Complaints:

Statistical Breakdown of Outcomes by Local Authority




el

oL

1L

0oL

1e301

WYX

Uoe}Io|

112Uno?) Uegiouse|s) Jo 3jeA

BaSUBMS

Je| uouk) eppuoyy

SAMO(

LD |00 | P~ | O |~ |~

211YS30JqUIdg

A1) pyodmaN

10JeL 110 LN

2J1IYsyinowuow

JUPAL JAYLIBN

£3s9)3uy Jo S|

ppauAmo)

AYSIUIH

allysy3iquag

Amuo)

uoI8Ipai)

SYTNIETNI:TIS)

— | —

HIpie)

Alydiaed

— <t b DD | N — N — o | N[ | N~

JUsME) Neuselq

Pasopd
sase) jejo]

UMBIPYIM

joued
uonedIpnipy
0} 13J3Y

22)31WWo)
spiepueys
0} 133y

Kressadau
uode ON

yoeaiq
JO 2U3PIA3 ON

panunuodsiq

uoijesapisuod
eniur sayge
paso))

|1>uno) y3noiog £3uno)
/Kuno)

STIONNOD HONOYO049 ALNNOD/ALNNOD

(ol



ANunwwio) yuy Je j8ueyyue)]

Jeany fjjaue]]

Ajunwwio)) 1paue]

UMO] OUpNpUeY]

- N ™ N -

UMOo] O)lapuey]

Ajunwwod
104 A pAuY pue sejnppuey]

Ajunwwo) 3ipeque)

A} unwwo?) Je| UA uowseuey]

UMOJ A||amp1y

umo] peayAjoH

UMO] 2IMPOOS) 3 pJendysiq

Ajunwwo) sAkmod seuiq

umo] AenQ) syeuuod

Ayunwwo?) y1aodpao)

UMO] JODIP|ED

AuNWWo?) Juamiae))

umo] A3pang

UMO] pua3plig

ANunwwio) epsayiag

— | — [t — ] — NN

A1) 103ueg

Aunwwo) 3oyuy

UMO] pJOjuBLILY

W (= (=== g [ =N N[N ===

umo] YaAmisKiaqy

Ajunwwo)
Y13 1yuer] g Aiaf|aqy

Pasopd
sase) jejo]

UMBIPYIM

joued
uonedIpnipy
0} 13J3Y

33)}wwo)
spiepue)g
[ PETEN

Kressadau
uode ON

yoeaiq
JO 2U3PIA3 ON

panunuodsiq

uoijesapisuod
eniur sayge
paso))

]12uno) umoj Jo A3 unwwo)

STIDNNOD NMOL /ALINNWWOD

1



soL

8L

V101

Anunwwo) 1jayurjag A

UMO] UAMA|

Aunwwo) uoya|dwap

Ayunwwo) A|)ns

umol 1Ayy

UMO] UAIRISDId

AJUNWWOo?) preuuaq

UMO]| IMeWUaeWUS(

A unwwo) £3)|eA a10ws

Ajunwiwo?) sajquiny

Ayunwwio) Aey

Ajunwiwo?) epumuey]

UMO] JO[e JIMIUE)T

Ajunwwo)
11qAUe)T 3 UBY4aISUR)]

AHuUNWWOY) paeipjiuesue|]

Ajunwwo?) ueuuesue)]

Alunwwod
AMu0?) UBS pleijjuesue|]

112Un0) AUNWWOY) J3AOUE)]

Ajunwiwio?) ueseyue]

Ajunwiwo?) uoyaY)
)2 JOpewUe]] ‘Yyuuadue]

Ajunwiwo) ujuu|ague)

Aunwwod
]9AY UOQIA %203183UE|]

Pasopd
sase) jejo]

UMBIPYIM

joued
uonedIpnipy
0} 13J3Y

33)}wwo)
spiepue)g
[ PETEN

Kressadau
uode ON

yoeaiq
JO 2U3PIA3 ON

panunuodsiq

uoijesapisuod
eniur sayge
paso))

]12uno) umoj Jo A3 unwwo)

(@INNILNOD) STIDNNOD NMOL /ALINNWWO)D

(ol



S9]eM 1S9M PUE PIN

|oued 33)3lwwo) uoijesapisuod

paso)) uonedipnipy spiepue)s Kxessadau yoraiq ]eniul iajje
sase) jejol UMeIpYHM 0) J3j2y 0} J3j2y UOI}DRON | JO3DUIPIADON|  panuiauodsiq paso)d A3uoyany andsay 3 a4

SAILAIOHLNY INDOS3Y 8 Id

3




Public Services Ombudsman for Wales
1 Ffordd yr Hen Gae

Pencoed

CF35 5L

Tel: 01656 641150

Fax: 01656 641199

E-mail: ask@ombudsman-wales.org.uk
Follow us on Twitter: @OmbudsmanWales

This document is printed on 100% recycled paper. It is available
for downloading from the website: www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk

%



Agenda Iltem 8

STANDARDS COMMITTEE
11™ SEPTEMBER 2015

REVISED OMBUDSMANS GUIDANCE

Recommendations / key decisions required:
To consider the report

Reasons:
The subject matter of this report falls within the remit of the Committee

Scrutiny Committee recommendations / comments:

Not applicable

Exec Board Decision Required NO

Council Decision Required NO

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER PORTFOLIO HOLDER:- Clir E Dole (Leader)
Directorate

Chief Executives

Name of Head of Service: Designations:

Linda Rees-Jones Head of Administration & Law | Tel Nos.

Report Author: 01267 224018
Robert Edgecombe Acting Legal Services Manager | E Mail Addresses:

RJEdgeco@carmarthenshire.gov.
uk.

wor Sip Gar EICH CYNGOrRarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire ) ]
o <2 YOUR counciLdoitonline
“ty Cos™® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Page 165



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
STANDARDS COMMITTEE
11™ SEPTEMBER 2015

REVISED OMBUDSMANS GUIDANCE

The Public Services Ombudsman for Wales has issued revised Guidance in relation to the
Code of Conduct for Members of local authorities in Wales.

A copy of the revised guidance is attached to this report.
The main areas of change from previous versions of the Guidance are;
1. An explanation of the 2 stage test employed by the Ombudsman when determining
whether or not to investigate.
2. Further guidance on the use of social media and political expression

3. Further guidance on declarations of interests

As the guidance was published in April 2015 it was taken in to account when preparing and
presenting the Code of Conduct training in June of this year.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? YES

wor Sip Gar EICH CYNGOrRarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire

G YOUR counciLdoitonline
“ty Cos™® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Page 166



IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this
report :

Signed: Linda Rees Jones Head of Administration and Law

Policy, Crime | Legal Finance ICT Risk Staffing Physical
& Disorder Management | Implications Assets
and Issues

Equalities

NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE

wor Sip Gar EICH CYNGOrRarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire ) ]
A Your counciLdoitonline
“ty Cos™® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Page 167



CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed: Linda Rees Jones Head of Administration and Law

( Please specify the outcomes of consultations undertaken where they arise against the following headings)
1. Scrutiny Committee
Not applicable

2. Local Member(s)
Not applicable

3. Community / Town Council
Not applicable

4. Relevant Partners
Not applicable

5. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations
Not applicable

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW

Title of Document File Ref No. | Locations that the papers are available for public inspection

Legal file DPSC-136 | Legal Services, County Hall

wor Sip Gar EICH CYNGOrRarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire ) ]
o <2 YOUR counciLdoitonline
“ty Cos™® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Page 168



mbudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

The Code of Conduct

for members of local authorities in Wales

Guidance from the

Public Services Ombudsman for Wales

for members of county and county borough councils,
fire and rescue authorities, and

national park authorities

Page 169




Preface

This revised guide from me as Public Services Ombudsman for Wales provides an overview of the
Model Code of Conduct (“the Code”) introduced in 2008. It is intended to help you as a member

to understand your obligations under the Code. The Code applies to all members and co-opted
members of local authorities, community councils, fire and rescue authorities and national park
authorities in Wales. As a member, you are required to sign up to it as part of your declaration of
acceptance of office. The Code does not apply to the actions of authorities as a whole, or to the
conduct of their officers and employees. There is a separate code of conduct applying to officers of
local authorities in Wales.

This is the third version of this guidance and is my first as Public Services Ombudsman for Wales.
This version, for the first time, explains the revised two stage test that | will consider when deciding
whether to investigate or to continue with an investigation of a breach of the Code to the stage of
referring the matter to a standards committee or the Adjudication Panel for Wales. It also includes
further guidance on the use of social media and political expression, and aims to provide assistance
to members on the issue of interests which some members find challenging. As before, it excludes
guidance which only relates to town and community councillors. It contains examples drawn from
recent cases considered by my office, standards committees across Wales and the Adjudication
Panel for Wales.

The following pages aim to provide you with a general understanding of the Code and its
requirements. Section 1 provides an introduction, while Section 2 outlines your obligations under

the Code, referencing specific paragraphs for further information. Sections 3 and Section 4 deal with
general issues surrounding interests. You can obtain a copy of the Code by downloading it from your
authority’s website or contacting your Monitoring Officer.

The guide is intended to help you to understand the Code and how it applies, but it cannot hope
to cover every conceivable circumstance. Ultimately, it is your responsibility to take specific advice
from your Monitoring Officer and to make a decision as to the most suitable course of action.

| have used examples throughout to help to bring the guidance to life. These examples are drawn
from actual cases considered by my office and also include decisions reached by local standards
committees and the Adjudication Panel for Wales. Some of these decisions may have been taken
by my predecessor, but throughout, for ease of reference, | will refer to them as my own decisions.
Further examples of recent cases will be published quarterly in “The Code of Conduct Casebook”
which is on my website at www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk

As a member you will be offered training on the Code whether by a Monitoring Officer or from a
representative body. | expect all members to take advantage of such training, including refresher
courses, to ensure that they are fully aware of the provisions of the Code and the standards

Page 170



expected of them in public life. | would also urge members to continue to avail themselves of local
arrangements for dealing with member versus member complaints which have proved very effective
as a means of resolving many of these cases.

Since taking up my office | have become increasingly concerned about the number of low level
complaints that are being received. Whilst these complaints appear to have been generated by a
small number of members, in these challenging times of public austerity, it is increasingly important
to ensure the effective use of my office’s resources and that any investigation undertaken is
proportionate and required in the wider public interest.

We should continue to work collaboratively to drive up standards in public life and to create a
culture where members are respected for their selflessness, objectivity and respectful behaviour.
If we do so we can build public confidence in our democratic institutions and promote good
governance for the benefit of the people of all of our communities.

. i

Nick Bennett
Public Services Ombudsman for Wales
March 2015

Page 171




This statutory guidance is issued by the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales under Section 68 of
the Local Government Act 2000 for elected, co-opted and appointed members of:

» county and county borough councils
» fire and rescue authorities, and
» national park authorities

in Wales.

Acknowledgement

This guidance draws on guidance prepared and issued by Standards for England on the former
English Code of Conduct. It has been extended and amended to refer to the Welsh Code and
to the Welsh context. | would like to thank the legal services department of Ceredigion County
Council for the use of its flowcharts on interests which are appended to this guidance.
Separate guidance is available for members of community councils.

First published April 2010.
This edition published March 2015.

Page 172




Content

Page
Part 1 - Introduction 6
» The Principles 9
» Deciding when the Code applies to you 1
Part 2 — General obligations under the Code 13
» Equality 13
» Treating others with respect and consideration 14
» Bullying and harassment 16
» Compromising the impartiality of officers of the authority 17
» Disclosing confidential information 18
» Preventing access to information 19
» Disrepute 20
» Reporting breaches of the Code 20
» Vexatious complaints 21
» Co-operating with investigations 22
» Using your position improperly 23
» The authority’s resources 24
» Using resources for proper purposes only 24
» Reaching decisions objectively 25
» Considering advice provided to you and giving reasons 26
» Expenses 27
» Gifts and hospitality 28
Part 3 — Personal and prejudicial interests 29
» Personal Interests 29
» What to do when you have a personal interest 34
» Prejudicial Interests 35
» Does the matter fall within one of the exemptions? 36
» Overview and Scrutiny Committees 37
» What to do when you have a prejudicial interest 38
» Executive or cabinet roles 39
» Dispensations 40
Part 4 — Registration of Interests 42
» Sensitive information 43
» Gifts and hospitality 44
Appendices — Flowcharts 45
» Appendix 1Personal Interests 45
» Appendix 2 Prejudicial Interests 46 Page 173




1. Introduction

The Local Government Act 2000 created a new ethical framework for local government in Wales.
It created a power for the National Assembly for Wales to issue a model code of conduct to apply
to members and co-opted members of all relevant authorities in Wales. This power was transferred
to the Welsh Ministers by the Government of Wales Act 2006. In 2008, Welsh Ministers issued the
current Model Code of Conduct which all relevant authorities are required to adopt.

Authorities were required to adopt the Code in its model form in its entirety, but could make
additions to the Code, provided these were consistent with the Model. This was intended to
give certainty to members and the public as to what standards are expected. It helps to ensure
consistency throughout relevant authorities, avoiding confusion for members on more than one

authority and for the public.

Standards committees of principal councils are required to assist members and co-opted members
of their authorities, together with members of town and community councils in their area, to
observe the Code and to arrange for advice and training to be provided. | strongly recommend
that all members should attend training and take advice where it is offered. | support individual
authorities which require members to attend training on the Code before they can join certain
decision-making bodies such as planning committees.

As a member, when you sign your declaration of acceptance of office, you are confirming that
you will observe the Code. It is your personal responsibility to ensure that you understand your
obligations under the Code and act in a way which shows that you are committed to meeting the

high standards of conduct that are expected of you as a member.

Ultimately you are responsible for the decisions you take and can be held to account for them.
However, this does not imply that you can take decisions which breach the Code or contrary to
advice simply because the decision is yours to take. This guidance explains the constraints you
are expected to act within to ensure members of the public can be confident in the way in which
authorities in Wales reach their decisions.

It is my role as Public Services Ombudsman for Wales to independently investigate serious
complaints that members of local authorities in Wales have breached the Code. In determining
whether to investigate a complaint or whether to continue an investigation of a breach of the
Code | will use a two stage test. At the first stage, | will aim to establish whether there is direct
evidence that a breach actually took place. The level of proof that is required is on the balance

of probabilities. If that evidential test is met, at the second stage, | will consider whether an
investigation or a referral to a standards committee or the Adjudication Panel for Wales is required
in the public interest. Some of the public interest factors that | will consider are set out below.
These factors are not exhaustive and the weight to be attached to each will vary according to the

facts and merits of each case.

Page 174



Public interest factors include:
» the seriousness of the breach

» whether the member deliberately sought personal gain for themselves or another person at the
public expense

» whether the circumstances of the breach are such that a member has misused a position of trust

or authority and caused harm to a person

» whether the breach was motivated by any form of discrimination against the victim’s ethnic or
national origin, gender, disability, age, religion or belief, sexual orientation or gender identity

» whether there is evidence of previous similar behaviour on the part of the member

» whether the investigation or referral to a standards committee or the Adjudication Panel for
Wales is required to maintain public confidence in elected members in Wales

» whether investigation or referral to a standards committee or the Adjudication Panel for Wales
is a proportionate response, namely, whether it is likely that the breach would lead to a sanction
being applied to the member (I will take account of the outcomes of previous cases considered by
standards committees across Wales and the Adjudication Panel for Wales), and whether the use of
resources in carrying out an investigation or hearing by a standards committee or the Adjudication

Panel for Wales would be regarded as excessive when weighed against any likely sanction.

| have a wide discretion as to whether to begin or continue an investigation. | have revised the two
stage test adopted by my predecessor in order to provide greater clarity on how | will usually exercise

my discretion and to secure a degree of consistency and certainty in the decisions that | reach.

The process | use for investigating complaints is on my website at www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk

Local Resolution Process

Most local authorities across Wales have implemented local resolution procedures to deal with
low level complaints which are made by a member against a fellow member. These arrangements
are proving to be effective at resolving many of these kinds of complaints. Typically these
complaints continue to be about alleged failures to show respect and consideration for others as
required by paragraph 4(b) of the Code or the duty not to make vexatious, malicious or frivolous
complaints against other members under paragraph 6(1)(d) of the Code. Whilst a member may still
complain directly to me about a fellow member if the matter being complained about concerns
paragraphs 4(b) and 6(1)(d), | am very likely to refer the matter back to the Council’s Monitoring
Officer for consideration under this process. In my view such complaints are more appropriately
resolved informally and locally in order to speed up the complaints process and to ensure that my
resources are devoted to the investigation of serious complaints.

Page 175




The aim of local resolution is to resolve matters at an early stage so as to avoid the unnecessary
escalation of the situation which may damage personal relationships within the authority and
the authority’s reputation. The process may result in an apology being made by the member
concerned. However, where a member has repeatedly breached their authority’s local protocol
then | would expect the Monitoring Officer to refer the matter back to me. If | see a pattern of
similar complaints being made to me by the same members | will consider this to be a serious
matter and decide whether the persistent reporting of such complaints is conduct which in itself

should be investigated as a potential breach of the Code.

When | have investigated a complaint | may refer the matter to a standards committee or the
Adjudication Panel for Wales. This will depend on the nature of and individual circumstances of
the alleged breach.

Standards Committees

Standards committees are made up of independent lay members and of elected members of the
authority. When | refer a case to a standards committee its role is to decide whether a member
has breached the Code and whether a sanction should be imposed. In my view, hearings should be
conducted in public unless there are valid reasons for not doing so to promote public confidence
in standards in public life. Where a standards committee concludes that a member or co-opted
member has failed to comply with the relevant authority’s code of conduct, it may determine that:

» no action needs to be taken in respect of that failure
» the member or co-opted member should be censured which takes the form of a public rebuke, or

» the member or co-opted member should be suspended or partially suspended from being a
member of that authority for a period not exceeding six months.

A member may appeal against the determination of a standards committee to the Adjudication
Panel for Wales.

The Adjudication Panel for Wales

When | refer a case to the Adjudication Panel for Wales its role is also to determine whether a
member has breached the Code and whether a sanction should be imposed. In addition, it will
consider any appeals against the determination of a standards committee. The powers available to
the Panel when it determines that a member or co-opted member has failed to comply with the
Code are:

» to disqualify the respondent from being, or becoming, a member of the relevant authority
concerned or any other relevant authority for a period of up to five years

» to suspend or partially suspend the respondent from being a member or co-opted member of

the relevant authority concerned for up to 12 months, or

» to take no action in respect of the breach. In such cases the Panel may deem it appropriate to
warn the member as to their future conduct. Where such a warning has been recorded it is likely

Page 176



to be taken into account during any future hearing where the member is found again to have
failed to follow the provisions of the Code.

Where either a standards committee or the Panel suspends or partly suspends a member or co-
opted member that member is still subject to the Code, in particular the provisions set out in
paragraphs 6(1)(a) (bringing the office of member or authority into disrepute) and paragraph 7(a)
(improperly using the position of member).

The Principles

The Local Government Act empowered the National Assembly to issue principles to which you
must have regard in undertaking your role as a member. The Code is based on these principles
which are designed to promote the highest possible standards. These principles draw on the 7
Principles of Public Life which were set out in the Nolan Report “Standards of Conduct in Local
Government in England, Scotland and Wales” Three more were added to these: a duty to uphold
the law, proper stewardship of the Council’s resources and equality and respect for others.

Members elected to local authorities give generously of their time and commitment for the benefit
of their communities. The principles provide a framework for channelling your commitment in
a way which will reflect well on you and your authority, and which will give your communities

confidence in the way that your authority is governed.

The individual sections of the Code are designed to support the implementation of the Principles.
For example, the Selflessness principle is covered by Section 7 of the Code — Selflessness and
Stewardship. The current principles were set out in a statutory instrument' and are detailed below.

1. Selflessness
Members must act solely in the public interest. They must never use their position as members
to improperly confer an advantage on, or to avoid a disadvantage for, themselves or to

improperly confer an advantage or disadvantage on others.

2. Honesty
Members must declare any private interests relevant to their public duties and take steps to
resolve any conflict in a way that protects the public interest.

3. Integrity and Propriety
Members must not put themselves in a position where their integrity is called into question
by any financial or other obligation to individuals or organisations that might seek to influence
them in the performance of their duties. Members must on all occasions avoid the appearance
of such behaviour.

The Conduct of Members (Principles) (Wales) Order 2001 SI 2001 No.2276 (W.166)
Page 177




4. Duty to Uphold the Law

Members must act to uphold the law and act on all occasions in accordance with the trust
that the public has placed in them.

5. Stewardship
In discharging their duties and responsibilities members must ensure that their authority’s

resources are used both lawfully and prudently.

6. Objectivity in Decision-making
In carrying out their responsibilities including making appointments, awarding contracts, or
recommending individuals for rewards and benefits, members must make decisions on merit.
Whilst members must have regard to the professional advice of officers and may properly
take account of the views of others, including their political groups, it is their responsibility to

decide what view to take and, if appropriate, how to vote on any issue.

7. Equality and Respect
Members must carry out their duties and responsibilities with due regard to the need to
promote equality of opportunity for all people, regardless of their gender, race, disability,
sexual orientation, age or religion, and show respect and consideration for others.

8. Openness
Members must be as open as possible about all their actions and those of their authority.
They must seek to ensure that disclosure of information is restricted only in accordance
with the law.

9. Accountability
Members are accountable to the electorate and the public generally for their actions and for
the way they carry out their responsibilities as a member. They must be prepared to submit

themselves to such scrutiny as is appropriate to their responsibilities.

10. Leadership
Members must promote and support these principles by leadership and example so as to
promote public confidence in their role and in the authority. They must respect the impartiality
and integrity of the authority’s statutory officers and its other employees.

The principles are not part of the Model Code of Conduct, and failure to comply with the
Principles is not of itself, therefore, indicative of a breach of the Code. However, it is likely that a
failure, for example, to adhere to the principle concerning equality and respect would constitute
a breach of the requirements of paragraphs 4(a) and 4(b) of the Code in respect of equality of
opportunity and respect.

In any event, the Principles offer a sound basis for your conduct in office and | encourage members

to have regard to them at all times.

Page 178
10




Deciding when the Code applies to you
Consider conduct

See Paragraphs 2 and 3 in your public &

Members are entitled to privacy in their personal lives, private life
and many of the provisions of the Code only apply to you

when you are acting in your role as member or acting as a

representative of your authority. However, as there may be circumstances in which your
behaviour in your private life can impact on the reputation and integrity of your authority,

some of the provisions of the Code apply to you at all times.

When reaching a decision as to whether the Code applies to you at a particular time | will have
regard to the particular circumstances and the nature of your conduct at that time.

Before considering your obligations under the Code you should first consider whether the Code
applies and, if so, what provisions.

When does the Code apply?

» Whenever you act in your official capacity, including whenever you are conducting the
business of your authority or acting, claiming to act, or give the impression you are acting, in
your official capacity as a member or as a representative of your authority

» At any time, if you conduct yourself in a manner which could reasonably be regarded as
bringing your office or your authority into disrepute or if you use or attempt to use your
position to gain an advantage or avoid a disadvantage for yourself or any other person or if
you misuse your authority’s resources.

Where you act as a representative of your authority on another relevant authority, or any other
body, you must, when acting for that other authority, comply with their code of conduct. When you
are nominated by your authority as a trustee of a charity you are obliged when acting as such to do
so in the best interests of that charity, in accordance with charity law and with the guidance which
has been produced by the Charity Commission (see its website: www.charity-commission.gov.uk).

If you are acting as a representative of your authority on another body, for example on the board
of a housing association, which does not have a code of conduct relating to its members, you must
comply with your authority’s own Code unless it conflicts with any legal requirements that the
other body has to comply with.

If you refer to yourself as councillor, the Code will apply to you. This applies in conversation, in
writing, or in your use of electronic media. There has been a significant rise in complaints to me
concerning the use of Facebook, blogs and Twitter. If you refer to your role as councillor in any way
or comments you make are clearly related to your role then the Code will apply to any comments
you make there. Even if you do not refer to your role as councillor, your comments may have the
effect of bringing your office or authority into disrepute and could therefore breach paragraph 6(1)
(a) of the Code.

Page 179

n




12

The Welsh Local Government Association has produced useful guidance on social media entitled
“Social Media: A Guide for Councillors” The guidance aims to provide you with a clearer idea about
how you can use social media, the possible pitfalls and how to avoid them. It is available on their

website at www.wlga.gov.uk or by calling 029 2046 8600.

If you are nominated by your authority as the director of a company (a stock transfer housing
association for example) you are obliged to act in the best interests of the company. If it has a
code of conduct for its directors you must abide by it. If it does not, you must comply with your
authority’s Code, except on the rare occasions where it conflicts with any legal obligations the
company may have.

If you are suspended from office for any reason, you must still observe those elements of the
Code which apply, particularly as set out in paragraph 2(1)(d), while you are suspended.

Example

Councillor B was nominated by a county borough council to serve as a board member of a stock
transfer housing association. The Chief Executive of the housing association copied all board
members into a confidential e-mail to the Chief Executive of the Council. Councillor B admitted
sending the e-mail to the local press and said that he had done so because he felt that his duty as
a councillor over-rode his duty as a board member of the housing association. Councillor B was
found to have breached paragraph 3(a) of the Council's Code by disclosing the e-mail in breach of
the board’s own code of conduct. He was also found to have brought his office and authority into
disrepute by making a misleading statement that “he recently had to withdraw” from the board of
the housing association when he had been removed with immediate effect for the serious breach
of confidentiality.

Example

An on-line poll about a person accused of murder which contained inappropriate language was
set up using Councillor Bs council-provided laptop, internet access and his council e-mail address.
Councillor B said he personally had not set up the poll. However, as the Council had provided
him with the laptop he was responsible for it. He also made disparaging comments about housing
benefit claimants on his Facebook page when responding to a request for advice in his councillor
role. The Adjudication Panel found that Councillor B had acted in his official capacity because he

had used his council-provided equipment and e-mail address.

Therefore, he could reasonably be regarded as representing himself as a councillor.

Page 180



2. General obligations under the Code

If you consider that the Code applies to you at a particular time then you must consider what
provisions may apply and your obligations under the Code. | have referred to each paragraph below
to provide you with some guidance on your general obligations.

Equality

See Paragraph 4(a)

You must carry out your duties with due regard to the principle that there should be equality of
opportunity for all people regardless of their gender, race, disability, sexual orientation, age or religion.

You should at all times seek to avoid discrimination. There are four main forms of discrimination:

» Direct discrimination: treating people differently because of their gender, race, disability,

sexual orientation, age or religion

» Indirect discrimination: treatment which does not appear to differentiate between people
because of their gender, race, disability, sexual orientation, age or religion, but which

disproportionately disadvantages them

» Harassment: engaging in unwanted conduct on the grounds of gender, race, disability, sexual
orientation, age or religion, which violates another person’s dignity or creates a hostile,

degrading, humiliating or offensive environment

» Victimisation: treating a person less favourably because they have complained of
discrimination, brought proceedings for discrimination, or been involved in complaining about

or bringing proceedings for discrimination.

The Equality Act 2010 (as amended) reinforces the importance of this part of the Code. It imposes
positive duties to eliminate unlawful discrimination and harassment and to promote equality.
Under equality laws, your authority may be liable for any discriminatory acts which you commit.
This will apply if you do something in your official capacity in a discriminatory manner.

You must be careful not to act in a way which may amount to any of the prohibited forms of
discrimination, or to do anything which hinders your authority’s fulfilment of its positive duties
under equality laws. Such conduct may cause your authority to break the law, and you may find
yourself subject to a complaint that you have breached this paragraph of the Code.

You must also be mindful that at all times including when acting in your private capacity you must
not act in a way that would bring your Council into disrepute. It is likely that engaging in behaviour
which could be considered to be in breach of the Equality Act in your private capacity would fall
into this category.

Page 181
13




Example

14

A member of a county council was a member of the Council's Recruitment Panel to appoint a new Chief
Executive. Five applicants were shortlisted. After one candidate had finished his presentation and left the
room Councillor A said “good candidate, shame he’s black” The Adjudication Panel for Wales found that
paragraph 4(a) of the Code had been breached and that Councillor A had brought the office of member
and his authority into disrepute (in breach of paragraph 6(1)(a) of the Code).

Treating others with respect
and consideration Political comments can

See Paragraph 4(b) attract Article 10 rights

Freedom of expression is a right which applies to all

information and ideas, not just those that are found favourable.

However it is a right that may be restricted in certain circumstances, for example,

for the protection of the rights and interests of others. A member’s freedom of expression
attracts enhanced protection when the comments are political in nature. Therefore, the criticism
of opposition ideas and opinion is considered to be part of democratic debate, and it is unlikely
that such comments would ever be considered to be a breach of the Code.

“Political” comments are not confined to those made within the council chamber and, for example,
include comments members may generally make on their authority’s policies or about their
political opponents. Therefore, unless the comments are highly offensive or outrageous, it is

unlikely that | will investigate and will take the view that the member needs a “thicker skin’

| may also decline to investigate a complaint where the member has raised “political” issues with
officers. This would not however include threats to an officer’s position or wellbeing. Recent case
law has confirmed that council officers should be protected from unwarranted comments that
may have an adverse effect on good administration and states that it is in the public interest that
officers are not subject to unwarranted comments that disenable them from carrying out their
duties or undermine public confidence in the administration. That said, the officers who are in
more senior positions, for example Chief Executives or Heads of Services, will also be expected to

have a greater degree of robustness.

| expect members to afford colleagues, opponents and officers the same courtesy and
consideration they show to others in their everyday lives. Whilst | recognise that political debate
can, at times, become heated, the right to freedom of expression should not be used as an excuse
for poor conduct generally. Such poor conduct can only discredit the role of member in the eyes

of the public.

When considering such complaints | will take into account the specific circumstances of the case,

whether, in my view, the member was entitled to question the officer concerned, whether there was an

atSm t to irgigwidate or undermine the officer and the content and context of what has been said.
aae



Example

An appeal tribunal of the Adjudication Panel for Wales considered an appeal by Councillor X
against the decision of the Council’s Standards Committee. The Standards Committee found that
Councillor X had failed to show respect and consideration to another member by prohibiting him
from e-mailing the clerk and accessing the Council's website. Councillor X also made comments in
an e-mail to the other members regarding his colleague’s shower habits. In doing this the Standards

Committee found that Councillor X had brought the Council into disrepute.

The Adjudication Panel found that Councillor X's comments were political in nature and
attracted the enhanced protection of Article 10 of the European Convention on Human Rights.
The Standards Committee’s decision was overturned and the sanction rescinded. The decision
of the Adjudication Panel can be found on the Panel’s website http://apw.wales.gov.uk

(Ref: APW,/001,2014-015/AT).

Example

The Adjudication Panel upheld a finding of a standards committee of a failure to show respect
and consideration for others by posting online comments about other members and the way

in which the Council was run. The member sought judicial review of this decision. The Court
found that whilst the comments which were posted were sarcastic and mocking and the tone
ridiculed his fellow members, because the majority of the comments related to the way in which
the Council was run, how its decisions were recorded and the competence of the members, the
comments were “Political Expression” The ruling said no account had been taken of the need for
politicians to have “thicker skins” In view of the member’s freedom of expression and the fact that
the majority of comments were directed at fellow councillors, the finding of a breach in this case
was a disproportionate interference with the member’s rights under Article 10 of the European
Convention on Human Rights. The Standards Committee’s decision to censure the member was

therefore set aside.

Example

A member of a town council wrote to a Deputy Minister of the Welsh Assembly Government
about an employee (“Mr Smith”) of a county council, a letter which was also copied to the
Council. In the letter the member questioned Mr Smith’s competence and motivation and he
made a number of comments of a disparaging and personal nature about Mr Smith and his
associates. He raised the issue of homosexuality and referred to it as a “notorious disability” and
that “homosexuality is only a demon which can be driven out” The member was referred to the
Adjudication Panel for Wales.

The Panel found that the member had breached paragraph 4(b) in that he had failed to show
respect and consideration for others. It also found that by his use of words he had brought the

office of member into disrepute in breach of paragraph 6(1)(a) of the Code.

The member was disqualified for 12 months from being or becoming a member of a [RaGEtHBT.
15




16

Bullying and harassment
Consider your conduct

See Paragraph 4(c) from the other person’s

You must not use any bullying behaviour or harass any perspective
person including other members, council officers or
members of the public.

Harassment is repeated behaviour which upsets or annoys people. Bullying can be characterised as
offensive, intimidating, malicious, insulting or humiliating behaviour. Such behaviour may happen
once or be part of a pattern of behaviour directed at a weaker person or person over whom you
have some actual or perceived influence. Bullying behaviour attempts to undermine an individual

or a group of individuals, is detrimental to their confidence and capability, and may adversely affect
their health. This can be contrasted with the legitimate challenges which a member can make in
questioning policy or scrutinising performance. An example of this would be debates in the chamber
about policy, or asking officers to explain the rationale for the professional opinions they have put

forward. You are entitled to challenge fellow councillors and officers as to why they hold their views.

When considering allegations of bullying and harassment | will consider both the perspective

of the alleged victim, and whether the member intended their actions to be bullying. I will also
consider whether the individual was reasonably entitled to believe they were being bullied.
Bullying is often carried out face to face, but increasingly, it can be carried out in print or using
electronic media. The standards of behaviour expected are the same, whether you are expressing
yourself verbally or in writing.

You need to ensure that your behaviour does not cross the line between being forceful and
bullying. There can be no hard and fast rules governing every set of circumstances but the relative
seniority of the officer will be a factor in some cases. As outlined under paragraph 4(b) of the Code
very senior officers can be involved in robust discussion with members and be well placed to put
their own point of view forcefully. The same is not true of more junior officers and members need
to be aware of this. This is not to say that | condone the bullying of senior officers, only that the
greater the power difference between the officer and the member the greater the likelihood that
the officer will consider behaviour to constitute bullying.

Recently, the High Court found that there is a public interest in protecting public confidence in
unelected public servants which is to be balanced against the interests of open discussion on matters
of public concern. It also found that all members should equally respect the mutual bond of trust and
confidence between themselves and the officers which is crucial to good administration.

Local Authorities have appropriate channels for expressing concern about the performance of an
officer and it is important that you raise issues about poor performance in the correct way and
proper forum. Raising such issues in the context of a meeting with others present, especially if they
are from outside bodies or are members of the public, is not acceptable. Neither is it acceptable to
dqm&g'ethggﬁdia, in your own publications or using blogs, tweets, Facebook or other electronic



means. If your criticism is a personal attack or of an offensive nature, you are likely to cross the line
of what is acceptable behaviour.

Example

A county council member was disqualified from office for 2 years and 6 months by the
Adjudication Panel for Wales following allegations of bullying, harassment, disrespect and bringing
the office of member into disrepute. The alleged incidents occurred over a period of two years.
During that time the member had made threatening comments to officers of both junior and senior
grades. For example, comments such as, a number of managers of the Council had been dispensed
with and there were more to go and “You won't like the man I'll become if | don't get what | want....|

don't need to threaten you you're an intelligent woman | know you'e listening to me”.

The member appealed the decision and the matter was referred to the High Court where all
but three breaches were upheld. The decision can be found on the Panel’s website
http://apw.wales.gov.uk (Ref: APW,/005./2010-011/CT).

Compromising the impartiality of officers of the authority

See Paragraph 4(d)

You must not compromise, or attempt to compromise, the impartiality of anyone who works for, or on
behalf of, your authority. You should not approach anyone who works for, or on behalf of, the authority
with a view to pressurising them to carry out their duties in a biased or partisan way. They must be
neutral and should not be coerced or persuaded to act in a way that would undermine their neutrality.
For example, you should not get officers to help you prepare party political material, or to help you
with matters relating to your private business. You should not provide or offer any incentive or reward in
return for acting in a particular way or reaching a particular decision or threaten someone if they are not
minded to act in a particular way. As well as avoiding pressurising officers in person, you need to avoid

doing so in writing, using electronic media or in the press.

Although you can robustly question officers in order to understand, for example, their reasons for
proposing to act in a particular way, or the content of a report that they have written, you must
not try and force them to act differently, change their advice, or alter the content of that report, if
doing so would prejudice their professional integrity.

If a member develops a close personal relationship with an officer, this becomes a personal and

possibly a prejudicial interest under the Code. | would encourage you to adhere to any protocol
developed by your authority that deals with relationships between members and officers.

Example

The son and daughter-in-law of a member of a county borough council were neighbours of a family
who were tenants of the Council. Complaints had been made about the family’s conduct. The member

Page 185

17




18

contacted officers of the Council regarding the family’s occupancy of the council property and its
impact on his son’s family on a number of occasions, sometimes outside office hours. The calls were
made in his role as elected member and he had direct access to officials because he was a member.
He received a warning from the Deputy Monitoring Officer as to his conduct, which emphasised the

powerful position elected members occupy when dealing with members of staff.

Despite this he continued to contact officers about the matter including requesting an officer to visit his
family “there and then” and accusing an officer of “tipping off” the family being complained about that
noise monitoring equipment was being installed.

The Adjudication Panel for Wales found that the conduct of the member was a persistent course of
conduct over a period of 6 months intended to bring undue pressure upon council officers. It found that
by his actions he had sought to compromise the impartiality of officers of the Council. It also found that
the member had failed to show respect and consideration for others and that his actions amounted to
harassment and he had used his position improperly to promote the interests of his own family. Given
the accumulative nature of his dealings with officers and his making a false allegation that an officer had
“tipped off” the family he had also brought the office of member into disrepute.

The member was suspended from office for 12 months

Disclosing confidential information

See Paragraph 5(a)

You must not disclose confidential information, or information which should be reasonably
regarded to be of a confidential nature, except in any of the following circumstances:

» you have the consent of the person authorised to give it

» you are required by law to do so.

The Information Commissioner has issued helpful guidance on the Freedom of Information Act
and Data Protection Act which is available on his website at www.ico.gov.uk or by calling

0303 123 1113. As a member, you may be party to confidential information about individuals or
organisations including personal or commercially sensitive matters. This might include information
about people’s employment, or personal matters arising from social services work, for instance.
Sometimes, these will be marked confidential. On other occasions, this will not be the case, but
you must not disclose them even if they are not marked. If you are in any doubt, always ask your
Monitoring Officer.

As a general rule, you should treat items discussed in the confidential sections of meetings (exempt
items) as confidential. These reports have usually been assessed by the author as containing
sensitive information, following expert legal advice. The sensitivity of the information may decline
over time, but you are strongly urged to take proper legal advice before disclosing it. Similarly, legal
advice, whether provided by external lawyers or your authority’s in-house legal staff, is almost
AR89 kRa by legal privilege and should not be disclosed.



When information is provided to members during the course of an investigation | expect this to
be treated in the strictest of confidence and it should not be disclosed to anyone other than the
member’s legal or other adviser. If the information is disclosed to other persons | may consider
this to be a breach of this paragraph of the Code. In addition members should not discuss the
complaint with any of the witnesses, whether directly or indirectly, as such contact may also be

construed to be a breach of the Code.

Example

A member of a county borough council who sat on the Council’s adoption panel disclosed publicly
details of a person who had applied to the panel to adopt a child. He could only have become
aware of the information he disclosed by virtue of his membership of the panel. The Adjudication
Panel found that the member had disclosed confidential information in breach of the Code. It
suspended the member from the Council for 6 months.

Preventing access to information

See Paragraph 5(b)

You must not prevent any person from accessing information which they are entitled to by law.
This includes information under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 or those copies of minutes,
agendas, reports and other documents of your authority which they have a right to access. To

find out more about what types of information the public can access, contact the Information
Commissioner’s Office by visiting www.ico.gov.uk or by calling 0303 123 1113 or for specific queries,
you should ask your Monitoring Officer.

Any information that you produce in your official capacity is liable to be subject to the disclosure
requirements of the Freedom of Information Act, and your authority may be required to release
it in response to a request. If you do not provide the information to the relevant officer of your
authority on request, you will be in breach of the Code.

Your authority needs to decide whether to disclose information or whether it may be covered by
an exemption. Even if you believe that information you hold is exempt, you must provide it to your
authority’s relevant officer to allow the authority to reach a decision. As well as being a breach of
the Code, it is a criminal offence if information is destroyed after a Freedom of Information Act
request has been received.

Example

A leader of a county council refused to give the Council’s Information Officer a letter he had
written to the Wales Audit Office on behalf of the Council’s Executive. As a result the Council
could not respond appropriately to a Freedom of Information Act request which resulted in a
complaint being made to the Information Commissioner’s Office. The member continued to refuse
to disclose the letter despite having received clear and unequivocal advice from the Information

Page 187
19




Officer. His refusal led to an adverse finding from the Information Commissioner’s Officer. The
Adjudication Panel found that the member had breached paragraphs 5(b) and 6(1)(a) (disrepute) in
respect of this matter and other related matters. By the time the case was considered by the Panel

the member had resigned from office. He was disqualified from holding office for 12 monthes.

Disrepute

Any conduct
See Paragraph 6(1)(a) unbecoming of a member
You must not behave in a way which could reasonably be can constitute disrepute

regarded as bringing your office or authority into disrepute at

any time. As a member, your actions and behaviour are subject

to greater scrutiny than those of ordinary members of the public. You should be aware that your

in both your public and private life might have an adverse impact on your office or your authority.
You should also ensure that you do not engage in any behaviour that may prejudice an investigation
undertaken by me or your Monitoring Officer as this may also constitute disrepute.

Dishonest and deceitful behaviour will bring your authority into disrepute, as may conduct which
results in a criminal conviction, especially if it involves dishonest, threatening or violent behaviour,
even if the behaviour happens in your private life. Making unfair or inaccurate criticism of your
authority in a public arena might well be regarded as bringing your authority into disrepute.
Inappropriate e-mails or social media posts might well bring the office of member into disrepute.

You must also conduct yourself in an appropriate manner with others within the confines of a

council’s building, regardless of whether your conduct is likely to be in the public domain.

Example

A community councillor had been abusive to a shop proprietor and two members of her staff and
had attempted to obtain a discount on a private purchase by saying it was being bought on behalf
of the Community Council, and when his request for a discount was refused he had made threats
against the business. The Adjudication Panel found that the member had brought the office of

member into disrepute and suspended him for 9 months.

Reporting breaches of the Code

See Paragraph 6(1)(c)

20

If you reasonably believe that a breach of the Code has occurred, you must report it to me and
to your Monitoring Officer. In order to have a reasonable belief that a breach has occurred, you
will need to have direct evidence which supports this. If you are in doubt as to whether a breach
has occurred, you should consult your Monitoring Officer as soon as possible. Where the breach
is a very minor or technical one, or where there is no clear evidence that a breach occurred,

Page 188



your Monitoring Officer may advise you of the likely threshold | will set and suggest that the
matter would be more appropriately dealt with through the authority’s local resolution process.
Nonetheless, the decision as to whether to investigate a breach rests with me. The balance of any
doubt should always favour reporting. It is helpful if you specify which aspect of the Code you

believe has been breached.

Where a member has reported a fellow member to their Monitoring Officer under the authority’s
local resolution process, there is no need to report the matter to me as well.

In determining whether to investigate a complaint of a breach I will use the two stage test that

| have outlined on pages 6 and 7 above. You should ensure that you provide any evidence you
have available when you make a complaint including minutes of meetings, correspondence,
contemporaneous notes or e-mails. If there are other individuals who have witnessed the alleged
breach, you should let us know who they are. This latter point is especially important because

if  only have one person’s word against another’s, | may not be able to conclude with sufficient
certainty that there is enough evidence to warrant pursuing the matter.

To report a breach, you can contact my office by phone at 0845 6010987, by e-mail to
ask@ombudsman-wales.org.uk or via the website at www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk A special leaflet
on making complaints about alleged breaches of the Code is available on request or on the website.

Vexatious complaints

See Paragraph 6(1)(d)

You must not make complaints against other members or staff members or people working on
behalf of your authority which are not founded in fact and which are motivated by malice (a desire
to do them harm) or by political rivalry. Unfortunately, there have been instances where members
have sought to bring complaints about rivals which are designed to disadvantage them, sometimes
in the run-up to elections, and where the evidence of any breach is weak or non-existent. |
consider that in the first instance such conduct should be considered under the relevant authority’s

local resolution process.

Where specific details of such complaints are passed to local press and media, this may prejudice
an investigation and as | have explained may also be a breach of the Code. You must report well-
founded alleged breaches to me and to your Monitoring Officer, not to your local newspaper or
radio station. The press will properly cover the business of any hearings and their outcomes, and
members making allegations should not generate publicity in advance of these.

The Code should not be used by members to pursue their political or private differences. You
should therefore avoid making complaints which have little or no substance (frivolous complaints)
which are designed mainly to annoy the person complained about, for example, when you may
disagree with a member’s approach to your authority’s business or their role as member. Where

Page 189
21




| find evidence to suggest that a complaint has been made to my office which is not founded in
fact and has been motivated by malice or political rivalry | will consider this to be a serious matter
and | may investigate. Making vexatious, malicious or frivolous complaints is not only a breach

of this paragraph but may also be contrary to your other obligations under the Code such as the
requirement not to bring your position as councillor into disrepute or not to use your position for

an improper purpose.

Example

A member of a county borough council claimed that the leader of the Council had offered to
provide another councillor and his group of members with office facilities if that councillor
supported the leader’s preferred candidate for the post of Chief Executive. The evidence
supported the leader’s position that the two matters were unconnected and that therefore the
complaint was malicious. The Adjudication Panel suspended the member making the complaint
for 12 months.

Co-operating with investigations

See Paragraph 6(2)

You must co-operate with an investigation when it is being conducted by me or by your Monitoring
Officer using our statutory powers. Not to do so is itself a breach of the Code. This means that

you should reply promptly to all correspondence and telephone calls, make yourself available for
interview if required and make available copies of any requested documents. It would be helpful

if you could identify any concerns that you may have during the course of the investigation so

that these can be promptly resolved. My office and your Monitoring Officer will make reasonable
allowances for urgent pressures you face and arrangements previously made, for example, for
holidays. However, you are expected to give priority to their investigations to avoid matters being
needlessly drawn out. The requirement to co-operate with an investigation applies whether you
are a witness or the subject of the investigation.

| am aware of instances where members accused of breaches of the Code have sought to put
pressure on the individuals making the complaint or on other witnesses. | regard such behaviour
as entirely unacceptable. You must not intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person who is or
is likely to be a complainant, a witness, or involved in the administration of any investigation or
proceedings relating to a failure to comply with the Code.

However much you may be concerned about allegations that you or a fellow councillor failed to
comply with the Code, it is always wrong to bully, intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person
involved in the investigation or hearing. Even though you may not have breached the Code, you
will have your say during any independent investigation or hearing, and you should let these
processes follow their natural course.

Page 190
22




If you intimidate a witness in an investigation about your conduct, for example, you may find
yourself subject to another complaint that you have breached paragraph 4(c) of the Code with
regard to bullying or harassment, or paragraph 6(1)(a) in respect of bringing the office of member

into disrepute.

Using your position improperly

See Paragraph 7(a)

You must not use, or attempt to use, your position improperly to the advantage or disadvantage of
yourself or anyone else. This paragraph applies at all times and not just when you are carrying
out your duties as a member. You should not use, or attempt to use, your public office either for
your or anybody else’s personal gain or loss. For example, your behaviour would be improper if you
sought to further your own private interests through your position as a member. This also applies if
you use your office to improve your wellbeing at the expense of others.

Members who own land, or whose close personal associates own land, need to be particularly
cautious where planning matters are concerned. If you are in any doubt, you should take advice.
This applies equally to members of community councils when your Council is consulted on planning
matters. Similarly, while it is reasonable to expect members to help constituents apply to the
Council, for example, for housing, it is quite inappropriate to seek to influence the decision to be

taken by the officers.

The provisions of the Bribery Act 2010 apply to members carrying out their public functions.
Should a member be convicted of a criminal offence under this Act then it is likely that they

will also have used their position improperly (in breach of paragraph 7(a)) and be likely to have
brought the office of member or their authority into disrepute in breach of paragraph 6(1)(a). If any
complaint which is made to me concerns conduct which may amount to a criminal offence then |

am likely to refer the matter to the police.

Example

A member of a county council had requested that land in his ownership in Village A be included
as suitable for development in the Council’s Local Development Plan (LDP). When the Council was
considering suitable settlement areas for inclusion in the LDP, officers recommended that land in
the neighbouring village (Village B) be included in the draft plan instead. Despite having received
very clear advice from the Council’s Monitoring Officer on his prejudicial interest the member
e-mailed the Council’s planning policy officer and outlined a number of arguments which he
claimed favoured the inclusion of his land in Village A as opposed to the land in Village B. At the
relevant time the draft plan had been disclosed to members of the Council on a confidential basis
and had not been disclosed publicly.

Page 191
23




The Adjudication Panel found that by sending the e-mail the member had breached paragraph 7(a)
of the Code by attempting to use his position improperly for his own advantage. At the hearing he
sought to apportion blame on the Council’s Monitoring Officer for failing to advise and train him
properly on the Code when this clearly was not the case. His actions also brought his office and
the Council into disrepute. The member was disqualified from holding office for 18 months for this
and other breaches of the Code.

The authority’s resources

See Paragraph 7(b)

You must only use or authorise the use of the resources of the authority in accordance with its
requirements. This paragraph also applies at all times. Where your authority provides you with
resources (for example telephone, computer and other IT facilities, transport or support from
council employees), you must only use these resources or employees for carrying out your local

authority business and any other activity which your authority has authorised you to use them for.

You must be familiar with the rules applying to the use of these resources made by your authority.
Failure to comply with your authority’s rules is likely to amount to a breach of the Code. If you
authorise someone (for example a member of your family) to use your authority’s resources, you
must take care to ensure that this is allowed by your authority’s rules.

Using resources for proper purposes only

See Paragraphs 7(b)(v) and 7(b)(vi)

24

You must make sure you use the authority’s resources for proper purposes only. It is not
appropriate to use, or authorise others to use, the resources for political purposes, including party
political purposes. When using the authority’s resources, you must have regard, if applicable, to any
guidance issued by your authority.

You should never use authority resources for purely political purposes, including designing and
distributing party political material produced for publicity purposes. However, your authority may
authorise you to use its resources and facilities for political purposes in connection with your
authority’s business, for example, holding meetings of your political group. In this case, you must
be aware of the limitations placed upon such use for these purposes. Members should also have
regard to the fact that periods leading up to local government elections are particularly sensitive
in this regard. Using your authority’s resources outside of these limitations is likely to amount

to a breach of the Code. Some authorities will permit members to use authority-supplied IT
equipment such as laptops for ancillary use. Provided that such usage is in line with the authority’s
requirements, there would not be a breach, but sending mass e-mails as part of an election
campaign, for example, would not be appropriate.

Page 192



Where, however, there is no policy or the policy is silent you may not use these resources for any
political or private purposes.

Example

A member of a county council was found in breach of the Code for making improper use of his
council-issued computer equipment for private purposes by downloading inappropriate adult
pornographic images and sending a number of letters to a local newspaper, which he falsely
represented as being from members of the public. The Adjudication Panel found that the member
had misused the Council’s equipment in breach of the Code and had brought the office of member
into disrepute. He was disqualified from being or becoming a member of a local authority for 2
years and 6 months.

Example

A member of a county borough council was found in breach of the Code for using his council-
issued mobile phone excessively for private purposes. Whilst limited personal use was permitted
under the Council’s IT policy a bill in excess of £1000 was incurred in respect of private calls which
the member had made. The Adjudication Panel suspended the member for 9 months for this and
other breaches.

Reaching decisions objectively

See Paragraph 8(a)

When taking part in meetings of your authority, or when arriving at decisions relating to the
authority’s business, you must do so with an open mind and objectively. During the decision-
making process you must act fairly and take proper account of the public interest.

In some decisions, such as those taken by planning committees, you are required always to make
your decisions on the basis of the facts in front of you, and not to have made your mind up

in advance to such an extent that you are entirely unprepared to consider all of the evidence
and advice you receive. Having a completely closed mind is known as pre-determination. You
are entitled to hold a preliminary view about a particular matter in advance of a meeting (pre-
disposition) as long as you keep an open mind and are prepared to consider the merits of all the
arguments and points made about the matter under consideration before reaching your decision.

Pre-determination on the other hand would be where you have clearly decided on a course of
action in advance of a meeting and are totally unwilling to consider the evidence and arguments
presented on that matter during the meeting. Pre-determination could not only invalidate the

decision, it would also amount to a breach of the Code.

Page 193
25




Section 78 of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 prohibits a member of an overview or
scrutiny committee meeting from voting on a question at a meeting, if before the meeting, the
member has been given a party whip relating to the question.

In order for me to investigate complaints of “whipping” of votes by political groups there must be
written evidence or other corroborative evidence available of the whip. Suppositions based upon
the voting patterns of particular groups will not be sufficient evidence of a whip.

Considering advice provided to you and giving reasons

See Paragraph 8(b)

26

You must have regard to all of the advice you receive from your authority’s officers, especially
advice from the Chief Executive, Chief Finance Officer, Monitoring Officer and Chief Legal Officer
where they give it under their statutory duties. Such advice may also be contained in policy and
guidance documents produced by your authority. This is a complex area and there are provisions
within other legislation which underpin it, but in general, it goes well beyond a requirement to simply
consider and reject advice if it is not welcome. | expect members to follow the advice unless there are
strong reasons not to do so, and where a decision is made not to follow advice, it is highly advisable
to record the reasons for not doing so.

It is worth reflecting also that this places a considerable onus on statutory officers to consider their
formal advice carefully, and again, where they believe it is likely to be contentious, to keep a record
of it. There may be isolated cases where advice is given to a member which, when followed, leads
to a breach of the Code. In investigating such cases, if the evidence suggests that there has been a
breach, | would generally regard the flawed advice as a factor in mitigation, rather than as evidence
that no breach occurred.

It is always helpful, if you can, to get advice as early as possible. If you can, ask for advice in

good time before a meeting, rather than at the meeting or immediately before it starts. Make sure
you give the officer concerned all of the information they need to take into account when giving
you advice.

If you seek advice, or advice is offered to you, for example, on whether you should register a
personal interest, you should have regard to this advice before you make up your mind. Failure to
do so may be a breach of the Code.

You must give reasons for all decisions in accordance with any statutory requirements and any
reasonable requirements imposed by your authority. Giving reasons for decisions is particularly
important in relation to regulatory decisions and decisions where people’s rights are affected but it
is not confined to these.

Page 194



As a matter of good practice, where you disagree with officer recommendations in making a
decision, you should give clear reasons for your decision. This applies to decisions to vote against
the advice of the statutory officers, even if you lose the vote. If you decide to vote against their
advice, you should ensure that your reasons for doing so are recorded in the relevant minutes. You
should be aware that voting against the advice of the statutory officers without good reason may
be a breach of the Code.

In reaching decisions where the advice is not provided by the statutory officers, you should still
have regard to the advice provided by officers and take it into account in reaching your decision.
You may also wish to have regard to other advice you have received and, of course, to the position
adopted by a political group of which you are a member. In some circumstances, such as planning
decisions, you must not vote on the basis of a “whip” imposed by your group. In others, it is
reasonable to do so but you should avoid having an entirely closed mind prior to a debate. Again,

whatever the reasons for voting against officer advice, it is highly advisable to record them.

Example

A member of a county council who chaired a council meeting refused to allow the Council’s
Monitoring Officer to advise members during a debate about the Council’s “Annual Letter” from the
Wales Audit Office. Also, when the Monitoring Officer did manage to intervene to express grave
concerns about the way in which the proceedings were being conducted, he failed to have regard
to the limited advice she was allowed to offer and simply said that he “noted her comments’

The member was found to have breached paragraph 8(a)(iii) of the Code. The Adjudication Panel
took into account the member’s full apology and expressions of remorse for his behaviour and
indicated that had the member not already accepted his wrongdoing it would have imposed a
greater sanction than the 4 months’ suspension it imposed.

Expenses

See Paragraph 9(a)

You need to follow the law and your authority’s requirements in claiming expenses and allowances.
If you are in any doubt about your entitlements, or the proper way to claim, you should ask for
advice. You need to keep proper records of expenditure supported by receipts where appropriate,
so that you can properly evidence your claims. Even if a particular scheme does not require you to
submit receipts, you are strongly advised to keep these so that you can prove how much you have
actually spent on the items you are claiming, for example, for childcare.

Page 195
27




Example

A member of a county borough council was alleged to have used the Child/Dependent Care
Allowance to pay his wife to look after their daughter. During the investigation it transpired that
he had paid his adult son (from a previous marriage) a regular weekly income to care for the child
as and when required. The member was able to provide proof of the payments through receipts
and cheque counterfoils. In view of this there was no evidence of any failure on the part of the

member to comply with the Code.

Gifts and hospitality

See Paragraph 9(b)

It is important that you do not accept any gifts or hospitality for yourself, or on behalf of others,
which would place you under obligation or appear to do so. Accepting such gifts or hospitality
could be regarded as compromising your objectivity when you make decisions or carry out the
work of your Council. This is also true of any services or gifts in kind.

This does not prevent you from attending official events such as a civic reception or working
lunch where these are authorised by your authority. (See also the section on registering gifts and
hospitality at page 44).

Page 196
28




3. Personal and prejudicial interests

The elements of the Code which cover personal and prejudicial interests give rise to many
questions from members. They are designed to safeguard the principles of selflessness and
objectivity. They are intended to give members of the public confidence that decisions are being
taken in their best interests, and not in the best interests of members of authorities or their close
personal associates.

Personal interests relate to issues where you or a close personal associate may have some link to
a matter under discussion. These interests become prejudicial where an informed independent
observer could conclude that the interest would influence your vote, or your decision.

In my experience it is the distinction between personal and prejudicial interests, and what action
a member should take depending on the nature of their interest, that causes the most difficulty

for members.

The paragraphs below are designed to offer guidance in this area. | would strongly recommend that
if you are in any doubt about whether you have a personal or prejudicial interest, and, if so, what
you need to do, you should ask your Monitoring Officer for advice. However, the decision on what
course of action should be taken remains with you.

To provide some further assistance, | have attached two flowcharts at Appendix 1and 2 which
Ceredigion County Council’s Monitoring Officer designed to take you through the questions that
you should ask when deciding whether you have an interest. They are for illustration purposes only

and are not definitive.

Guidance on registering interests is at Section 4.

Personal Interests
Do you have a link or

See Paragraph 10 close connection to the

While you are carrying out your duties, you need to decide item to be considered?
if you have a personal interest, and if so, whether you need

to disclose it. Most members know that you need to disclose

personal interests at meetings, but there are other occasions, such as when speaking to your
authority’s officers about the matter concerned, when you may also need to do so.

Listed below are some questions that you should ask when deciding if you have an interest.

Page 197
29




Do | have a personal interest?

You have a personal interest in any business of your authority, including when making a decision,
where it relates to or is likely to affect:

1. your job or your business
2. your employer, or any firm in which you are a partner or paid director
3. any person who has paid towards the cost of your election or your expenses as a member

4. any company in which you hold shares with a nominal value of more than £25,000 or where
your holding is more than 1% of the total issued share capital, which has premises or land in

your authority’s area

5. any contract that your authority makes with a firm in which you are a partner, paid director

or hold shares in as described in 4

6. any land in which you have an interest and which is in your authority’s area (this is especially
important in all planning matters including strategic plans)

7.any land let by your authority to a firm in which you are a partner, paid director or a body as
set out in 4

8. any body to which you have been elected, appointed or nominated by your authority

9. any:
» public authority or body exercising functions of a public nature
» company, industrial and provident society, charity or body directed to charitable purposes
» body whose main role is influencing public opinion or policy
» trade union or professional association

» private club, society or association operating in your authority’s area in which you have

membership or are in a position of general control or management

10. any land in your authority’s area which you have a license to occupy for at least 28 days.

It is always safer to declare an interest, however, if in doubt consult your Monitoring Officer.

Ward and electoral division issues — including Paragraph 10(2)(b)

If a member of the public could reasonably conclude that when you are taking a decision on
behalf of the authority as a whole you are more influenced by issues in your ward or electoral
division than by the interests of the authority as a whole, for example, if the authority needs to
make a provision but you do not think it should be in your ward or electoral division, then you
would have a personal interest.

This paragraph has given rise to great interpretative difficulties. The crux of the problem is that a strict
interpretation of the paragraph, as worded, could well preclude members from participating in any
decision affecting their ward - whereas the underlying policy intention had been to limit the scope of

thﬁag\%igﬂ?tg decisions made by individual councillors in the exercise of executive functions.
30




| do not believe that it would be in the public interest, or in the interests of local democracy, to
adopt a literal interpretation as a matter of course. Therefore as a general rule, in exercising my
discretion, the decision as to whether to investigate will be based on the assumption that the
paragraph is actually directed at individual members making decisions in the exercise of executive

functions and decisions such as those made at planning or licensing committees.

Section 25 of the Localism Act 2011 outlines circumstances when members should not be regarded
as having a closed mind when taking decisions. | will continue to review this in light of any future
decisions and case law on the effect of this provision.

Example

The Adjudication Panel considered a case concerning this provision of the Code. The member had
declared his opposition to a controversial planning application in his election manifesto pledging
to “work tirelessly on issues of concern” and to “oppose the current development proposal”
Having been elected the member voted against the first planning application which the Council
considered when the application was refused. He was subsequently quoted in the local and
national press defending his decision to oppose the development. The Adjudication Panel found
that the member had acted in such a way that a member of the public might reasonably perceive
a conflict between his role as a local councillor and his role in taking a decision on behalf of his
authority. It suspended the member from the planning committee for a period of 3 months.

Matters affecting your well being or financial position

If a decision might be seen as affecting your well being or financial position or the well being

or financial position of any person who lives with you or with whom you have a close personal
association to a greater extent than other people in your ward or, for members of authorities
which do not have wards (for example, national parks) in your authority’s area, you have a personal
interest. Examples of decisions of this kind include obvious issues like contracts being awarded to
your partner’s company but also issues about the location of developments, where it might make

a big difference to where you or your close personal associates live. Examples have included the
location of playgrounds, where elected members have opposed them near their houses because of
issues about noise.

What is “a body exercising functions of a public nature™

The phrase “a body exercising functions of a public nature” has been subject to broad interpretation by the
courts for a variety of different purposes. Although it is not possible to produce a definitive list of such
bodies, here are some of the criteria to consider when deciding whether a body meets that definition:

» Does that body carry out a public service?

» Is the body taking the place of local or central government in carrying out the function, for
example, a care home with residents supported by social services?
» Is the body (including one outsourced in the private sector) exercising a function delegated to

it by a public authority, for example, a private company collecting refuse for the R&@@t299
31




» Is the function exercised under legislation or according to some statutory power?

» Can the body be judicially reviewed?

Unless you answer ‘yes’ to one of the above questions, it is unlikely that the body in your case is
exercising functions of a public nature. Examples of bodies included in this definition are health
bodies, council-owned companies exercising public functions and school governing bodies. If you
need further information or specific advice on this matter, please contact your Monitoring Officer.

What does “affecting well-being or financial position” mean?

The term ‘well-being’ can be described as a condition of contentedness and happiness. Anything
that could affect your quality of life, either positively or negatively, is likely to affect your
well-being. A personal interest can affect you or your close personal associates positively and
negatively. So if you or they have the potential to gain or lose from a matter under consideration,
you need to declare a personal interest in both situations.

Who is a close personal associate?

Close personal associates
include friends, relatives,
business associates and
those with whom you
have been in dispute

Close personal associates include people such as close friends,
colleagues with whom you have particularly strong connections,
business associates and close relatives. It does not include
casual acquaintances, distant relatives or people you simply
come in contact with through your role as member or your
work in the local community.

Close personal associates can also include someone with whom you have been in dispute, or whom you
may be regarded as having an interest in disadvantaging. For example, being a member of the same golf club
as another person would not of itself constitute a close personal association but having that person as a
weekly golf partner might well do. If you are in doubt, you should ask your Monitoring Officer.

What if | belong to an authority without wards or electoral divisions?

If you are a member of an authority that does not have wards or electoral divisions, you will need
to declare a personal interest whenever you consider a matter in a meeting of your authority

if it affects the well-being or financial position of you or one or more of your close personal
associates, more than it would affect other people in your authority’s area. If you are a local
authority member of a fire authority, for example, you would need to declare an interest under this

heading on matters concerning your nominating authority’s area.

“Twin hatted” members

32

If you are a member of both a community council and a county council you are not prevented from

discussing the same matters at both. You may, for example, take part in a discussion about a planning

Page 200



application about which your Community Council has been consulted and still go on to participate in
a decision about the application if you sit on the Planning Committee of your County Council.

If you do so, you would be well advised to state at the Community Council meeting that you
would be looking at the matter afresh when you consider it at the County Council meeting,

and that you would take into account all of the information and advice provided to you. At

the Planning Committee, you should make it clear that you are not bound by the views of the
Community Council. The advice about objective decision making in respect of paragraphs 8(a) and
10(2)(b) of the Code is also relevant here.

Obviously, if the application was one submitted by the Community Council, then you would have
both a personal and a prejudicial interest, and you would be required to declare it and withdraw in
line with the guidance on “What to do when you have a prejudicial interest” below.

Example

Councillor F participated in a meeting which was considering whether to approve the
complainant’s nomination for the post of school governor; Councillor F's husband had also applied
for the post. Not only did the Adjudication Panel find that she should have declared a personal
interest in the item of business by virtue of her close personal association with her husband, it also
took the view that as there had been a history of animosity directed towards the member by the
complainant which had been reported publicly, she also had a personal interest by virtue of her

close personal association with the complainant.

A further element to this complaint was that after the complainant had made a complaint to me
about the member, the member sat on the Council’s Standards Committee when it considered a
separate complaint from the complainant against another member. The Adjudication Panel took
the view that, in light of the acrimonious relationship between the member and the complainant,
the member’s participation in the Standards Committee hearing could reasonably have been
regarded as affecting the complainant’s wellbeing because she was entitled to a fair and unbiased
hearing of her complaint.

What if | am not aware of my personal interest?

Your obligation to disclose a personal interest to a meeting only applies when you are aware of or
reasonably ought to be aware of the existence of the personal interest. Clearly you cannot be
expected to declare something of which you are unaware. It would be impractical to expect you
to research into the employment, business interests and other activities of all your close associates
and relatives. However, you should not ignore the existence of interests which, from the point of
view of a reasonable and objective observer, you should have been aware.

Page 201

33




What to do when you have

a personal interest Once disclosed you can

stay & participate if your
See Paragraph 11 interest is not prejudicial

34

If you decide that you have a personal interest then you must
take the following action before the matter is discussed or as

soon as it becomes apparent to you, except in limited circumstances:

» declare that you have a personal interest, and the nature of that interest
- at meetings
- when making written representations (including e-mails, faxes etc.)

- when making oral representations, even if your interest is on the register of interests.

» confirm your interest by e-mail or in writing to the officer concerned and to the Monitoring
Officer within 14 days

» consider whether you have a prejudicial interest (see below).

If you are making representations in writing to another member or an officer, you must include
details of any personal interests you have. Similarly, if you are speaking with an officer or member
in person, by phone or video conference you should tell them about any personal interest you
have before making representations or when the interest becomes apparent. The Ombudsman
would generally expect officers to make a record of any conversation in which a member has
declared an interest and attach it to the appropriate file.

If you are making a decision as part of an executive or board, you must make sure that the written
record of that decision (for example, minutes of a cabinet meeting) includes details of your
interest. If you have disclosed an interest at a meeting which has not previously been recorded, you
must give it in writing to your authority in line with the arrangements set out by your Monitoring
Officer. Normally, this will mean before, or immediately after the meeting concerned or as soon

as possible thereafter. As a minimum, you need to say in writing what the interest is, what business
considered by the meeting it relates to and you need to sign it.

If you have agreed with your Monitoring Officer that the information about your personal interest
is sensitive information then you should disclose the existence of a personal interest and confirm
that the Monitoring Officer has agreed that the information about it is sensitive. More information
about this is included in the separate section below.

If you declare a personal interest you can remain in the meeting, speak and vote on the matter,
unless your personal interest is also a prejudicial interest. \WWhat constitutes a prejudicial interest
is outlined in the following section.

Page 202



Preiudicial In
rerdICIal terests Do not be swayed by

See Paragraph 12 what you think - consider
what a member of the public
Do I have a prejudicial interest? would reasonably think

Your personal interest will also be a prejudicial interest in a
matter if any of the following conditions applies:

» the matter does not fall within one of the exempt categories of business (see below), or

» the matter relates to a licensing or regulatory matter (see paragraph 12(3)),
and
a member of the public, who knows the relevant facts, would reasonably think your personal
interest is so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest.

What is so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgement?

If a reasonable member of the public with knowledge of all the relevant facts would think that
your judgement of the public interest might be prejudiced, then you have a prejudicial interest.
This is an objective test. You must decide not whether you would take the decision without
prejudice, but whether you would be seen as doing so.

You must ask yourself whether a member of the public, if he or she knew all the relevant facts,
would think that your personal interest was so significant that it would be likely to prejudice your
judgement. In other words, the interest must be perceived as likely to harm or impair your ability to
judge the public interest.

The mere existence of local knowledge, or connections within the local community, will not
normally be sufficient to meet the test. There must be some factor that might positively harm your
ability to judge the public interest objectively. The nature of the matter is also important, including
whether a large number of people are equally affected by it or whether you or a smaller group are
particularly affected.

Some general principles must be remembered when applying this test. You should clearly act in the
public interest and not in the interests of any close personal associates. You are a custodian of the
public purse and the public interest and your behaviour and decisions should reflect this responsibility.

You would have a prejudicial interest in a planning application proposal if a close personal
associate of yours (for example, your son or a good friend) lives next to the proposed site. This

is because your close personal associate would be likely to be affected by the application to a
greater extent than the majority of the inhabitants of the ward or electoral division affected by the
decision (or authority, if your authority does not have wards) and this gives you a personal interest
in the issue. The close personal association means a reasonable member of the public might think
that it would prejudice your view of the public interest when considering the planning application.

Page 203

It does not matter whether it actually would or not.

35




In other cases, where there has been a dispute between you and an individual who could be
disadvantaged by a decision, an informed reasonable member of the public might conclude that

you would be inclined to vote accordingly, whether this is the case or not.

Does the matter fall within one of the exemptions?

See Paragraph 12(2)

A member will not have a prejudicial interest if the business falls within one of a number of
exemptions which are set out below.

The business relates to:

» another relevant authority of which you are also a member

» another public authority or a body exercising functions of a public nature in which you hold
a position of general control or management

» a body to which you have been elected, appointed or nominated by your authority

» your role as school governor where you have not been appointed or nominated by your authority

(for example, a parent governor) unless the business specifically relates to your school
» your role as a member of a health board where you have not been appointed by your authority

» housing - if you hold a tenancy or lease with the authority, as long as the matter does not relate
to your particular tenancy or lease and you do not have arrears of rent of more than 2 months

» school meals or school transport and travelling expenses, if you are a parent, guardian,
grandparent of, or have parental responsibility for, a child in full-time education unless it
relates particularly to the school your child attends

» decisions about statutory sick pay if you receive or are entitled to receive it from your authority

» an allowance or payment for members. | do not consider a member being put forward for
election to a council office which attracts a Special Responsibility Allowance to have a
prejudicial interest as | consider them to be covered by this dispensation.

These exemptions will not apply where the business you are considering is about determining
an approval, consent, license, permission or regulation. | consider these descriptions to refer to a
narrow category of decisions, such as granting planning consent and licensing decisions. A wider
interpretation of approval, for example, would cover almost every aspect of your authority’s
business and was clearly not intended.

If one of the exemptions applies you are not regarded as having a prejudicial interest. You still must
disclose your personal interest but you are allowed to participate in the item under discussion.

Page 204
36




Example

Two members of a county borough council, who were sisters, were found by the Council’s
Standards Committee to have failed to declare both personal and prejudicial interests when they
decided to allocate funds from their Members’ Small Payments Scheme to a company, in respect of
which one of the members was a non-paid director. During my investigation one of the members
disputed the fact that she had received advice from the Monitoring Officer about the disclosure of
such interests, and the other member had, despite receiving advice on the declaration of interests,
falsely declared that she had no interest in the company on the nomination form. The Standards
Committee considered the breaches of the Code to be serious ones. It decided to censure both

members.

Example

A standards committee determined that the circumstances in which a member’s membership of a
local organisation had ended resulting in an acrimonious and ongoing dispute between her and the
organisation (including solicitors’ letters for the recovery of a debt) constituted a close personal
association. It found that the nature of this association meant that the member had a prejudicial
interest and that she had failed to declare this and withdraw from numerous meetings when a
financial donation to the organisation had been discussed.

Overview and Scrutiny Committees

See Paragraph 13

Please note: this section does not apply to fire and rescue authorities, and national
park authorities.

You have a prejudicial interest in any business before an overview and scrutiny committee or

sub-committee meeting where both of the following requirements are met:

» that business relates to a decision made (whether implemented or not) or action taken by
your authority’s executive, board or another of your authority’s committees, sub-committees,

joint committees or joint sub-committees, and

» you were a member of that decision-making body at that time and you were present at the

time the decision was made or action taken.

If the overview and scrutiny committee is checking a decision which you were involved in making
you may be called to attend the meeting to give evidence or answer questions on the matter, and
you may do so provided it is acting under its statutory powers.

Page 205
37




What to do when you have a

prejudicial interest You must declare your
interest and withdraw

See Paragraph 14

from the room
If you consider that you have a prejudicial interest in your
authority’s business you must take certain action.

Nevertheless, even where you have a prejudicial interest, the Code supports your role as a
community advocate and enables you in certain circumstances to represent your community and
to speak on issues important to them and to you.

Key point:

If you have a prejudicial interest in a matter being discussed at a meeting, you must, having declared
your personal interest in the matter, leave the room (or any other venue in which the meeting is
being held including, for example, the location of a site meeting).

This is unless members of the public are allowed to make representations, give evidence or
answer questions about the matter, by statutory right or otherwise. If that is the case, you can also
attend the meeting for that purpose. However, you must immediately leave the room or chamber once
the period for considering representations has finished, and before any discussion on the item begins,
even if members of the public are allowed to remain. You cannot remain in the public gallery to observe
the vote on the matter.

In addition, you must not seek to influence a decision in which you have a prejudicial interest.
This rule is similar to your general obligation not to use your position as a member improperly to your
or someone else’s advantage or disadvantage. This means that as well as leaving meetings where the
item is discussed, you should also not write or make any oral representations about the matter.

Do | have a statutory right to speak to the meeting?

The Code does not provide you with a general right to speak to a meeting where you have a
prejudicial interest. However, in limited circumstances, legislation may provide you with a right to
speak (for example, licensing hearings and standards hearings) which the Code recognises. If so, you
will be allowed to exercise that right to speak. Your Monitoring Officer should be able to confirm

whether this is relevant to your case.

If 1 do not have a statutory right, will | be allowed to speak to the meeting?

38

The Code aims to provide members with the same rights as ordinary members of the public to
speak on certain matters in meetings, despite having a prejudicial interest. These rights are usually
governed by your authority’s constitution, procedure rules or standing orders, and may be subject
to conditions including time limits or the fact that representations can only be made in writing.

If an ordinary member of the public would be allowed to speak to a meeting about an item, you
should be provided with the same opportunity. You will be able to make representations, answer
questions Qr give evidence, even if you have a prejudicial interest in the item. You may not take part
568 3%

in theXdiscussion or observe the vote.



When must | leave the place where the meeting is held?

You must leave immediately when the time for making representations, giving evidence or
answering questions is finished, and before any debate starts.

What does influencing a decision mean?

You must not make any representations or have any involvement with decisions in which you have
a prejudicial interest, except where you are entitled to speak as described above. Your presence

itself could be perceived to be capable of influencing the decision making process.

What if the public are not allowed to speak to the meeting on the matter?

If an ordinary member of the public is not allowed to speak on the matter, you cannot do so if you
have a prejudicial interest. You must leave the place where the debate is being held and not seek to

influence the debate in any way.

This may be the case, for example, where your authority is discussing a confidential matter in
closed session or does not have procedure rules or standing orders in place that allow members
of the public to speak at a meeting of your authority. Like the public, you are not allowed to
participate if you have a prejudicial interest. However, where the public may be allowed to sit in
the public gallery to observe the meeting, you will be required to leave the room during the
debate and vote.

What if | am summoned to attend a scrutiny committee to discuss business in which | have a
prejudicial interest?

If you are asked to attend by the committee exercising its statutory powers, then you may attend

and participate in the meeting.

Executive or cabinet roles

Please note: this section will not apply to fire and rescue authorities or national park
authorities, unless in the latter case there are executive arrangements in place.

If you are a leader or cabinet member of an authority operating executive arrangements, you
must follow the normal rules for executive members who have personal and prejudicial interests.
If your interest is personal but not prejudicial, you can advise the executive on the issue and take
part in executive discussions and decisions as long as you declare your interest. You can also
exercise delegated powers in the matter as long as you record the existence and nature of your
personal interest.

If you are an executive member who can take individual decisions, and you have a prejudicial
interest in a decision, your authority may make other arrangements as set out in sections 14-16 of
the Local Government Act 2000. This means that the decision can be taken by an officer, another

cabinet member, the full executive, or a committee of the executive.

Page 207
39




Although you have a prejudicial interest in a matter, you may be able to make representations,
answer questions and give evidence as long as a member of the public would have the same

rights, but you are barred from decision-making about that matter individually or in cabinet. You
also should not participate in any early consideration of it, or exercise any delegated powers in
relation to it. If you have delegated powers in that area, you should refer the consideration and any

decisions on the matter to the cabinet to avoid the perception of improper influence.

Dispensations

If 1 have a prejudicial interest, can | obtain a dispensation to allow me to take part in the meeting?

40

You can apply in writing to your authority’s Standards Committee for a dispensation to speak and/
or vote on a matter on one or more of the following grounds:

» at least 50 per cent of the authority or committee members would be prevented from taking
a full part in a meeting because of prejudicial interests

» at least half of the cabinet would be so prevented (the leader should be included in the
cabinet in calculating the proportion)

» in the case of a county/county borough council, the political balance at the meeting would

be upset to such an extent that the outcome would be likely to be affected
» the nature of your interest is such that your participation would not harm public confidence
» your interest is common to a significant proportion of the general public
» you have a particular role or expertise which would justify your participation

» the business is being considered by an overview or scrutiny committee and you do not have a
pecuniary interest; the business relates to the finances or property of a voluntary organisation
and you sit on its board or committee in your own right and you do not have any other
interest, although in this instance, any dispensation will not let you vote on the matter, or

» the committee believes that your participation would be in the interests of the people in
your authority’s area and that the committee notifies Welsh Ministers within seven days.

You can apply for a dispensation individually and, in certain circumstances, you can make joint
applications where a number of members want to obtain a dispensation to speak or vote on the
same matter. If the Standards Committee approves your application, it must grant the dispensation
in writing and before the meeting is held. If you need a dispensation, you should apply for one as
soon as is reasonably possible.

Page 208



Only the Standards Committee can grant the dispensation and will do so at its discretion. The
Standards Committee will need to balance the public interest in preventing members with
prejudicial interests from taking part in decisions, against the public interest in decisions being
taken by a reasonably representative group of members of the authority. If failure to grant a
dispensation will result in an authority or committee not achieving a quorum, this may well

constitute grounds for granting a dispensation.

Where you hold a dispensation, you can also make written representations but you must provide
details of the dispensation in any correspondence. If you make oral representations, whether in
person or by phone, you must refer to the dispensation and confirm this in writing within 14 days.

Page 209
41




4. Registration of Interests

Key points:

42

All members of authorities have to provide a record of their interests in a public register of
interests. If you are a member of a county or county borough council, fire authority or national
park authority, you must tell your Monitoring Officer in writing within 28 days of taking office, or
within 28 days of any change to your register of interests, of any interests which fall within the
categories set out in the Code, outlined below.

You need to register your interests so that the public, authority staff and fellow members know
which of your interests might give rise to a conflict of interest. The register is a document that can
be consulted when (or before) an issue arises, and so allows others to know what interests you

have, and whether they might give rise to a possible conflict of interest.

The register also protects you. You are responsible for deciding whether you should declare an
interest in a meeting, but it can be helpful for you to know early on if others think that a potential
conflict might arise. It is also important that the public know about any interest that might have to be
declared by you or other members, so that decision making is seen by the public as open and honest.
This helps to ensure that public confidence in the integrity of local governance is maintained.

As previously mentioned, unless you are a community councillor, you must tell your Monitoring
Officer in writing within 28 days of taking office, or within 28 days of any change to your register of
interests, of any interests which fall within the categories set out in the Code. These categories include:

» your job(s) or business(es)

» the name of your employer or people who have appointed you to work for them

» the name of any person who has made a payment to you in respect of your election or
expenses you have incurred in carrying out your duties

» the name of any person, company or other body which has a place of business or land in the
authority’s area, and in which you have a shareholding of more than £25,000 (nominal value)
or have a stake of more than 1/100th of the share capital of the company

» any contracts between the authority and yourself, your firm (if you are a partner) or a
company (if you are a paid director or if you have a shareholding as described above) including
any lease, licence from the authority and any contracts for goods, services or works. Where
the contract relates to use of land or a property, the land must be identified on the register

» any land and property in the authority’s area in which you have a beneficial interest (or a
licence to occupy for more than 28 days) including, but not limited to, the land and house

you live in and any allotments you own or use

Page 210



» your membership or position of control or management in:
- any other bodies to which you were elected, appointed or nominated by the authority
- any bodies exercising functions of a public nature (described above), or directed to
charitable purposes, or whose principal purposes include the influence of public opinion or
policy, including any political party or trade union

- any private club, society or association operating within your authority’s area.

Sensitive information

Key points:

You may be exempt from having to include sensitive information on your register of interests. If
your personal interest in a matter under discussion at a meeting is sensitive information, you will
need to declare that you have a personal interest but you will not have to give any details about
the nature of that interest.

Sensitive information may include your sensitive employment (such as certain scientific research
or the Special Forces) or other interests that are likely to create a serious risk of violence or
intimidation against you or someone who lives with you should they become public knowledge.

You should provide this information to your Monitoring Officer and explain your concerns
regarding the disclosure of the sensitive information; including why it is likely to create a serious
risk that you or a person who lives with you will be subjected to violence or intimidation. You do
not need to include this information in your register of interests, if your Monitoring Officer agrees.
Ultimately, you must decide what information to include on your publicly available register of
interests. If information on your register ceases to be sensitive you must notify your Monitoring
Officer within 28 days asking them to amend the information accordingly.

Page 211

43




Gifts and hospitality

Key points:

You must register any gifts or hospitality worth more than the amount specified by your authority
that you receive in connection with your official duties as a member and the source of the gift or
hospitality.

You must register the gift or hospitality and its source within 28 days of receiving it. Like other
interests in your register of interests, you may have a personal interest in a matter under
consideration if it is likely to affect a person who gave you a gift or hospitality that is registered.

If that is the case, you must declare the existence and nature of the gift or hospitality, the person
who gave it to you, how the business under consideration relates to that person and then decide
whether that interest is also a prejudicial interest. It is also good practice to provide a note of any
offers of gifts which you have declined.

Is the gift or hospitality connected to my official duties as a member?

You should ask yourself, would | have been given this if | was not on the Council? If you are in
doubt as to the motive behind a gift or hospitality, | recommend that you register it or speak to

your Monitoring Officer.

You do not need to register gifts and hospitality which are not related to your role as a member,
such as Christmas gifts from your friends and family, or gifts which you do not accept. However,
you should always register a gift or hospitality if it could be perceived as something given to you

because of your position or if your authority requires you to.

What if | do not know the value of a gift or hospitality?

44

The general rule is, if in doubt as to the value of a gift or hospitality, you should register it, as a
matter of good practice and in accordance with the principles of openness and accountability in
public life. You may have to estimate how much a gift or hospitality is worth. Also, an accumulation
of small gifts you receive from the same source over a short period that add up to the value
specified by your authority or over should be registered.

The Code also refers to material benefit or advantage. The measure of this would be if an
informed independent observer could conclude that you might be perceived to be better off
as a consequence.

Page 212



Appendix 1

Personal Interests

Questions to ask yourself. If in doubt you should ask your Monitoring Officer.

» trade union or professional association?

» private club, society or association operating
in your authority’s area in which you have
membership or are in a position of general
control or management?

or

10. any land in your authority’s area which you
have a license to occupy for at least 28 days?

STEP 1 Are you:
Does the | » conducting the business of your authority?
Code » acting, claiming to or giving the impression that you are acting, in your official capacity as a member or
apply? representative of your authority?
» acting as your authority’s appointee or nominee on any other body without its own code of conduct?
STEP 2
E;/ZZU The Code does apply. - YES NO >  The Code does not apply.
Continue to Step 2. No further action required.
personal
interest?
Does the business relate to or is it likely Might a decision be
to affect: reasonably regarded as
1. your job or business? Might a affecting (to a greater
2. your employer or company? member of extent than other people
3. any person who has paid towards your the public in your ward/authority’s
election or expenses as a member? reasonabl area):
) . . y . .
4. any company in which you hold shares with conclude that » your well being or financial
the nominal value of more than £25000 or ) position?
where your holding is more than 1% of the when n:na.klng » the well being or financial
total share capital, which has premises or land a decision position of any person
in your authority’s area? you are more who lives with you or with
5. any contract that your authority makes with influenced by whom you have a close
your company or a company in which you issues in your personal association?
hold shares? (as described in 4) ward than by » the employment/ business,
6. any land in which you have an interest? the interests employer, or company
7.any land let by your authority to your of your whole of any person who lives
company? (as described in 4) authority? with you or with whom
8. any body to which you have been elected or you have a close personal
appointed by your authority? association?
..2 9.any ‘ ‘ N . i » any company in Whjch any
o » public authority or body exercising functions person who lives with you
e of a public nature? or with whom you have a
£ » company, industrial and provident society, close personal association
= charity or body directed to charitable owns shares?
5 purposes? R
g . body whose main role is influencing public OR OR
o opinion or policy?

v

v

If YES, you have a PERSONAL INTEREST

If NO, you do not have a
personal interest

You must:

- meetings
- when making written representations

within 14 days)

» declare your interest and the nature of that interest at:

- when making oral representations (and confirm it in writing

» consider if you have a prejudicial interest (see Appendix 2)

» If the business is before

an Overview or Scrutiny
Committee consider if you
have a prejudicial interest

» Otherwise, no further action

is required

Page 213

45




Appendix 2

Prejudicial Interests

Questions to ask yourself. If in doubt you should ask your Monitoring Officer.

STEP 3:

Do you
have a
prejudicial
interest?

Would a member of the public, who knows
the relevant facts, reasonably think your
personal interest is so significant that it is
likely to prejudice your judgement of the
public interest?

\ 4

OR

Is an Overview and Scrutiny
Committee considering a decision
made or action taken by your
authority’s executive, board or another
committee and you were a member of
that decision-making body and present
body

YES NO

\ 4

Prejudicial Interests

Page

Does the business relate to:

» another relevant authority of which you are
also a member?

» another public authority or a body exercising
functions of a public nature in which
you hold a position of general control or
management?

» a body to which you have been elected,
appointed or nominated by your authority?

» your role as school governor where you have
not been appointed or nominated by your
authority (e.g. a parent governor) unless the
business specifically relates to your school?

» your role as a member of a health board
where you have not been appointed by your
authority?

» housing, if you hold a tenancy or lease with
the authority, as long as the matter does not
relate to your particular tenancy or lease and
you do not have arrears of rent of more than
2 months?

» school meals or school transport and
travelling expenses, if you are a parent,
guardian, grandparent of, or have parental
responsibility for, a child in full-time
education unless it relates particularly to the
school your child attends?

» decisions about statutory sick pay if you
receive or are entitled to receive it from your
authority?

» an allowance or payment for members
(subject to certain conditions).

NO YES

You are not regarded as having
a prejudicial interest. You must
disclose your personal interest
but you are allowed to
participate in the item under
discussion.

NO, none of

Yes, one of the exemptions applies

You are not regarded as having a prejudicial
interest. You must disclose your personal
interest but you are allowed to participate
in the item under discussion.

46

the exemptions
apply

You have a PREJUDICIAL INTEREST

You must:

» declare your personal interest

» leave the room or any other venue
in which the meeting is being held

» not take part in or influence the
decision-making process

UNLESS

» You have been granted a
dispensation by your standards
committee to take part and/or vote

» Members of the public can make
representations, answer questions
or give evidence

» You have been called to attend
at an overview and Scrutiny
Committee meeting




Public Services Ombudsman for Wales
1Ffordd yr Hen Gae

Pencoed

CF35 5L)

Tel: 01656 641150
Fax: 01656 641199

E-mail: ask@ombudsman-wales.org.uk

Web: www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 216



Agenda Iltem 9

STANDARDS COMMITTEE
11™ SEPTEMBER 2015

ADJUDICATION PANEL FOR WALES-DECISION NOTICE
COMMUNITY COUNCILLOR HAULWEN LEWIS

Recommendations / key decisions required:
To consider the report

Reasons:
The subject matter of this report falls within the remit of the Committee

Scrutiny Committee recommendations / comments:

Not applicable

Exec Board Decision Required NO

Council Decision Required NO

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER PORTFOLIO HOLDER:- Clir E Dole (Leader)
Directorate

Chief Executives

Name of Head of Service: Designations:

Linda Rees-Jones Head of Administration & Law | Tel Nos.

Report Author: 01267 224018
Robert Edgecombe Acting Legal Services Manager | E Mail Addresses:

RJEdgeco@carmarthenshire.gov.
uk.

wor Sip Gar EICH CYNGOrRarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire ) ]
o <2 YOUR counciLdoitonline
“ty Cos™® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Page 217



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
STANDARDS COMMITTEE
11™ SEPTEMBER 2015

ADJUDICATION PANEL FOR WALES — DECISION NOTICE
COMMUNITY COUNCILLOR HAULWEN LEWIS

On the 13" August 2015 a Case Tribunal of the Adjudication Panel for Wales was
convened to consider a reference from the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales in
respect of Councillor Haulwen Lewis of Llanfihangel ar Arth Community Council.

The referral related to an alleged breach of the Members Code of Conduct by
Councillor Lewis at a meeting of the community council on the 16" January 2012.

It was claimed that Councillor Lewis failed to declare a personal and prejudicial interest
when consideration was being given to a planning application for a wind farm on land
adjacent to land which she owned and that furthermore she had participated in a secret
ballot in relation to the application.

The Case Tribunal unanimously found that Councillor Lewis had by her conduct
breached paragraphs 11(1) and 14(1)(a) of the Code.

The Case Tribunal also unanimously decided that Councillor Lewis should be
suspended from acting as a member of Llanfihangel ar Arth Community Council for a
period of 3 months as from the 13" August 2015.

A copy of the Case Tribunal’s decision Notice is attached to this report.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? NO

wor Sip Gar EICH CYNGOrRarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire ) ]
PS¢ YOUR counciLdoitonline
“ty Cos™® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Page 218



IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this
report :

Signed: Linda Rees Jones Head of Administration and Law

Policy, Crime | Legal Finance ICT Risk Staffing Physical
& Disorder Management | Implications Assets
and Issues

Equalities

NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE

wor Sip Gar EICH CYNGOrRarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire ) ]
A Your counciLdoitonline
“ty Cos™® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Page 219



CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed:

Linda Rees Jones

Head of Administration and Law

( Please specify the outcomes of consultations undertaken where they arise against the following headings)

1.

Scrutiny Committee
Not applicable

Local Member(s)
Not applicable

Community / Town Council
Not applicable

Relevant Partners
Not applicable

Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations

Not applicable

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW

Title of Document File Ref No.

Locations that the papers are available for public inspection

Legal file DPSC-136

Legal Services, County Hall

P N
omeor Sir Gar B

Carmarthenshire

(o gN
U, o

Page 220

EICH CYNGORaArleinamdani
www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

YOUR counciLdoitonline
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



(CT12)

PANEL DYFARNU CYMRU
ADJUDICATION PANEL FOR WALES

NOTICE OF DECISION

TRIBUNAL REFERENCE NUMBER: APW/002/2014-015/CT

RESPONDENT: Councillor Haulwen Lewis
RELEVANT AUTHORITY: Llanfihangel ar Arth Community Council
1,‘ A Case Tribunal convened by the President of the Adjudication Panel for

Wales has considered a reference in respect of the above Respondent.

2. In a letter dated 10 September 2014 the Adjudication Panel for Wales
received a referral from the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales (“the
Ombudsman”) in relation to allegations made against Clir Lewis. The allegations
were that Clir Lewis had breached Llanfihangel ar Arth Community Council’'s Code
of Conduct by failing to declare a personal and prejudicial interest at the meeting of
the Community Council on 16 January 2012, during which a planning application
for a wind farm on land adjacent to a farm she owns was considered and a secret
ballot held in order to decide whether the Community Council would support or

oppose the application.

3. At a hearing on Thursday 13 August 2015 at the lvy Bush Royal Hotel,
Carmarthen, the Case Tribunal found by unanimous decision that Clir Lewis failed
to comply with the Llanfihangel ar Arth Code of Conduct as follows:

3.1 Paragraph 11(1) of the Code of Conduct states that “Where you have a
personal interest in any business of your authority and you attend a meeting at
which that business is considered, you must disclose orally to that meeting the
existence and nature of that interest before or at the commencement of that
consideration, or when the interest becomes apparent.”

3.2 The Case Tribunal found that Cilr Lewis on her own (albeit belated)
admission had breached paragraph 11(1) of the code of conduct.

3.3  Paragraph 14(1) of the Code of Conduct states that “Where you have a
prejudicial interest in any business of your authority you must, unless you have
obtained a dispensation from you authority’s standards committee —

(a) withdraw from the room, chamber or place where a meeting considering the
business is being held.”

3.4 The Case Tribunal found that Clir Lewis had by her own admission (albeit
belated) breached paragraph 14(1)(a) of the code of conduct.

4. The Case Tribunal decided by unanimous decision that Clir Lewis should be
suspended from acting as a member of Llanfihangel ar Arth Community Council for

Page 221



(CT12)
a period of 3 months or, if shorter, the remainder of her term of office, with effect

from the date of this notice.

5. The Llanfihangel ar Arth Community Council and Carmarthenshire County
Council and its Standards Committee are notified accordingly.

6. The Respondent has the right to seek the leave of the High Court to appeal
the above decision.

Signed /é"/&

Mr J Peter Davies
Chairperson of the Case Tribunal

Mrs Helen Cole
Panel Member

Mr R Gwyn Davies
Panel Member

Page 222



Agenda Item 10

STANDARDS COMMITTEE
11™ SEPTEMBER 2015

APPLICATION FOR DISPENSATION BY FIFTEEN COUNCILLORS
FROM GORSLAS COMMUNITY COUNCIL

Recommendations / key decisions required:
To consider and determine the application

Reasons:
The subject matter of this report falls within the remit of the Committee

Scrutiny Committee recommendations / comments:

Not applicable

Exec Board Decision Required NO

Council Decision Required NO

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER PORTFOLIO HOLDER:- CliIr E Dole (Leader)
Directorate

Chief Executives

Name of Head of Service: Designations:

Linda Rees-Jones Head of Administration & Law | Tel Nos.

Report Author: 01267 224018
Robert Edgecombe Acting Legal Services Manager | E Mail Addresses:

RJEdgeco@carmarthenshire.gov.
uk.

wor Sip Gar EICH CYNGOrRarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire ) ]
PS¢ YOUR counciLdoitonline
“ty Cos™® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Page 223



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
STANDARDS COMMITTEE
11™ SEPTEMBER 2015

APPLICATION FOR DISPENSATION BY FIFTEEN
COUNCILLORS FROM GORSLAS COMMUNITY COUNCIL

An application has been received on behalf of 15 elected members of Gorslas
Community Council for the grant of a dispensation to speak and vote on matters
relating to 3 recreation parks owned and maintained by the Community Council.

The Councillors have a personal interest in these matters pursuant to paragraph
10(2)(ix)(ee) of the code in that they are members of local Welfare Association
Committees which are involved in the running of those parks.

The Councillors were not appointed to their roles on those committees by the
Community Council.

The Councillor’s interests are prejudicial as a member of the public with knowledge of
the relevant facts would reasonably regard that interest as so significant that it is likely
to prejudice the Councillors judgement of the public interest. For example when the
Community Council is deciding whether or not to spend monies on the parks a member
of the public could reasonably conclude that the fact a Councillor is a member of the
relevant Welfare Association committee would influence their view as to whether the
money should be spent on the park or on some other issue unconnected with the
Association.

The Councillors have no direct financial interest in their respective welfare
associations.

If the committee is minded to grant these applications it is suggested that this be on
ground 2(a) in the Standards Committees (Grant of Dispensations)(Wales) Regulations
2001, namely that the interest affects no fewer than half the members of the authority.

In granting a dispensation the Committee has absolute discretion as to how long it lasts
for. If the committee is minded to limit the dispensation for a specific period, it may wish
to consider doing so until the 4™ December (3 months) or 11" March (6mths)

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? NO

wor Sip Gar EICH CYNGOrRarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire ) ]
o <2 YOUR counciLdoitonline
“ty Cos™® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Page 224



IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this
report :

Signed: Linda Rees Jones Head of Administration and Law

Policy, Crime | Legal Finance ICT Risk Staffing Physical
& Disorder Management | Implications Assets
and Issues

Equalities

NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE

wor Sip Gar EICH CYNGOrRarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire ) ]
A Your counciLdoitonline
“ty Cos™® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Page 225



CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed: Linda Rees Jones Head of Administration and Law

( Please specify the outcomes of consultations undertaken where they arise against the following headings)
1. Scrutiny Committee
Not applicable

2. Local Member(s)
Not applicable

3. Community / Town Council
Not applicable

4. Relevant Partners
Not applicable

5. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations
Not applicable

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW

Title of Document File Ref No. | Locations that the papers are available for public inspection

Legal file DPSC-136 | Legal Services, County Hall

wor Sip Gar EICH CYNGOrRarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire ) ]
o <2 YOUR counciLdoitonline
“ty Cos™® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Page 226



AR ¢
SR & CARMARTHENSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Eﬁaﬁen\:jg
R g EReCUTYE 'STANDARDS COMMITTEE

APPLICATION for a dispensation under Section 2 of the: Standards
Committees (Grant of Dispensations) (Wales) Regulations 2001

The Carmarthenshire County Council Staridards Committee are
requested to grant the Member/s listed below a Dispensation to cover
the interest/s declared in Section 2 below. My reasons for requesting
same are set out in Section 4

SECTION 1 Name(s) of Name of member’s authority
Member(s) :
Lee blos o 4"5«"- é"ol&f AL fomuun o7 &&UUCCL.

SECTION 2 » Matter to be discussed on which member seeks
dispensation

Ko Encloses Q/2ut

Date of meeting at which .
the matter is to be 4“ meeking <

discussed:

Dispensation being sought to speak and vote
Dispensation being sought to speak only

SECTION 3 The interest which the member must disclose, and
the nature of that interest in relation to the matter

to be discussed

HLombuss %/fﬁéz Wopechie Word Waffone COmmilter '

Page 227



R CARMS C.C.

SECTION 4 Criteria for seeking dispensation mﬁg#ﬁ%@k

*50% of members affected ( 100% 5{'"'&“’“5 affested >

~ Political balance would be affected (county borough only)
~ No damage to public confidence .

~ Common interest with general public ‘

~ Justified because of special expertise
~ Scrutiny committee business and not financial interest

~ Voluntary organisation and not financial interest
~ In the interests of inhabitants

(See appendix for more details)

SECTION 5§ Reason/s in support of my/our application (use a
separate sheet of paper if necessary)

g

. a Clepb bo 17T (roRsists Coven b Zowe
SIGNED é@ e — (Member-ef-County-Council) f
DATED: _/ % 57/ 5

Page 228



Gorslas Communi‘ty{cgg;j@ﬂ -

Re Section 1 of the‘/é‘ji‘s’j nsat:onform .

Name of members and Wafd /

efneithin Ward

Tice
David Martin

Drefach Ward

Dewi Wyn Edwards
Clive Green,
Anthony Rees

Tina Jukes

Nia Lewis

Gorslas Ward

Terrence Davies
Aled Owen
Janice Ann Price
1lis Davies,

Secﬁon 2

Matters to be discussed

Dispensation to allo
Welfare Association:
respective Communi
speak and vote at m
relating to the 3 Rec
Council are discuss
or financial interest in th

d Gorslas to
n matters



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 230



Agenda Item 11

STANDARDS COMMITTEE
11™ SEPTEMBER 2015

APPLICATION FOR DISPENSATION BY COUNCILLOR SHAHID
HUSSAIN

Recommendations / key decisions required:
To consider and determine the application

Reasons:
The subject matter of this report falls within the remit of the Committee

Scrutiny Committee recommendations / comments:

Not applicable

Exec Board Decision Required NO

Council Decision Required NO

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER PORTFOLIO HOLDER:- CliIr E Dole (Leader)
Directorate

Chief Executives

Name of Head of Service: Designations:

Linda Rees-Jones Head of Administration & Law | Tel Nos.

Report Author: 01267 224018
Robert Edgecombe Acting Legal Services Manager | E Mail Addresses:

RJEdgeco@carmarthenshire.gov.
uk.

wor Sip Gar EICH CYNGOrRarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire ) ]
PS¢ YOUR counciLdoitonline
“ty Cos™® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Page 231



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
STANDARDS COMMITTEE
11™ SEPTEMBER 2015

APPLICATION FOR DISPENSATION BY COUNCILLOR SHAHID HUSSAIN

An application has been received from Councillor Shahid Hussain of Cwmamman
Town Council for the grant of a dispensation to speak and vote in respect of the
relocation of Glanamman Post Office.

The issue is to be discussed at a meeting of the Town Council on the 3™ September
2015.

Councillor Hussain has a personal interest in the matter by virtue of paragraph
10(2)(a)(i) of the code of conduct as it relates to and is likely to affect a business
carried on by him. This is because the proposed site of the relocated post office is a
petrol station owned by Councillor Hussain.

Councillor Hussain’s interest is also prejudicial as a member of the public, with
knowledge of Councillor Hussain’s business and financial interest in the issue would
reasonably regard that interest as so significant as to be likely to prejudice his
judgement of the wider public interest.

Councillor Hussain requests that a dispensation be granted under regulation 2(f) of the
Standards Committees (Grant of Dispensations)(\Wales) Regulations 2001 in that his
participation is justified because of his particular role or expertise. Councillor Hussain
submits that his previous experience of such post office re-locations and the financial
implications that result is unique amongst members of the Council and that if he were
unable to participate the Council would be at risk of making a decision without all
relevant information.

It the committee is minded to grant the application it has absolute discretion as to the
duration of the dispensation. It may be limited solely to the meeting on the 3™
September, granted for a longer duration (eg to the meetings of the Standards
Committee on the 4™ December 2015 or the 11" March 2016) or to last for the
remainder of his term of office.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? NO

wor Sip Gar EICH CYNGOrRarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire ) ]
PS¢ YOUR counciLdoitonline
“ty Cos™® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Page 232



IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this
report :

Signed: Linda Rees Jones Head of Administration and Law

Policy, Crime | Legal Finance ICT Risk Staffing Physical
& Disorder Management | Implications Assets
and Issues

Equalities

NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE

wor Sip Gar EICH CYNGOrRarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire ) ]
A Your counciLdoitonline
“ty Cos™® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Page 233



CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed: Linda Rees Jones

Head of Administration and Law

( Please specify the outcomes of consultations undertaken where they arise against the following headings)
1. Scrutiny Committee
Not applicable

2. Local Member(s)
Not applicable

3. Community / Town Council
Not applicable

4. Relevant Partners
Not applicable

5. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations
Not applicable

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW

Title of Document File Ref No. | Locations that the papers are available for public inspection
Legal file DPSC- Legal Services, County Hall
0000

Page 234

PN
o Sir Gar Ry
Carmarthenshire

(o gN
U, o

EICH CYNGORaArleinamdani
www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

YOUR counciLdoitonline
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



CARMARTHENSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

APPLICATION for a dispensation under Section 2 of the Standards
Committees (Grant of Dispensations) (Wales) Regulations 2001

The Carmarthenshire County Council Standards Committee are
requested to grant the Member/s listed below a Dispensation to cover
the interest/s declared in Section 2 below. My reasons for requesting
same are set out in Section 4

SECTION 1 | Name(s) of Name of member’s authority
Member(s)

Cwmaman Town Council

Shahid Hussain

SECTION 2 Matter to be discussed on which member seeks
dispensation

Relocation of Glanamman Post Office from it's current location ( 99
Cwmamman Road , Glanamman ) to Petro Express Ltd ( Cwmamman
Road, Glanamman ) ( it is only 200 yards away)

Date of meeting at which Thursday 3rd September 2015
the matter is to be
discussed:

Dispensation being sought to speak and vote o>

Dispensation being sought to speak only

SECTION 3 The interest which the member must disclose, and
the nature of that interest in relation to the matter
to be discussed

I own and operate Petro Express Ltd. I have already been given approval
for the move from Royal Mail. Having successfully, submitted a business
plan and passed an interview

Page 235



SECTION 4 | Criteria for seeking dispensation

~ 50% of members affected

~ Political balance would be affected (county borough only)

~ No damage to public confidence

~ Common interest with general public

~ Justified because of special expertise <

~ Scrutiny committee business and not financial interest

~ Voluntary organisation and not financial interest

~ In the interests of inhabitants

(See appendix for more details)

SECTION 5 | Reason/s in support of my/our application (use a
separate sheet of paper if necessary)

Page 236




I am the only councillor on the council with knowledge of how the Post
Office Local model works. This is the model that will be adapted
regardless of where the Post Office moves too. I have been through
this process previously last year in one of my other business premises.
The move was completed successfully and local people are happy with
the new setup. Again the Post Office was moved from it's current
location to my petrol station across the road. I managed the change
and hand over personally and it caused no disruption to either my
business or the Post Office.

In regards to the Post Office Local model. I am aware of the potential
hazards/pitfalls as well as the advantages. I am aware of the risk and
liabilities involved in taking on this project. Other councillors are
assuming it will be run as a normal Post Office, which will not be the
case.

Royal Mail have already approved the move. The only reason it is up
for discussion is that local residents would rather see it moved to the
local community centre. If this were to happen, Cwmaman Town
Council would effectively be taking over the Post Office and be the
"Postmaster”.

Royal Mail have said that they would rather see the Post Office move
to Petro Express ( my premises) and that the option of the local
community centre is not viable.

The cost/risk implications to Cwmaman Town Council are huge, and
these have not been made clear to either local residents or to the
Council.

Therefore I am seeking dispensation to talk and vote on this move as [
want to make sure Cwmaman town council has all the information/
hazards/costs etc before making a decision.

The final decision will still rest with Royal Mail. If they see the

Community centre as not a viable option then it does not matter what
the Council say.

Page

237



SIGNED éé ; ; E (Member of County Council)

=  NF
DATED: 20-8-1S

Page 238



	Agenda
	3 TO SIGN AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE COMMITTEE HELD ON THE 29TH JULY, 2015.
	4 STANDARDS COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015.
	Report

	5 REVIEW OF CORPORATE WHISTLE BLOWING POLICY.
	Report

	6 CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLIANCE BY TOWN AND COMMUNITY COUNCILLORS.
	Report

	7 PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES REPORT 2014/15.
	Report

	8 REVISED OMBUDSMAN'S GUIDANCE.
	Report

	9 ADJUDICATION PANEL FOR WALES - DECISION NOTICE COMMUNITY COUNCILLOR HAULWEN LEWIS.
	Report

	10 APPLICATION FOR DISPENSATION BY FIFTEEN COUNCILLORS FROM GORSLAS COMMUNITY COUNCIL.
	Report

	11 APPLICATION FOR DISPENSATION BY COUNCILLOR SHAHID HUSSAIN.
	Report


